

Systinet

Software Version: 10.04 Windows and Linux Operating System

User Guide

Document Release Date: July 2017 Software Release Date: July 2017



Legal Notices

Warranty

The only warranties for Hewlett Packard Enterprise products and services are set forth in the express warranty statements accompanying such products and services. Nothing herein should be construed as constituting an additional warranty. Hewlett Packard Enterprise shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors or omissions contained herein. The information contained herein is subject to change without notice.

Restricted Rights Legend

Confidential computer software. Valid license from Hewlett Packard Enterprise required for possession, use or copying. Consistent with FAR 12.211 and 12.212, Commercial Computer Software, Computer Software Documentation, and Technical Data for Commercial Items are licensed to the U.S. Government under vendor's standard commercial license.

Copyright Notice

© 2003 - 2017 Hewlett Packard Enterprise Development LP

Trademark Notices

Adobe™ is a trademark of Adobe Systems Incorporated.

Microsoft® and Windows® are U.S. registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

UNIX® is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This product includes an interface of the 'zlib' general purpose compression library, which is Copyright © 1995-2002 Jean-loup Gailly and Mark Adler.

Documentation Updates

To check for recent updates or to verify that you are using the most recent edition of a document, go to: https://softwaresupport.hpe.com/.

This site requires that you register for an HP Passport and to sign in. To register for an HP Passport ID, click **Register** on the HPE Software Support site or click **Create an** Account on the HP Passport login page.

You will also receive updated or new editions if you subscribe to the appropriate product support service. Contact your HPE sales representative for details.

Support

Visit the HPE Software Support site at: https://softwaresupport.hpe.com/.

Most of the support areas require that you register as an HP Passport user and to sign in. Many also require a support contract. To register for an HP Passport ID, click Register on the HPE Support site or click Create an Account on the HP Passport login page.

To find more information about access levels, go to: https://softwaresupport.hpe.com/web/softwaresupport/access-levels.

HPE Software Solutions Now accesses the HPSW Solution and Integration Portal website. This site enables you to explore HPE Product Solutions to meet your business needs, includes a full list of Integrations between HPE Products, as well as a listing of ITIL Processes. The URL for this website is https://softwaresupport.hpe.com/km/KM01702731.

About this PDF Version of Online Help

This document is a PDF version of the online help. This PDF file is provided so you can easily print multiple topics from the help information or read the online help in PDF format. Because this content was originally created to be viewed as online help in a web browser, some topics may not be formatted properly. Some interactive topics may not be present in this PDF version. Those topics can be successfully printed from within the online help.

Contents

Chapter 1: Get Started	
Chapter 2: Catalog	
Catalog Browser	10
Creating Artifacts	13
Domain Visualization	16
Searching for Artifacts	
Artifact View Page	
Overview Tab	
Documentation Tab	
Tree View Tab	
Lifecycle Tab	
Compliance Tab	
Access Rights Tab	
History Tab	
Events Tab	
Contacts Tab	
Relationships Tab	
Relationship Editor	
Understanding Relationship Types	
Using Relationships Editor	
Adding an Artifact Relationship	
Removing an Artifact Relationship	
Adding and Removing a Shortcut	41
Publish Content	43
Chapter 3: Navigator	
Understanding the Navigator Graph	47
Navigator Filters	
Navigator Layouts	50
Navigator Tab	51
Navigator Toolbar	
Navigator Information Box	

Chapter 4: Reports	54
Report Dashboard	54
Adding a Portlet to Your Dashboard	
Printing Portlet Content	55
Artifact Reports	56
Viewing Artifact Reports	57
Policy Reports	59
Viewing Policy Reports	59
Contract SLO Monitoring	60
Custom BIRT Reports	62
Viewing Custom Reports	63
Chapter 5: Subscription Management	65
Subscription Management Workflow	66
Subscription Reports	67
Default Provider / Consumer Artifact Types	67
How to Set Provider	68
How to Create Contract	69
How to Process Contract Request	72
Chapter 6: Authoring Overview	75
Application Modeling	75
Service	76
Business Process	77
Application	77
Project	78
Provision and Use	78
Lifecycle Governance	78
Versioning	
Environment	78
Publishing	79
Service Provisioning	80
Try Out with DHC	81
Reference to Authoring UI	82
SOAP Services Page	
XML Services Page	84
REST Services Page	

FileTransfer Services Page	85
SOAP Operations Page	86
HTTP Request Page	86
HTTP Response Page	87
SOAP Endpoint Page	88
File Endpoint Page	
HTTP Endpoint Page	
Organization Unit Page	
Users and Contact Page	91
Business Process Page	92
Projects Page	92
BPEL Processes Page	93
XPDL Processes Page	94
Service Level Offering/Objectives Page	94
Chapter 7: Versioning Overview	97
Revisions	97
Versions	97
Lifecycle and Versioning	98
How to Create Versions	99
How to Upload Versioned Data Files	101
How to Compare Versions	102
Chapter 8: Product Integration	103
UDDI Registry Integration	105
How to Import from Registry	106
How to Synchronize with Registries	108
How to Export to Registry	109
How to Delete Data from Registry	111
Business Service Management	113
How to Import BSM/UCMDB Artifacts	114
How to Resolve Matching Conflicts	117
How to Mark Discovered Content as Rogue	117
How to Ignore Discovered Content	118
How to Synchronize Discovered Content	118
How to Monitor BSM Performance Statistisc	118
Application Lifecycle Management	120

ALM Server Customizations	121
How to Register Services in ALM	. 125
How to Import Requirements from ALM 12	130
How to Synchronize Imported Requirements from ALM 12	131
Monitor ALM Quality Statistics	133
Registered Services	134
Chapter 9: Runtime Gateway Interoperability Framework (RGIF)	
Overview	135
RGIF in HPE Systinet:	137
Feature summary	. 137
Runtime Contracts	138
Manual Proxy Creation and Contract Deployment	139
Lifecycle Based Contract Development	139
Composite Application Development Lifecycle	142
Propagating Service Changes to Proxies	. 143
Quick Start	143
Deploy Remote Layer 7 Adapter	144
Deploy Remote Datapower Adapter	144
How to Provide Additional Artifact Properties to Layer 7 Server .	. 145
How to Edit the Adapter Configuration	147
Adding RGIF Servers	152
Creating Contract Management Artifacts	154
Defining Default RGIF System Settings	. 155
Publish a Service	. 157
Defining Service SLO	158
Creating Contract	. 158
Accessing Service Through Proxy	. 159
Working with Policies	159
Creating Policies	159
Using Policies	161
Policy Versioning	. 161
Manage Proxies	161
Creating Manual Proxies	. 162
Working with Proxies	. 163
Enabling XI50 Remote Configuration	163

Enabling L7 Remote Configuration	163
L7 SLM Handling	164
Chapter 10: Surveys	167
Understanding Survey Definition	167
Starting New Survey	168
Undertaking the Survey	170
Keeping Track of Survey	172
Reviewing Answers	173
Monitoring and Managing Survey	174
Chapter 11: Collaboration	177
How to Use Comments	178
How to Use Notifications	179
How to Use Events	181
How to Use Tasks	183
How to Use Ratings	184
How to Use Feeds	185
How to Share Artifacts	188
Chapter 12: Excel/CSV File Export and Import	190
Exporting CSV Files	190
Importing Spreadsheet Files	193
Managing Template	196
Spreadsheet Template Options	199
Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes	201
Appendix B: HTTP Headers	207

Chapter 1: Get Started

HPE Systinet helps you centralize the enterprise infrastructure. This guide describes the key features and their inter-dependencies. It covers the following topics:

Feature	Description
"Catalog" on page 9	Explains how to create, edit, view artifacts and their relationships, and search for artifacts.
"Navigator" on page 46	Explains how to view related artifacts in graphical mode.
"Reports" on page 54	Explains how to view, print reports and customize the dashboard.
"Subscription Management" on page 65	Explains how to set provider for an artifact, how to create contract, and how to process the contract request.
"Authoring Overview" on page 75	Explains how to add content to the Catalog for the purposes of governance and management.
"Versioning Overview" on page 97	Explains the concept of versioning, revisioning, how to add and compare revision.
"Product Integration" on page 103	Explains how Systinet integrates with other products to serve as a central point of governance.
"Runtime Gateway Interoperability Framework (RGIF) Overview" on page 135	Explains RGIF concepts, quick start with adding RGIF servers, deploy adapters, work with polices, and manage proxies.
"Surveys" on page 167	Explains how to start, undertake, manage and monitor surveys.
"Collaboration " on page 177	Explains how to add comments, ratings, notify other contacts, share artifacts (provide access to others), complete assigned tasks and view artifact feeds and events.
"Excel/CSV File Export and Import" on page 190	Explains how to export and import spreadsheet data.

Chapter 2: Catalog

The HPE Systinet Catalog tab home page displays a set of panels which present the most common managerial functions. Click on the desired link to go to the required function.



However, these functions are also available from the main menus under their respective tabs. For example: Policies link under Governance panel is available in **Administration > Governance > Technical Policies** menu.

Sy	stinet	< ADMIN	ISTRATION >		Q Search	Adminis Documen
ŵ	User Manager	ment 🗸	Configuration 🗸	Governance Y Customization Y	19 R	lecent Docum
Adı	ministration			Lifecycle Processes		
+	×			Technical Policies		
	Name 🔺		Description		Туре	
0	Amazon Web Serv	vices	Domain for Am	Assertions		
	Default Domain		The default dor	ain represents a default working area for all users until the administrator creates additional worki.	. As-is/To-b	e Architecture
D	Demo Domain Domain for demo and testing purposes					
	HP Cloud	IP Cloud Domain for HP Cloud				
	HP Software Products Domain for HP Software Products					
	OpenStack Domain for OpenStack					
	Top-level Domain	n	The top-level d	main is a special domain containing system and global data, such as lifecycle processes, policies, a		

Note: Administration panel is only visible to administrators.

Catalog Browser

The HPE Systinet catalog browser is the place for viewing artifacts by artifact collection type.

1. To open the catalog browser, click **Catalog > Artifacts > Show More**.

		Subscriptions	Documentation	System	
Application Interfaces	🛨 💷 Contacts	🟫 🖵 Agreements	Documentation	🟫 🌄 XQuery Transformations	T.
🏭 REST Services	😭 🛛 🞯 Organizational Units	☆ 🌏 Subscriptions	☆ 뭠 Diagrams	😭 🏭 XSLT Transformations	T.
🚵 SOAP Services	Users and Contacts	😭 🛛 🔮 SLOs	🟫 🌺 WS-Policies	🟫 📴 Surveys	5.
📸 XML Services	😭 🎇 Services	😭 🔹 👔 Service Level Offering	gs 🏫 🔜 API Definitions	😭 🐻 Survey Definitions	5.
💾 File Transfers	🟫 🕲 Projects	😭 🛛 🔮 Service Level Objectiv	ves 🖓 🔐 WSDLs	🟫 🗊 Spreadsheet Templates	5.
📲 Endpoints	☆ 子 Application Components	🟠 🎆 Devices	🟠 📲 WADLs	😭 🗅 SVG Files	5.
HTTP Endpoints	😭 🔞 Applications	🚖 📲 RGIF Devices	🟫 🛛 🚐 Swagger	🏫 🕮 Data Objects	5
SOAP Endpoints	😭 🛛 🐻 Components	🟫 😘 Proxies	🟠 🕪 HTTP Status Codes	☆ 😵 Schemas	5.
File Endpoints	😭 🕞 Business Processes	😭 🌺 Message Policies	🟠 🗒 HTTP Headers	☆ 🔐 XSD Definitions	5
🎭 Operations	☆ 🅞 Process Implementations	😭 🛛 🎆 RGIF Policies	🕸 😰 Communication Samples	DTD Definitions	5.
🎯 HTTP Requests	😭 🛛 🔜 BPEL Processes	😭 🛛 🚸 Runtime Policies	☆	🕮 XML Definitions	5
HTTP Responses	🟠 🛛 🞯 XPDL Processes	🏫 🕮 Contract ID Management	☆	🔜 JSON Definitions	5.
SOAP Operations	😭 🔁 Requirements	🛱 🕞 Runtime Policy Parameters	☆		

2. To open a collection of artifacts, click the type of artifact that you want to view. In this example, click **SOAP Services** under the **APIs** as shown in the image below:



Tip: You can pin the SOAP Services artifact collection to your Artifact menu, by clicking the star Pin next to the SOAP Services artifact collection. Pinning a collection makes it quick and easy to access.



3. After you select the artifact collection you want to view, the collection page opens. In the sample below, the SOAP Services artifact collection is displayed.

SOAP S	ervices All	✓ Located in: All Non-Ref	erence 🗸 🛛 Filter 🕶		
+ /	+ / x ···				
	Name 🔺	Version	Domain	Rating	Lifecycle Stage
			T -	T -	T -
다.sap-como	AGS_BPCA_3PTM_API locument:sap:soap:functions:mc-style - AGS_BPCA_3PTM_API (gener	1.0 ated from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
口 合 urn:sap-com:c	AGS_BPCA_WS_API locument:sap:soap:functions:mc-style - AGS_BPCA_WS_API (generate	1.0 d from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
다.sap-com:c	AGS_SD_ADAPTER_API locument:sapssoap:functions:mc-style - AGS_SD_ADAPTER_API (gene	1.0 erated from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
口 合 urn:sap-comx	AGS_SM_TESTDATA_API locument:sap:soap:functions:mc-style - AGS_SM_TESTDATA_API (get	1.0 nerated from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
다.sap-com:c	AGS_SM_TESTRESULT_API locument:sapisoap:functions:mc-style - AGS_SM_TESTRESULT_API (1.0 generated from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
口 合 urn:sap-com:c	AGS_WBS_SOLAR_IF_MERCURYService locument:sapxrfcfunctions - AGS_WBS_SOLAR_IF_MERCURYService (1.0 (generated from WSDL)	Demo Domain		Production
http://ec2.am	AmazonEC2 azonaws.com/doc/2013-02-01/ - AmazonEC2 (generated from WSDL)	2013.02	Amazon Web Services		Initial
□ ☆ http://ec2.am	AmazonEC2 azonaws.com/doc/2009-11-30/ - AmazonEC2 (generated from WSDL)	2009.11	Amazon Web Services		Retired
다. http://ec2.am	AmazonEC2 azonaws.com/doc/2012-12-01/ - AmazonEC2 (generated from WSDL)	2012.12	Amazon Web Services		Deprecated
The ATM Loc	ATM Backend Gateway ator API is a SOAP-based API allowing for a platform-independent im	2.0 plementation that is interoperable with your other services.	Demo Domain		Initial
~ <	Page 1 of 5 》 🖹 C Hide descriptions	Change Page Size			

4. To customize your view, you can sort, filter, and manage columns.

Note: Column filters are not visible if all artifacts are shown on a single page.

5. You can use controls at the bottom of the collection page to control the page size and amount of description displayed. Revised page sizes are stored. To reset, go to User Settings menu on the top right, under the user name. Scroll down to change the table page sizes.

Q Sea	arch	Admi Docum	nistrator entation
t Docum	Sh	ow Event	219 New
	Syste	m Admini	stration
		User S	Settings
		S	ign Out

6. To perform bulk operations on artifacts in the collection, you can use the toolbar at the top of the collection page.



7. You can set up custom filters, such as a filter for favorite artifacts or artifacts that you own.

Specify your own search criteria using the form below.		
Enter text to search		
Keywords:		~
Last modified:	Any Time	~
Add Criteria Search Clear		

Creating Artifacts

You can use HPE Systinet to create new artifacts, and the attributes and relationships that impact those artifacts.

To create a new artifact:

1. Click **Catalog > Create > Show More** to open the catalog browser Create Artifact window.



2. Select the artifact type that you want to create. The new artifact is displayed.

Or you can click the **Open create dialog for this artifact** icon on the artifacts collection page to create a new artifact.



4. Enter the name of your new artifact. You can enter values in the optional fields as per your

requirement.

SOAP Service Create new	
Name: * Description:	

5. In the Documentation area, you can attach or link associated documentation. Documents that you load are viewable on the Documentation tab.



6. To add documentation from an existing artifact, click **Add an existing artifact** icon. The Select Artifact window displays a list of documentation artifacts to choose from.

Select Artifacts		×
Enter text to search		
Artifact Type: < Any > V	Keywords:	~
Add Criteria Search Clear		
Name 🔺	Artifact Type	Version
🔘 🏠 FinPlanner BR.docx 📥	Documentation	1.0
🛛 🏠 FinPlanner HLD.docx 📥	Documentation	1.0
🗖 🏫 FinPlanner_SD.docx 🛓	Documentation	1.0
	Add Cancel	-

7. To add a link to documentation from a web resource, click **Link a Web Resource** icon. The Add Document Reference window opens and you can use it to enter the document URL, the document type, and any text or keywords that you want to appear with the link.

Add Docume	nt R	eference		×
Document URL				
Type:	Optional	< No Value >		
Link Text				
Advanced Options				
		•	Add	Cancel

8. To attach a documentation artifact directly, click Upload a Local File to the repository icon. The Attach Document window opens and you can use it to enter the document source location, the document type, the server folder, and the location where the document should reside after upload, as well as keywords that you want to enable so that users can find the document. In this example, the document types are shown in the image below:

Attach Documer	it	×
Source:	• File O URL	
		Browse
Type: Optional	< No Value > X	~
Server Folder:	< No Value >	∧ Select
Location after Upload:	Business Requirements	faultDomain
Advanced Options	Detailed Design	
	Functional Specification	
	Installation Instructions	pload Cancel
	Technical Specification	
	User Manual	-
	Analysis	~

9. Click **Save** to save the new artifact that you created. Your new artifact record is displayed and you can add or modify attributes and relationships using the tabs. Documentation artifacts are shown on the Documentation tab.

ATM Backend Ga	ateway, version 2.0 ial stage (start at: 5/12/15 4:52 AM)				Located in Demo Domain no votes 🔹 🗙 🗙 🗙
Overview	I × 0 ⊠ …				Favorite
Documentation	The ATM Locator API is a SOAF interoperable with your other service	P-based API allowing for a platforn ices.	m-independent implementation that is	Description (2000 characters max)	My Tasks Provide business requirements
Tree View	Edit				Last Edit HP Systinet Administrator
Lifecycle	Automated teller mad	chine		Specification	Lifecycle Compliance
Compliance	More	Initial			this lifecycle stage does not have any required technical policies.
Access Rights	Owner:	A HP Systinet Ad	ministrator		C Recalculate
History	WSDL Service Namespace:	http://www.acme.o	com/atmservice/		Keywords ATM, Gateway, Implementation
Show More	WSDL Service Name: Consumable:	AcmeATMTransat Yes	ioniface		Contacts
	Versions	HTTP			Subject Matter Expert / Architect Joe Architect
	Version	Lifecycle Stage	Remarks	Date	Business Owner Joe Service Provider
	2.0	Initial	Added SMS support	05/12/2015 05:29 PM	Developer
	1.0	Production		05/06/2015 05:16 PM	Patricia Developer
	Version Tree Show Audit Log	New Version			Joe Developer
	Subscriptions & Capaci	ty Management			🖋 Edit
	SL-Offering	SL-Offering Throughput	Number of approved contra	Used Throughput	
	Production Usage (Gateway)	250	0	0	
	UAT usage (Gateway)	3000	0	0	
	Totals		0.0	0.0	

Domain Visualization

HPE Systinet enables you to create or import artifacts in your working domain in which the artifacts are created or imported. Click *Located in <domain>* and select the working domain. You can click the domain name and change if required as depicted in the images below:



Overview	x 0	•••,
Documentation	No description entered	Notach Document
	Edit	💬 Request Subscription
Tree View	No specification entere	🗭 Export
Lifecycle	Lui	P New Version
	Revision: Domain:	
	Owner:	Afom Feed
History	Consumable:	Artifact Comments Feed
Show More	Versions	XML View
SHOW MOLE	Version	🔇 Change Domain
	1.0	Generate Document
	Version Tree Show Au	

To switch the working domain, click *Create new in <domain>* in Systinet header and select from the list. Thereafter, the artifacts are created or imported in the new working domain.



When you view artifacts through reports menu tab, the *Show data in <domain>* indicates the domains where artifacts are queried from. The selected domains are personalized for each user and are retained across Catalog collections, Navigator and Reports UI.



The data in Show data in <domain> is displayed as follows:

• All Non-reference

If As-is/To-be Architecture and Demo Data domain types are selected. This is the default domain (i.e. excluding Reference Model domains).

All Reference Models

If Reference Model domain type is selected.

All Architecture Domains

If As-is/To-be Architecture domain type is selected.

All Demo Data Domains

If Demo Data domain type is selected.

All Domains

If As-is/To-be Architecture, Demo Data and Reference Model domain types are selected.

All Reference Architecture Domains

If As-is/To-be Architecture and Reference Model domain types are selected.

All Reference Demo Domains

If Demo Data and Reference Model domain types are selected.

Selected Domains

If one or more domains are selected from list.

Note: Show data in <domains> is not applicable to the following reports:

- Policy reports (use Definition UI to set domains)
- Governance Dashboard
- Custom reports (use DQL or SQL definitions to query artifacts)

Searching for Artifacts

HPE Systinet enables you to perform artifact search quickly and easily from every page.

To perform a basic search:

1. Enter the text to search in the Search box.

Sys	tinet	CATALOG	REPORTS	NAVIGATOR	ADMINISTRATION	c	Q Search	Create new in Default Domain 🔻
Â	Artifacts 🗸	Create ∽ Impo	rt ~			☆ Favo	orites 🛛 🕲 Re	cent Documents

For example, if you search for the word "finance," a drop-down list of results is displayed.



2. Click on the desired artifact to open the Artifact details page.

To perform an advanced search:

1. Enter the text to search for in the Search box and press enter. The Search page is displayed showing the text you searched for. In this case, the search word "finance" is shown.

Search						
finance						
Artifact Type:	(Any>		Keywords:			~
Last Modified:	Any Time		Domain:		< All Domains	
Add Criteria Search Save Load	Clear				- Yu Domano	
<i>d</i> × ····						
Name 🔺	Artifact Type	Version	Owner	Domain		Rating P
Collecting Finance Information	Business Function	1.0	🖀 Andy Miller	Demo Example Domain		습습습습습
🗆 🏫 Corporate Finance System (APAC)	Application Component	1	Administrator	Demo Example Domain		****
Asset Class: TransactionalInternal Rate of Return: 6 uncertainty.Architecture Risk: Utilizes standard arch	 9.99%.Strategic Match: Direct achievement of a itecture.Definition Risk: Requirements are modera 	oal.Competitive Advantage: No client or market tely firm. Low probability of changes.Infrastruct	impact.Competitive Response: Postponement ure Risk: Small changes and additions are expe	will result in loss of competitive p cted.	ositioning.Produ	uctivity: 11 - 30% i
🛛 😭 Corporate Finance System (APAC)	Application Component Financial Pr.	. 1	Loseph Banks	Demo Example Domain		습습습습습
🔍 🏠 Corporate Finance System (APAC)	UI Application Interface	1.0	Loseph Banks	Demo Example Domain		습습습습습

- 2. To refine your query, use the additional boxes to add additional search terms, key words, or to add criteria.
- 3. Click **Save** to save the search for future use. The Save Search box is displayed.

Save Search		×
Name:	My Finance Search Shared search	
Search Criteria	finance	
-	Save	

4. Type the name for your search and then click **Save**. You can access your search at any time by navigating to the URL address provided. You can also share the search URL with others.



Once you have saved a search, it is displayed each time you click Load in the Search page.

Add Criteria	Search	Save	Load	Clear
			My Financ	e Search
			Manage S	aved
Ø 🗙 🚥	-			

Artifact View Page

An Artifact View page in the Catalog tab presents comprehensive details about each object in the Catalog. Also it provides access to functionality required to perform most of the actions related to individual artifacts.

Each artifact contains a large amount of detail, hence an Artifact View page is organized into a set of tabs enabling you to focus on particular aspects of the artifact.

Access Artifact View page by clicking the name of an artifact wherever it appears in the Catalog tab.

AmazonEC2, versi soap service, governed in Ini	on 2013.02 tial stage (start at: 5/11/15 3:50 PM)		
Overview	✐ 🗙 🙆 🖂 …		
Documentation	http://ec2.amazonaws.com/doc/2013-02 Edit	-01/ - AmazonEC2 (generated from WSDL))
Tree View	Amazon EC2 Amazon Elastic Compute Cloud (Amazo	n EC2) is a web service that provides resize	able compute capacity in the cloud.
Lifecycle	More		
Compliance	Owner: Domain Id:	Amazon Architect Amazon Web Services	
Access Rights	Consumable: WSDL Service Name:	No AmazonEC2	
History	WSDL Service Namespace: Transport:	http://ec2.amazonaws.com/doc/201 HTTP	3-02-01/
Show More	Versions		
	Version	Lifecycle Stage	Remarks
	2013.02	Initial	Support for copying an Al
	2012.12	Deprecated	Support for co
	2009.11	Retired	Support for S
	Version Tree Show Audit Log New Ve	ersion	

The page header displays the artifact name, artifact type, and artifact ratings. For details about ratings, see "How to Use Ratings" on page 184.

The Artifact page contains all available tabs. When you click **Show More** further tabs are displayed.

Note: The available tabs and functionality vary according to role, artifact type, and permissions.

Artifact View Page Tabs

Tabs	Tab Content
"Overview Tab" on the next page	The most important information about the artifact, such as its major properties, the most important relationships, overviews of events, tasks, last edits, overview of policy compliance and keywords.
"Documentation Tab" on page 25	Manage the documents associated with the artifact.
"Tree View Tab" on page 27	Shows an artifact structure browser. It either displays composite structure or impact report. In addition to artifact basic information (such as name, owner and type) the browser captures lifecycle information such as the current stage.

Artifact View Page Tabs,	continued
--------------------------	-----------

Tabs	Tab Content
"Lifecycle Tab" on page 27	Information related to the artifact lifecycle, provides a graphical view of lifecycle process showing the details of each stage.
"Compliance Tab" on page 28	A detailed breakdown of the current policy compliance status of the artifact.
"Access Rights Tab" on page 29	View and manage the access rights for the artifact.
"History Tab" on page 30	Lists artifact revisions enables users to compare selected two revisions and see the differences between them.
"Events Tab" on page 31	Contains all events related to the artifact.
"Contacts Tab" on page 31	View and manage the contacts for the artifact.
"Relationships Tab" on page 32	View all the incoming and outgoing relationships for the artifact.

Overview Tab

The Overview tab is the default view of an artifact and contains important information about the artifact and its operations.

Overview	∦ 🗙 🧿 🖂 …				_	Favorite
Documentation	This is a proposal of the speci operations and API design follo types and HATEOAS.	fication for CCUE - Tag Manage ows REST architectural style prin	ment API. The API provides CRUE	Description (2000 chara	acters max)	My Tasks No tasks defined
Tree View	Edit					Last Edi HP Systinet Administrato
Lifecycle	This is a proposal of the spontenergy More	ecification for CCUE - Tag Mana	agement API	S	pecification -	Lifecycle Compliance
Compliance	Stage:	Production			th	equired technical policies.
Access Rights	Domain Id:	HP Software Prod	lucts			C Recalculate
History	Consumable: Versions	Yes				Keywords CCUE, Tag management, API, HP Sofware
Show More	Version	Lifecycle Stage	Remarks	Date		🖋 Edit
	1.0	Production	Initial version	12/14/2015 01:46 PM		Contacts
	Version Tree Show Audit Log	New Version				Administrator
	Subscriptions & Capaci	ty Management				HP Systinet Administrator
	SL-Offering	SL-Offering Throughput	Number of approved contra	Used Throughput		Operations Manager HP Software Application Provider
	Bronze Quota	1000	0	0		Subject Matter Expert / Architect
	Gold Quota	2000	2	1500		HP Software Architect
	Silver Quota	1500	1	1000		Developer
	Totals		3.0	2500.0		HP Software Developer
	HTTP Requests					🖋 Edit
	Resource	HTTP Met URL Patte	rn 🔺 Name		Try	
	Tags	GET (/[context]]?)/api/tag List Tag	s		

Overview	Tab	Content
•••••		•••••••

Content	Description		
Description	The description of the artifact with	n 2000 characters max	ζ.
Specification	The first sentence of artifact's spe to open the Specification tab.	ecification. To view mo	ore detail, click More link
Properties	The first section of the page displa options to compare versions, and	ays the properties of th set the provider.	ne artifact including
Subscription and Capacity Management	Displays a table of Subscription a throughput and availability information	nd Capacity Managen ation of Service Level	nent report with used Offerings.
Environments	Displays a table consisting of Nar Click the Add Endpoint or Create respectively.	me, Endpoint URL, Tr Endpoint link to add ar	ansport, and Clone. nd create Endpoints,
	For more information, see "Enviro	nment" on page 78.	
Relationships	The important relationship, and see Click Show them all to show the	ervices and its implem full relationships sect	entations are displayed. ion.
Latest Events	Displays the latest actions affecting the artifact. Click More to open the Events tab or the Tool icon to customize the Events component content. For details, see "Events Tab" on page 31 and "How to Use Events" on page 181.		
Context Actions	Displays set of context actions for current status, and your role.	r the artifact relevant t	to the artifact type, its
	Overview	s × 0 🖂	•••
	Documentation	No description entered	Notach Document
	Tree View	No specification entere	Request Subscription Export
	Lifecycle	Edit Revision:	P New Version
	Access Rights	Domain: Owner:	Atom Feed
	History	Consumable:	Q Artifact Comments Feed
	Show More	Versions	XML View
		Version	Change Domain
		I.U Version Tree Show Au	Generate Document

Overview	Tab	Content.	continued
010111011	100	00110110	oomanaoa

Content	Description
	The available actions include the following:
	• Edit - Edit artifact.
	• Delete - Delete the artifact and its sub-artifacts.
	• Navigator - Switch to the graphical navigator view for the artifact.
	 Send Notification - Send an email notification to artifact stakeholders. For details, see "How to Use Notifications" on page 179.
	• Attach Document - Attach a local or remote document to the artifact.
	 Change WSDL - Attach a new WSDL to a SOAP Service using document upload functionality.
	Request Subscription - Create a subscription for the artifact.
	• Export - Create ZIP archive for the artifact and its sub-artifacts.
	• New Version - Create new version of the artifact and its sub-artifacts.
	Atom Feed - Publish feed for artifact changes or artifact comments. For details, see "How to Use Feeds" on page 185.
	 Artifact Comments Feed - Subscribing to the feed allows you to view the latest updated comments on the artifacts.
	• XML View - Shows the code view of the artifact.
	Change Domain - Move the artifact to another domain.
	 Generate Document - Displays the API document associated with the artifact.
Last Edit	Displays the user and time for the last change to the artifact.
Policy Compliance	Displays the current compliance status with an option to recalculate it.
My Tasks	Displays any actions you may be required to perform related to the artifact. For details, see "How to Use Tasks" on page 183.
Add to Favorites	Click this button to add the artifact to Favorites. Once the artifact is added, the button changes to Favorite button instead. Click this button again to remove it from Favorites.
Keywords	Displays any custom tags applied to the artifact with the option to edit them.
Contacts	Displays the contacts for the artifact with the option to edit them.

Documentation Tab

The Documentation tab provides a place to view and manage the documents associated with the artifact. There are 3 sub-tabs as follows:

Attached Documents

Attached Documents are Documentation artifacts associated with this artifact. For example, a project planning documents of a project.

Overview	Specification Attached Documents Disc	cussion		
Documentation	1 🖬 % + × 🖺			
Financial Profile	□ Name ▲	Туре	Date	Version
Tree View	FinPlanner HLD.docx	Analysis	1/20/2014	1.0
1. Marca and a	FinPlanner BR.docx	Business Requirements	1/20/2014	1.0
Lifecycle				
Compliance				
Access Rights				

Attached Documents Sub-tab Content

Content	Description
Documentation Table	Displays list of documents associated with the artifact with functionality to manage them and add more.

Specification

The Specification sub-tab provides a place to view and manage a detailed description of the artifact including rich text and HTML support.

Overview	Specification Attached Documents Discussion			
Documentation				
Tree View	Account Service Features:			
Lifecycle	Balance checkCash withdrawal			
Compliance	 Savings Bank Transfers Overdraft Facilities 24 Hours Account Access 			
Access Rights	24 Hours Account Access			

Content	Description
Detailed Description	Displays full description of the artifact.
Edit Specification	Changes the Detailed Description area to an input form with rich text and HTML support.

Specification Sub-tab Content

Discussion

This sub-tab provides a forum for users to comment and discuss the artifact.

Overview	Specification Attached Documents Discussion
Documentation	
Financial Profile	
Tree View	Admin Administration Utilit Administrator, 3:10 PM
Lifecycle	Admin Administration
Compliance	Utilities ← Reply ♂ Edit ★ Delete
Access Rights	

Discussion Sub-tab Content

Content	Description
Discussion Threads	The main part of the page displays discussion threads and comments about the artifact with options to Reply , Edit , and Delete comments.
Context Actions	Displays a set of discussion context actions for the artifact. The available actions include the following:
	• Show List / Threads - Organize the discussion by comments or by threads.
	• Sort - In the list view, organize the comments by newest or oldest first.
	• Add Comment - Start a new discussion about the artifact.
	Delete All Comments - Remove all comments and threads about the artifact (administrator only).
	• Artifact Comments Feed - Obtain a feed URL that you can use in a feed reader or in the Reports Tab. For details, see "How to Use Feeds" on page 185.

For details about using the Discussion features, see "How to Use Comments" on page 178.

Tree View Tab

The Tree View tab allows you to explore the impact and dependency of the current artifact.

The default Dependency shows the tree view of artifacts that the current artifact depends on.

Overview	Dependencies				A Show Impact
Documentation	Showing Dependencies of: Analyst Research				Show Lifecycle Tree
Cloud Transformation				Filter by Name: Go	Navigator
Financial Profile	Analyst Research	Candidate (@ In Progress)	Application Component Lifecycle	0.2	
	H III Persons (8)				
Tree View	Business Objects	Candidate (@ In Progress)	Application Component Lifecycle	7.4	
	E 📲 Application Components (3)				
Lifecvcle	eExpense	Candidate (@ In Progress)	Application Component Lifecycle	5.4	
	Forms Magic	Candidate (@ In Progress)	Application Component Lifecycle	5.4	
Compliance	(#) WallChart	Candidate (@ In Progress)	Application Component Lifecycle	5.3	
Compliance	ap109vm7.c0a.com			1.0	
	sv109vm5.c0a.com			1.0	

Tree View Tab Content

Content	Description
Filter	Use the filter to highlight specific artifacts from the tree.
Artifact Tree	The tree displays impacting artifacts in Dependency view or impacted artifacts in the Impact view, organized by artifact type. Expand groups of artifact types and click artifact names to view their details.
Show Impact	Click to see the impact the current artifact has on the tree of artifacts.
Show Lifecycle Tree	Click to switch over and view the tree of artifacts that follow the current artifact in the lifecycle process.
Navigator	Open the graphical navigator view for the artifact.

Lifecycle Tab

The Lifecycle tab provides a visualization of the life cycle process to which the artifact belongs, and the functionality required to participate in its life cycle.

Overview	Application Component Lifecycle	G Move to
Documentation	Candidate> Development> Production Shared> Retired	Set Stage/Process
Cloud Transformation	Cancelled	End Governance
Financial Profile		Lifecycle Compliance
Tree View	I of 1 Tasks Incomplete	C Recalculate (1) Details
Lifecycle	Tasks	Policy Compliance
Compliance	B Provide business requirements Catalog User	Application Architecture Data 100 % Quality Architecture Duplication 100 %
Access Rights	POICIES No items defined.	Managing Lifecycle
History	demoapprover O Vote Required, Passive Approval After 5 Days	This page enables you to manage the governance lifecycle of this artifact.

Content	Description
Lifecycle Process	The top part of the view displays the lifecycle stages for the lifecycle process the artifact belongs to. The larger stage box is the current stage in progress and the box highlighted in green matches the stage detail information below. Click a stage to view its details and use the arrow controls to view stages that are off the page.
Stage Details	The large green box displays the stage details for the stage selected above. For the current stage, the details start with a summary of the current lifecycle status. For all stages the details box displays the tasks, policies, and stage approvers. As a participant in the lifecycle you can use the stage details box to mark lifecycle tasks as complete, to validate policies associated with the stage, and to approve or reject approval requests.
Context Actions	Displays a set of context actions for the artifact relevant to its current lifecycle status and your role. The available actions include the following:
	• Start Governance - Put a non-governed artifact into an appropriate lifecycle process.
	End Governance - Remove the artifact from a lifecycle process.
	 Set Stage/Process - Change the current stage and lifecycle process for the artifact (administrator only).
	 Request Approval - Request approval for the current lifecycle stage for the artifact.
	Cancel Approval - Cancel an approval request.
	• Notify Approvers - Send a notification by email to the stage approvers.
	• History - View the lifecycle history for the artifact.
Compliance	Displays the current compliance status with an option to recalculate it.

Artifact Lifecycle Tab Content

Compliance Tab

The Compliance tab provides a detailed view of the policies that applies to the current lifecycle stage that the artifact belongs to with an option to view the XML representation of the resources that the policies validate.

Billing Gen II, version	on 2 Iopment stage (start at: 5/5/15 6:50 PM)					Located in Demo Domain no votes ★★★★
Overview	Lifecycle Compliance					
Documentation	This artifact is involved in an active lifecycle process. Here you can review the status of all policy assertions needed to be evaluated so that you can advance into new lifecycle stage.					
Tree View	Current Status: 100%					
Thee view	Policy 🔺	Туре	Status	Errors	Warnings	Validated Tasks
Lifoquelo	All Application Components Developed	Required	Not Applicable	0	0	Build and test application components
	Policy Compliance					
Compliance	Check he aggregated policy violations from all known policy reports. You can review the current policy reports and also define a new one. You can do that on the "Reports" tab by selecting Create under All Reports.					y selecting Create under All Reports.
Access Rights	Average Compliance: 100% Issues Found: 0					
History	Name					Compliance 🔺
	Applications Compliance					100 %
Show More						

Compliance Tab Content

Content	Description
Show	Switch between the Policies view and the Annotated Sources view.
Policies	The table of currently applicable policies, their type, and current status.
Annotated Sources	Provides a detailed XML view of the relevant resources that the policies validate. This view is most useful to assertion and WSDL developers resolving validation errors.

Access Rights Tab

The Access Rights tab provides a detailed view of the users, groups, and roles with permissions for the artifact and access management actions for users with appropriate permissions.

Billing Gen II, versit	Billing Gen II, version 2 Leasted in Demo Domain Application, governed in Development stage (start at: 5/5/15 6:50 PM) no votes no votes				
Overview	🖉 🗶 🖹			📢 Share	
Documentation	Entity	Туре	Access	Check Access of	
	system#registered	Group	Read	Owner	
Tree View	Business Analyst	Role	Read	🛔 jprojectmanager	
	Project Managers	Role	🖋 Read/Write	Change	
Lifecycle	A Provider	Role	Read	Managing Access	
Compliance				This page displays currently assigned access rights and allows their	
Access Rights				management.	
History				Note: If a Lifecycle is assigned to this artifact, manual changes to access rights will be overwritten without	
Show More				notice.	

Content	Description				
Access Rights Table	Displays the users, groups, and roles with permissions for the artifact and their rights. Users with appropriate permissions can manage the access rights using the table actions.				

Access Rights Tab Content

Content	Description
Context Actions	 Displays a set of discussion context actions for the artifact depending on your role and artifact permissions. The available actions include the following: Share - Make the artifact visible to all users by giving them all read permission. For details, see "How to Share Artifacts" on page 188. Check Access Of - Verify the access rights for a particular user.
Owner	Displays the current user, group, or role ownership for the artifact with the option to change it for users with appropriate permissions.

Access Rights Tab Content, continued

History Tab

The History tab provides a detailed view of the revisions of the artifact with functionality to compare revisions.

Overview	2						
Documentation	Revision	Date	Actor	Lifecycle Process	Lifecycle Stage	Lifecycle Event	Comment
	3	Mon Jan 16 07:29:	📥 david	Application Lifecy	Deprecated	Approval Cancelled	Auto Request Ap
Tree View	3	Mon Jan 16 07:29:	📥 demouser	Application Lifecy	Deprecated	Entered	
	3	Mon Jan 16 07:29:	🛓 demouser	Application Lifecy	Production	Moved to Depreca	
Lifecycle	2	Mon Jan 16 07:26:	La Administrator	Application Lifecy	Production	Entered	
Compliance	2	Mon Jan 16 07:26:	🛓 Administrator	Application Lifecy	Development	Moved to Product	
Compliance	2	Mon Jan 16 07:26:	占 Administrator	Application Lifecy	Development	Approved	Auto Request Ap
Access Rights	2	Mon Jan 16 07:26:	🛓 Administrator	Application Lifecy	Development	Entered	
	2	Mon Jan 16 07:26:	Administrator	Application Lifecy	Development	Moved to Develop	
History	2	Mon Jan 16 07:22:	🛓 demoapprover	Application Lifecy	Development	Approval Rejected	Auto Request Ap
	2	Mon Jan 16 07:22:	🛓 susan	Application Lifecy	Development	Approved	Auto Request Ap
Show More	2	Mon Jan 16 07:21:	🛓 david 🚢 susan	Application Lifecy	Development	Entered	
	2	Mon Jan 16 07:21:	📥 david 🚢 susan	Application Lifecy	Candidate	Moved to Develop	
	2	Mon Jan 16 07:04:	🛓 david 🚢 susan	Application Lifecy	Candidate	Approved	Auto Request Ap
	1	Mon Jan 16 06:58:	Administrator	Application Lifecy	Candidate	Entered	

History Tab Content

Content	Description
Revisions Table	Displays a list of the revisions with details about the time of the change, who performed it, and lifecycle details. The Actor column reflects the name of the approver, name of the person who rejected, the name of the person who moved the lifecycle from one stage to another, and name of the person who cancelled. In case there are three users, two of them have approved and one of them has rejected, the name of the approver and the person who rejected will be displayed as separate rows.

Events Tab

The Events tab provides a detailed view of the actions performed on the artifact.

Overview						
Documentation	Actor: Me C Others (Select All Clear)					
Tree View	Event	Actor	Date 🗸	Туре		
	Artifact security for Application 'Billing Gen II' was changed.	New 🚔 admin	4:26 PM	Artifact Changes		
Lifecycle	+ Application 'Billing Gen II' was created.	New 🚢 admin	4:26 PM	Artifact Changes		
	Governance was started for Application 'Billing Gen II'.	New 🚢 admin	4:26 PM	Artifact Changes		
Compliance						
Access Rights						
History						
Events						
Show More						

Events Tab Content

Content	Description
Events Table	Displays a list of the actions performed on the artifact with details about the time of the change, who performed it, and the type of action. Click an event to view the relevant artifact details or use the Actor filter to reduce the set of events to those you performed or those performed by other users.

Contacts Tab

The Contacts tab provides a detailed view and management options for contacts for the artifact organized by their contact type.

Overview	Business Owner			
Documentation	0			
Tree View	Technical Owner			
Lifecycle				
Compliance				
Access Rights	Financial Analyst			
History	0			
Contacts	Subject Matter Expert / Architect			
Show More	Operations Manager			
	•			
	Developer			
	Name 🔺	Email	Phone	Location
	🗖 🏠 Joe Developer	jDeveloper@acme.com	+333333333	
	🗖 🏠 Patricia Developer	pDeveloper@acme.com	+3111111	
	Project Manager			
	•			

Contacts Tab Content

Content	Description
Contacts	The set of contacts for the artifact organized by contact role. Users with appropriate permissions can manage the contacts.
Send Message	Send a notification email to selected users. For details, see "How to Use Notifications" on page 179.

Relationships Tab

The Relationships tab provides a detailed view of the related artifacts organized by outgoing and incoming relationships.

Overview	Outgoing				
Documentation					
Tree View	Relationship	Artifact	Туре	Version	
	Profile history of	A/R Billing Upgrade	Project	1.0	
Lifoquelo	Realizes	0.0 APQC General PCF 5.2	Business Process	1.0	
	Incoming				
Compliance					
Access Rights	🗌 Relationship 🔺	Artifact	Туре	Version	
History	Associated with	Finance Review	Application Service	1.0	
Relationships					

Content	Description
Relationship Tables	Displays the set of outgoing and incoming relationships with details of the related artifact, its type and version, and the relationship type.

Relationships Tab Content

Relationship Editor

The HPE Systinet relationship editor enables you to view and modify artifact relationships directly. The relationships are shown on the Overview tab view. You can add new or manage relationships by using the Relationship tab view.

This section covers the following topics:

- "Understanding Relationship Types" below
- "Using Relationships Editor" on page 36
- "Adding an Artifact Relationship" on page 36
- "Removing an Artifact Relationship" on page 40
- "Adding and Removing a Shortcut" on page 41
- "Non-Compliant Relationships" on page 1

Understanding Relationship Types

The relationships between artifacts represent one of the most significant aspects of authoring and artifact management. For each artifact type, the SDM Model defines a set of relationships where each named relationship defines a link between that artifact type and another artifact type which is expected to be associated with it.

Relationships can be broadly divided into the following types:

1. Dependencies

A Dependency is a directed relationship indicating that an artifact uses another artifact. For example, Service A may have a depends on relationship to Service B to indicate that Service A uses Service B and that any change to the Service B should take into account the impact on Service A. Contract relationships are a specific example of dependency relationships indicating the contractual use of an artifact according to specified usage terms. Various functions in the UI

offer an Include Dependencies option (for example, Export to ZIP Archive) which takes these dependencies into account when performing actions on an artifact.

The inverse of a dependency is an Impact. Impact enables you to view the dependent artifacts which may be affected by a change to an artifact. The most useful way to view impact and dependencies is in the Navigator view.

2. Aggregations

Aggregation relationships enable a set of related artifacts to be represented as a single abstraction in order to perform operations on the entire set. For example, a service aggregation consists of not only the service itself, but also its implementations, operations, endpoints, SLOs, documentation, etc.

3. Unclassified Associations

In addition to relationships in the public model, there are additional system relationships which Systinet automatically applies in specific circumstances. For example, when you create a new version of an artifact, a previous version relationship links the new version to the old one. This relationship enables you to notify users of the old version when the new version is ready to use.

The user interface provides extensive support for named relationship types, showing the most important relationship in the Overview tab of Artifact view page.

Relationships	
Operations:	CartClear, CartModify, CartCreate, CartAdd and 5 more
Used by Consumers:	Link new, Link existing
Provided by Application/Organization:	AWSECommerce
Realizes Requirements:	Link new, Link existing
Definition:	AWSECommerceService.wsdl
SCA Definition:	Link new, Link existing
Service Level Offerings:	Link new, Link existing
Provided Requests:	Link new, Link existing
Provision Contracts:	Link new, Link existing
Provider owner to artifacts:	Link new, Link existing
Provided contracts:	Link new, Link existing
Runtime Policies:	Link new, Link existing
SOAP Interfaces Of:	Link new, Link existing
In Services:	Link new, Link existing
Provided by:	Link new, Link existing

There are additional rarely used relationship types that are not defined on this artifact yet. Show them all...

Each relationship that you create for an artifact has another paired artifact. Each member of the paired relation is assigned a unique name, representing the outgoing and incoming relation between the artifacts.

To explain better, an outgoing relation between artifacts A and B automatically implies the corresponding incoming relation between B and A. Outgoing relations are properties of source artifact (A), whereas incoming relations are projections of the outgoing relationships with target artifact (B).

You might want to assess the outgoing and incoming relationships listed for a selected artifact, so as to browse through the data and learn the relationship structure of the artifact.

To view the outgoing and incoming relationships of a selected artifact, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the artifact in the Catalog Browser or in the Navigator, and then open the artifact.
- 2. Click the **Relationships** tab. The artifact's relationships are shown, grouped by direction.

ASAC, version 1 Application Component, governed in Cancelled stage (start at: 8/11/15/200 PM)					
Overview	Outgoing				
Documentation					
Cloud Transformation	🔲 🔹 Relationship 🔺	Artifact	Type V	ersion	
Financial Profile	T -		T -		
	Assigned From	Dedicated Hardware Hosting	Data Center 1.	0	
Tree View	Provided by	Mary River	Person		
	Provided by	Mary River	Person	Person	
Lifecycle	Provided by	Mary River	Person		
C	Provided by	Mary River	Person	Person	
Compliance	Provided by	Dave Olson	Person		
Access Rights	Provided by	Dave Olson	Person		
	Provided by	Dave Olson	Person		
History	Provided by	Andy Miller	Person		
	Provided by	Andy Miller	Person		
Relationships	I Page 1 of 3 Solution Solution C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	e Size			
Show More	Show More Incoming				
	Relationship	Artifact	Туре	Version	
	Composes	GetASAC	Application Interface	1.0	
	Financial Profile	ASAC	Application Component Financial Profile	1	
	Survey	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Technical Assessme	Survey	1.0	
	Survey	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Business Assessmen	Survey	1.0	

Using Relationships Editor

The Overview tab shows all related artifacts of the current artifact under Relationships section. By default, only commonly used relationships are shown. However, you can click *Show them all...* to show all relationships that are compliant for the current artifact.

If you have many related artifacts of a single relationship type, then by default only 4 most recently modified artifacts are visible. To view all related artifacts click the **More...** button that opens related artifacts in table view.

The quantity of related artifacts shown by default (4) can be customized by editing the value of system property platform.ui.relationship.artifact.max. For details, see *How to Manage System Properties* in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.

Adding an Artifact Relationship

To add relationships to existing artifacts or create new artifacts to relate to:
- 1. Select the artifact in the Catalog Browser or in the Navigator, and then open the artifact.
- 2. There are Link new and Link existing buttons available next to the relationship type that you can use to create a new artifact or link to existing artifacts.

Relationships	
Operations:	CancelBundleTask
Used by Consumers:	Expenses
Provided by Application/Organization:	ACME CRM Services
Realizes Requirements:	Link new, Link existing
Definition:	Link existing
SCA Definition:	Link existing
Service Level Offerings:	Bronze Quota
In Services:	Link new, Link existing
Provided by:	Link new, Link existing
Endpoints:	Link new, Link existing

3. When you click the Link new button, the available artifact types will appear in a menu. Only an applicable artifact type is visible when you click the Link new or Link existing buttons. After establishing a relationship to one or more artifact(s), the menu is replaced with a list of existing relationships. You can link to an existing application or a component.

For example, when you click Link new in the Endpoints relationship type, the menu displays the available artifact types.

Relationships		
Operations:		CancelBundleTask
Used by Consumers:		Expenses
Provided by Application/Organi	zation:	ACME CRM Services
Realizes Requirements:		Link new, Link existing
Definition:		Link existing
SCA Definition:		Link existing
Service Level Offerings:		Bronze Quota …
In Services:		Link new, Link existing
Provided by:		Link new, Link existing
Endpoints:		Link new Link existing
	File Endpoint	Enginoint >
There are additional rarely use	HTTP Endpoin	at are not defined on this
Last Login: Jan 5, 2017 10:57:06 AM Development Company, L.P.	SOAP Endpoint	t

4. For artifact types that already contain data, the Link new and Link existing buttons will be hidden from view. You can add more artifacts to this relationship type by clicking on the relationship type name. You will see a separate menu for managing the relationship, which includes the option to view the relationships in a table view:

Relationships	
Operations:	CancelBundleTask
Used by Consumers:	Expenses ··· + Link new
Provided by Application/Organization:	ACME CRM Services 💊 Link existing
Realizes Requirements:	Link new, Link exist
Definition:	Link existing
SCA Definition:	Link existing
Service Level Offerings:	Bronze Quota
In Services:	Link new, Link existing
Provided by:	Link new, Link existing
Endpoints:	Link new, Link existing

5. If you choose to view in Table View, each row has a context menu to open an artifact in the Catalog or Navigator:

"Add a ne	ew pet to the store"	Managed by		×
+ <i>▼</i> % <i>▼</i>	×			
Name 1		Туре	Version	Stage
ALM 12 - De	 Open in Catalog Open in Navigator 	ALM 12 Server	N/A	
<	>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>		D	isplaying 1 - 1 of 1
				Close

Note: When you link more than 10 existing artifacts to a relationship, the operation is asynchronous, i.e., the relationship is not updated immediately after the page load, instead the progress is displayed. Once the asynchronous operation is complete, a summary information is displayed.

Otherwise, the operation is synchronous, i.e., the relationship is updated immediately. Both synchronous and asynchronous operations are applicable for deleting artifacts from a relationship.

Removing an Artifact Relationship

To remove existing artifact relationships:

- 1. Select the artifact in the Catalog Browser or in the Navigator, and then open the artifact.
- 2. From the Overview tab, you are able to remove the link between the selected artifact and another artifact. For removing a specific artifact link from a current artifact, right-click on the artifact you want to remove, and click **Unlink from this artifact** to remove artifact relationships.

Relationships	
Operations:	CancelBundleTask
Used by Consumers:	🖸 Open in Catalog
Provided by Application/Organization:	Ø Open in Navigator
Realizes Requirements:	 Unlink from this artifact.
Definition:	
SCA Definition:	Link existing
Service Level Offerings:	Bronze Quota …
In Services:	Link new, Link existing
Provided by:	Link new, Link existing
Endpoints:	Link new, Link existing

3. You can also remove a set of artifacts linked to a the selected artifact while in the Table view, by

	•		
+ · & · ×			
Name 1	Туре	Version	Stage
GetActualBalance	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
GetAuthForEMobileTransation	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
GetAuthForEPaymentTransaction	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
GetAvailableBalance	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
GetTransactionAuthorization	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
ProcessEMobileTransation	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
ProcessEPaymentTransaction	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
ProcessTransation	SOAP Operation	N/A	Production
			>
(< < • > > > >	C		Displaying 1 - 8 of 8
			Close

selecting each artifact you wish to remove from the list.

Adding and Removing a Shortcut

You can create shortcut without using the Relationship Editor or Relationships tab of an artifact.

To add shortcut, follow these steps:

Note: Make sure that the canBeEntered attribute is set to *true* in the shortcut definition.

1. Open the Overview page of the source or target artifact in a shortcut.

Relationships			
Operations:	ProcessEMobileTransatio	on, GetTransactionAuthorization, GetA	
Used by Consumers:	Billing Gen II, Core Banking		
Provided by Application/Organization:	ATM Backend Gateway -		
Realizes Requirements:	Add SMS Support	+ Link new >	
Definition:	ATMTransation.wsdl	℅ Link existing >	
SCA Definition:	Link existing	Table view	
Service Level Offerings:	Production Usage (Gatev	way)	
Runtime Policies:	Link new, Link existing		
In Services:	Link new, Link existing		
Provided by:	ACME Banking Services		

2. Click the icon next to the shortcut.

Note: There must be at least one shortcut created for the artifact.

- 3. Select the Link new to create a shortcut to a new artifact.
- 4. Select Link existing to create a shortcut to an existing artifact.

Note: When opening the source artifact of a shortcut, Link new/Link existing creates a shortcut to the target artifact and vice versa.

To remove a shortcut, follow these steps:

1. Right-click the target artifact and select Unlink from this artifact

or

Alternatively, from relationship table view of shortcut relationship, select target artifact(s) and click **x**.

Note:

- Calculated shortcuts based on relationships with other artifacts cannot be removed.
- Shortcuts created by Shortcuts Consolidation Task cannot be removed. These shortcuts have at least one path which is resolved from shortcut definitions.

Publish Content

HPE Systinet enables you to upload data content with specific support for definition documents that describe application infrastructures. Systinet processes the content of the document and enables you to create or modify artifacts to represent this infrastructure in Systinet.

Systinet can process the following definition document types:

- Web Service Definition Language documents (WSDL)
- Web Application Description Language documents (WADL)
- Swagger
- Business Process Execution Language documents (BPEL)
- XML Process Definition Language documents (XPDL)

Note: The WADL file containing the DDT code inline is not allowed to be parsed due to security risk. To enable parsing of the data we need to change the value of platform.publishing.disallowDoctypeDecl system property to false.

To publish the data content, follow these steps:

 In the homepage, depending on the data content to be published, click the Publish WSDL/WADL/Swagger or Publish XPDL/BPEL or Import > File, respectively. The File Import window is displayed.

File Import	
You can create Artifacts by uploa the UI via artifacts, that have bee	ding data files such as WSDL, WADL, Swagger, XML Schemas, SCA, BPEL or XPDL process definitions. Each file is stored within system and accessible through the Server Folder it was stored in or n created for it.
File 🗸	Browse _
Server Folder:	/defaultDomain Select _
Location after Upload:	http://puevmsysdema05.hpeswlab.net.8080/systinet/platform/rest/location/defaultDomain
Advanced Options	
Local Changes:	⊙ Keep ○ Overwrite
Process Archive Content:	
BPEL Decomposition:	Business Processes O None
WSDL Decomposition:	O Services 💿 Implementations O None
Service Type:	Business service ~
L	Business service
	Application service
Import Cancel	Infrastructure service

2. Select File or URL from the drop down list.

If you select **File**, click **Browse** and select the file. If you select **URL**, enter the URL in the text box.

3. Select the **Server Folder**.

4. Click Advanced Options and select from the following options:

Option	Description
Local Changes	Select whether to preserve local copies that are different or overwrite them.
Process Archive Content	Select to extract an archive and publish all the content (default option). If not selected, the archive is published as a Documentation artifact with attached data content.
	Note: By default, this functionality supports ZIP, JAR, EAR, WAR, and BPR. Other archive types are not processed by the publisher and are published as documentation artifacts with attached data content. The administrator can configure the types of archive that the publisher processes.
BPEL Decomposition	Select whether to create Business Process artifacts defined by a BPEL document.
WSDL	Select a WSDL processing level from the following options:
Decomposition	 Services - Process any WSDLs, create all defined content and create business services to associate with any newly created implementations.
	 Implementations - Process any WSDLs and create all defined content. Business services are not created.
	 None - Publish any WSDLs as artifacts with attached data content. The WSDL files are not processed.
Service Type	Select a service type from the available options:
	• Business Service - A specific business function that offers an interface to users for interaction which is designed for reuse in multiple applications.
	 Application Service - A business function associated with a specific application. Typically identified and defined by application developers and specific to the application scope.
	 Infrastructure Service - A technical support function, such as authentication or logging, designed for reuse in multiple applications and services.

5. Click **Import**. The import report page opens showing the publishing task in progress.

The import page displays the result of the publishing process, showing all files including any additional files referenced by the uploaded file.

This process executes as a bulk operation. An information bar opens informing you that the operation is in progress with a progress bar with options to Stop the operation or to Notify Me when the operation is complete.

The operation executes asynchronously, so you can navigate away and perform other tasks while the operation completes.

For more information, see "Publishing" on page 79.

For information on HTTP Status Codes and HTTP Headers, see Apendix A and Appendix B, respectively.

Chapter 3: Navigator

The Navigator tab graphically represents the content of a catalog. The Navigator displays the structure and dependencies of the applications, services, and processes in the Catalog, rather than focusing on a details of single artifact.

Navigator provides an alternative pictorial view, to explore, browse, and traverse across the Catalog content.



The main features of the Navigator are as follows:

Catalog Browsing

Allows you to browse the content of the Catalog in an easy and quick manner.

Layouts

Enables you to view artifact graphs by selecting different layouts. You can organize the artifacts into various structures to view a particular aspect of their relationship. There is also the option to create customized layouts if you wish to focus on specific relationship structures.

Filters

Provides a set of filters on artifacts of each architectural layer, and the option to create custom filters.

• Save Graphs

Allows you to save a particular graph with the selected layout. You can return to the saved graph at a later time. The graph is interactive and lets you move or expand it, or collapse nodes to change the appearance.

Impact Highlights

Enables you to view the impact of change to an artifact (impact analysis).

Screenshots

Enables you to create an image file with graph layouts.

Understanding the Navigator Graph

Each node in the artifact represents an artifact or a group of artifacts, denoted by an artifact icon.

The content of the graph is determined by the filter. The navigator contains a number of default filters targeted at particular user roles and you can create your own custom filters.

The artifact and relationship annotations are determined by the Settings control.

The structure of the graph is determined by the layout. The navigator contains a number of default layouts highlighting particular relationship structures and you can create your own custom layouts.

An artifact node can display in the following ways:

AmazonEC2 SOAP Service	A fully expanded node representing a single artifact with all its relationships expanded and shown in the graph. This diagram shows a SOAP Service with several outgoing and incoming relationships. The relationship types are labeled and color-coded as shown in the Relationships information box.
2009-11-30.ec2.wsdl	A node marked with a green flag. This node is the subject of the Artifact Info box. Click a node to make it the subject for the Artifact Info box.
CRM Project	A collapsed node representing a single artifact with further relationships collapsed and hidden in the graph. This diagram shows a Service with an outgoing relationship. Further relationships are collapsed and represented by +. Double-click the node, use the Expand Tree node context action, or the Expand Tree action in the Artifact Info box to view these relationships.

A collapsed node representing a group of artifacts.This diagram shows a set of operations collapsed into a single group. Double-click the group, use the Expand node context actions, or the Expand actions in the Artifact Group Info box to view the individual artifacts in the group.Image: the problem of the state of the group of the current impact view.Image: the problem of the current impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following:Image: the state of the current impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following:Image: the state of the current impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following:Image: the state of the current impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following:Image: the state of the current impact of the artifact node and select Impact Highlight.Image: the artifact is highlighted with an orange flag and an Impact legend box opens displaying the selected artifact. All related artifacts that are potentially impacted by a change to this artifact are highlighted, and all other artifacts are dimmed.Remove the impact highlighted, and all other artifacts are dimmed.Remove the impact highlighted artifact and select Impact Highlight.		
 A node marked with an orange flag. This node is the subject of the current impact view. To View the Impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following: In the Navigator graph, right-click and open the context menu for the artifact node and select Impact Highlight. In the Artifact Info box, click Show Impact. The artifact is highlighted with an orange flag and an Impact legend box opens displaying the selected artifact. All related artifact are highlighted, and all other artifacts are dimmed. Remove the impact highlighting by closing the Impact legend box, or right-click and open the context menu for the highlighted artifact and select Impact Highlight. 	149 SOAP Operations	A collapsed node representing a group of artifacts. This diagram shows a set of operations collapsed into a single group. Double-click the group, use the Expand node context actions, or the Expand actions in the Artifact Group Info box to view the individual artifacts in the group.
	HP CSA Application of Depends on Depends on Depends on SOAP Service Amazon EC2	 A node marked with an orange flag. This node is the subject of the current impact view. To View the Impact of an Artifact, perform one of the following: In the Navigator graph, right-click and open the context menu for the artifact node and select Impact Highlight. In the Artifact Info box, click Show Impact. The artifact is highlighted with an orange flag and an Impact legend box opens displaying the selected artifact. All related artifacts that are potentially impacted by a change to this artifact are highlighted, and all other artifacts are dimmed. Remove the impact highlighting by closing the Impact legend box, or right-click and open the context menu for the highlighted artifact and select Impact Highlight.

Navigator Filters

The Navigator provides a set of filters enabling you to focus on the artifacts that matter to your role. The filter determines the content of the graph by defining which artifacts display, when to group a set of artifacts, which relationships to show, and what color each relationship uses.



Access Navigator Filters, using the Filters toolbar control. Select from the following predefined filters which the administrator can edit:

- All Artifacts Displays all artifacts that your role has permission to view.
- Applications and APIs Focuses on applications and application interfaces related artifacts.
- Business Analysts Focuses on applications, projects, services, processes, and their implementations, and contract related artifacts.
- Business Partner Focuses on services and their implementations, and contract related artifacts.
- Core API Artifact Focuses on core API artifacts.
- Service Developer Focuses on the implementation of services, showing services, their implementations, and service description documents.
- Service Provider Focuses on the provision of services, showing services, their implementations, endpoints, and operations.

Note: The choice of filters is restricted to those appropriate to your role.

Navigator Layouts

The Navigator offers a number of alternative layouts providing different ways to view Catalog data, enabling you to visualize your data in the way that best suits your needs.



Access Navigator Layouts, using the Layouts toolbar control. Select from the following predefined layouts:

- **Concentric Radial** The default graph layout places the current artifact in the center of the graph and the related artifacts radiate outwards in all directions. This layout enables you to explore the immediate neighborhood of an artifact.
- **Hierarchical** This layout organizes the graph into a vertical artifact hierarchy according to the artifact relationships and any defined artifact aggregation structures.

Layered Layouts

Layered layouts organize the hierarchy of artifacts into identified layers, enabling you to focus on important abstractions and analyze dependencies between layers. Each expandable layer can consist of multiple artifact types with relationships within a layer and between them.

Systinet provides the following default Layered Layouts:

- **API Implementation Layer** provides the implementation layer of the APIs. It divides artifacts into Implementation, Interfaces, Request and Response layers.
- Application and APIs Layers provides the view of applications and API layers. It divides artifacts into Application and API layer.
- Architectural Layer provides a holistic view of your SOA architecture. It divides artifacts into Application, Process, Service, and Infrastructure Layers.
- Implementation Layer renders the internal architecture of services and their implementations. It divides artifacts into Services & Process, Implementation, WSDLs, and XML Schema layers.
- **Project View** provides a view tailored to projects and their content. It enables you to analyze the dependencies between projects, their content, and used data types.

Navigator Tab

The Navigator tab provides an overview of an artifact and its relationships.

To view a Navigator Graph, do one of the following steps:

1. In the Overview tab of Artifact view page, click the **Navigator** context action. The Navigator tab is displayed showing the graph for that artifact.



2. Click the **Navigator** tab and click (a) to open the **Select an artifact to display** dialog box.

Note: If you have not opened the Navigator previously, the **Select an artifact to display** dialog opens by default. The default behavior of the Navigator tab is to open the previously viewed graph.

The Navigator tab displays the graph for the selected artifact.

The Navigator Tab consists of the following elements:

- Navigator Toolbar
- Navigator Information Boxes

Navigator Toolbar

The Navigator toolbar contains the following functionality:

Navigator 1	foolbar Functions
Function	Description
Zoom	Use slider or the [+] or [-] controls to the left of the graph to change the size. The buttons below the slider enable you to reset the graph to its default layout and fit the whole graph on the screen.
	Open the Select an artifact to display and use the Search, Saved Graphs, Favorites, or Recent Artifacts functions to select a new artifact to view in Navigator.
Layout	Change the layout of the graph, selecting from the default layouts or your own custom layouts.
Filter	Change the graph filter, selecting from the default filters or your own custom filters.
Save Graph	Add the current graph layout to your saved graphs or select from previously saved graphs.
	Create and save an image file for the current graph.
•	Open a full-screen view of the current graph. Click the button again or press Esc to return to the default navigator view.
Back and Forward	When re-centering or re-laying out a chart, the current graph is saved and a user can to go backwards and forwards to view the versions.
Settings	Select to display the Artifact Info and Relationships.
	 Select to display the Artifact Type, Lifecycle Stage, or Version as the artifact node annotation.
	Select whether to display relationships annotation.

Novigotor **T** - - 11--..

Navigator Information Box

On the right of the graph there are a number of information boxes displaying information about the currently selected artifact, the relationships, and optional highlighting information for domains and impact.

The Artifact Info box displays information about the currently selected node highlighted with the green flag. Depending on the node there are the following types of Information box:

Artifact Info	
Artifact Info	Descripti

Artifact Info	Description
View in Catalog	Exit the Navigator and view the artifact details in the Systinet UI.
Center Artifact	Make the artifact the focus of the graph.
Expand Tree	For collapsed nodes, expand the relationships to hidden artifacts.
Collapse Tree	Collapse outward relationships from this artifact.
Show Impact	Highlight the impact tree for the artifact.

Artifact Group Info

Artifact Group Info	Description
Expand All	Expand all the artifacts in a group.
Expand	Open the Expand Artifacts from Group dialog box to select the artifacts to view separately from the group.

The Relationships information box displays the color coding identifying the relationships in the graph. You can customize the relationship colors by creating your own filter.

The Impact and Domain information boxes display when you select to highlight these aspects of the graph.

Chapter 4: Reports

HPE Systinet provides many reports that you can run based on the artifacts in data model. On the Reports tab, you can access many artifact, policy, and custom reports. You can also customize the reports that appear on your dashboard.

The report type that you choose depends on the results, data format, and granularity that you require. The following are the report types to choose from:

- "Report Dashboard" below
- "Artifact Reports" on page 56
- "Policy Reports" on page 59
- "Contract SLO Monitoring" on page 60
- "Custom BIRT Reports" on page 62

Reports are customizable. Administrators can therefore create and deploy new reports without having to restart Systinet. For more details, see *Report Creation* in *HPE Systinet Customization Guide* or contact HPE sales representative for assistance.

Report Dashboard

Report dashboard is a collection of reports created for a purpose. For example, you can create a dashboard called Governance to give you an overview of the compliance level as a result of the Systinet policy reports.

Report dashboard can be customized as per the requirement, or can be reset back to the default installation. You can also create new report dashboards for your own use. The following are the sub topics of report dashboard:

- "Adding a Portlet to Your Dashboard " below
- "Printing Portlet Content" on the next page

Adding a Portlet to Your Dashboard

To add a Portlet to your dashboard:

- 1. In the Reports page right-click to open the Dashboard menu as shown in the image below.
- 2. Select the portlet to add to your dashboard.

Systinet <catalog< th=""><th>REPORTS</th><th>NAVIGAT</th><th></th><th>Q Searc</th></catalog<>			REPORTS	NAVIGAT		Q Searc		
Â	All Report	s∨						
Life	cycle Stati	stics		Activity				
Artifa	cts By Life	ecycle Stage				vity Report		
There ar	e no artifacts r	natching report query			Add Widget	> By Category >	ifacts today.	
					Store as Default Layout	Ву Туре 🔷	Add Widget	>
					Reset to Default Layout	ity report is not coll Jan 01 01:00:00 CE	Add Diagram	
					Lock Dashboard	eds	Add Chart	>
					⊕ A	dd Content Feed	Add Policy Re	port >
							Add Artifact R	eport >

Printing Portlet Content

HPE Systinet provides the option to print dashboard portlet contents from the Reports tab. Using this feature, you can convert the report to PDF format. It is also possible to print a report to other formats. This depends on your browser configuration. However, this option is available for Artifact Statistic on the Reports home page. Other reports that can be printed are Data Matrix Reports and Rating Reports located on different sub-menu of the Reports tab.

To print the portlet content, follow these steps:

- 1. Select the report you wish to print.
- 2. Click the print icon to preview and print the report.

Project R	oadmap						≜ ⊠ ×	
Select color visu	alization:	Ratio of comp	leted/all deliverabl	25%-50% 50%-75%				
0%-25%			25%-50%					
75%-100	75%-100%			No changes declared to deliver				
				Today				
	20	16			2017			
Projects	١٧	<i>ι</i> .	I.		П.	Ш.	IV.	
	•				•			

3. For each browser the print instruction may differ, follow the steps and then click OK.

4. Select **Shrink To Fit** on Print dialog or Printing Preferences to print the entire portlet content on a single page.

Note: For print preview in IE, click **Internet Options > Security > Custom level**. Scroll down for the option **Initialize and script ActiveX controls not marked as safe for scripting** and select **Prompt**. Restart your machine and click the print icon to see the print preview.

For Chrome the print preview shows automatically upon clicking the print icon. Firefox does not support print preview.

For good print results, set the following in your browser Page Setup or Preview page:

- 1. Mode: Landscape
- 2. Paper size: A3 or larger
- 3. Background graphics / Print Background (colors & images): must be selected

Artifact Reports

HPE Systinet artifact reports provide table views of the artifact data contained in the HPE Systinet repository. The report is designed and used directly in the HPE Systinet web UI. The artifact table represents the result of a DQL query that is part of the report definition. Artifact reports are re-calculated every time the user accesses the report's web UI page.

Projects Und to review projects, their status, and their content.										
Projects				Content						
Name 🔺	Version	Lifecycle Stage	Completion	Name	Туре	Stage	Consumable	Compliance		
Bank Project	1.0	Implementation	100 %	Core Banking	Application	Production				
Bank Project	1.0	Implementation	100 %	ATM Backend Gateway	SOAP Service	Initial	Yes			
CRM Project	1.0	Implementation	20 %	Payment Methods	Business Process	Production				
CRM Project	1.0	Implementation	20 %	AmazonEC2	SOAP Service	Initial	No			
OpenStack Neutron	1.0	Implementation		Networks	REST Service	Production	Yes			
OpenStack Neutron	1.0	Implementation		HP CSA	Application	Production				

You can modify the artifact data as per the requirement. Column headers contain text fields or list boxes that allows you to perform additional filtering. Right click the column header to display the column's context menu. You can choose the sort order or make column visible or invisible. The columns can be re-sized by moving the line between them. You can also reorder the columns by dragging them.

Viewing Artifact Reports

To view artifact reports, follow these steps:

- 1. Log in to HPE Systinet and click on the **Reports** tab.
- Select the All Reports > Artifact Reports, which shows any favorite reports as well as a Show More link.



3. Click **Show More** to open the catalog browser. The catalog browser lists all reports and also allows you to pin or unpin a particular report as a favorite onto the Artifact Reports menu.

Catalog Browser ×
All Artifacts
Projects 🔶
Applications 🔶
Processes 🔶
Services by Provider 🔶 📩
Lifecycle Processes
Pending Approvals
My Subscriptions
All Contracts
My Provided Contracts
Directly Consumed APIs
APIs Directly Consumed by Organization \overleftrightarrow
Units
APIs Directly Consumed by Applications \overleftrightarrow
Restore Defaults Close

4. Click **Projects** to view the artifact report called Projects, which is used to review projects and their status and content data. The Projects report is a table with columns that were defined by associated DQL queries as shown in Artifacts Reports.

Projects Under to review projects, their status, and their content.										
Projects				Content						
Name 🔺	Version	Lifecycle Stage	Completion	Name	Туре	Stage	Consumable	Compliance		
Bank Project	1.0	Implementation	100 %	Core Banking	Application	Production				
Bank Project	1.0	Implementation	100 %	ATM Backend Gateway	SOAP Service	Initial	Yes			
CRM Project	1.0	Implementation	20 %	Payment Methods	Business Process	Production				
CRM Project	1.0	Implementation	20 %	AmazonEC2	SOAP Service	Initial	No			
OpenStack Neutron	1.0	Implementation		Networks	REST Service	Production	Yes			
OpenStack Neutron	1.0	Implementation		HP CSA	Application	Production				

You can modify the artifact data as per the requirement. Column headers contain text fields or list boxes that allows you to perform additional filtering. Right click the column header to display the column's context menu. You can choose the sort order or make column visible or invisible. The columns can be re-sized by moving the line between them. You can also reorder the columns by dragging them.

Policy Reports

HPE Systinet policy reports are used to report the levels of policy compliance of the artifacts in HPE Systinet repository. The report is designed and used directly in the HPE Systinet web UI. You can select the policies to validate as well as set the filter that specifies what artifacts and data to include in the validation directly in the web UI when you define the report. The report's results are cached in the HPE Systinet repository. You can view the reports from the most recent calculation of the report.

API Compliance Policy Report					Located in Top-level Domai no votes 🛧 🛧 🛧 🖈
Overview	* × C 🖂				
	No description entered yet				Description (2000 characters max)
	Report Properties				
	Actual Compliance:	77.77 %			
	Target Compliance:	95 %			
	Overall Compliance	Top five artifacts with the worst compliance			
		Artifact	Compliance 🔺	Owner	Domain
		AGS_BPCA_WS_API.wsdl	0 %	Service Providers	Demo Domain
		QccSubjectsManagementService.wsdl	0 %	Service Providers	HP Software Products
		QCServices.wsdl	72 %	Service Providers	HP Software Products
		paymentMethod.wsdl	74 %	🛓 Joe Project Manager	Demo Domain
	 Compliant (90%) 	ATMTransation.wsdl	76 %	Service Providers	Demo Domain
	 Non-compliant (10%) 	View results for all 46 artifact(s).			

Viewing Policy Reports

To view policy reports, follow these steps:

- 1. Log in to HPE Systinet and click on the **Reports** tab.
- Select the All Reports > Policy Reports, which shows any favorite reports as well as a Show More link.

Systinet		≪ CATALOG		REPORTS	NAVIGA
Â	All Reports	~			
Projec	Create		>	- ir contont	
	Artifact R	eports	>	ter content.	
Health	Policy Rep	oorts	>	API Compliance	
	Custom B	IRT Reports	>	Applications Co	mpliance
<				Show More	

3. Click **Show More** to open the catalog browser. The catalog browser lists all reports and also allows you to pin or unpin a particular report as a favorite onto the Policy Reports menu.



4. Select API Compliance to view the policy report called API Compliance.

Contract SLO Monitoring

You can monitor individual contract performance even when multiple contracts share the same proxy object. Go to **Reports > All Reports > Contract Deployment > Contract SLO Monitoring**, to see

the report of contract performance.



A graphic view of the message per day metric evolved in time is displayed. The data is gathered from devices in predefined intervals and data older than a day are compacted so there is just one record for a day/contract within Systinet database.

You have to configure the adapters in advance to support this feature. For more information, refer the documentation of the adapter you are using.

Click **Analyze** in the header of a service Provider to compare service capacity consumed by different contract of the service.



Custom BIRT Reports

Custom Reports are based on report definitions as stored in the Reporting Server. These reports can combine multiple data sources. For example, it is possible to mix data from the repository with data from an external database.

While Custom Report definitions are stored in the Reporting Server and are managed with the Report Editor, artifact reports are customizable directly from the web UI in a user-friendly way.

Custom Reports are constructed in Report Editor and are available in the Reports tab under Custom BIRT Reports in the left-hand menu. The following are the types of custom reports:

- 1. Top Reports
- 2. API Documentation

To create a custom report, follow these steps:

 Go to Reports > ALL Reports> Create > Custom Report. The Add Custom Report window is displayed.

Add Custom Report	
Report Definition:	< Unknown >>
	<< Unknown >>
Save Cancel	Top Reports
	API Documentation

- 2. Select the **Report Definition** as **Top Reports** or **API Documentation**.
- 3. Enter **Name** and **Description** for your report.

By default, the **Add to menu** option is selected.

4. Enter the value for **Max Rows**.

Note: This option is displayed only if you have selected **Top Reports** in **Report Definition**.

5. Enter the values for **API UUID** and **Operations Label**.

Note: This option is displayed only if you have selected **API Documentation** in **Report Definition**.

6. Click Save to create your custom report.

Viewing Custom Reports

To view custom BIRT reports, follow these steps:

- 1. Log in to HPE Systinet and select the Reports tab.
- Select the All Reports > Custom BIRT Reports, which shows any favorite reports as well as a Show More link.
- 3. Click Show More to open the catalog browser. The catalog browser lists all reports and also

allows you to pin or unpin a particular report as a favorite onto the menu.

4. Select the required custom report to view it.

Chapter 5: Subscription Management

HPE Systinet provides a key service relationship is the provider-consumer relationship that you can create between service consumers and providers.

HPE Systinet captures the provider-consumer relationships for the following reasons:

- Change Management By requiring consumers of services to register, the provider ensures that all users of that service are notified whenever some aspect of it changes.
- Contract Access Control A controlled way of providing consumers access to a service, helping prevent unanticipated or inappropriate usage.
- **Contract Monitoring** Monitors how successful a particular service is, based on its level of reuse and its use across organizational units.
- Contract Auditing Providers need to know who is using specific services and who granted them
 access. This could be for many reasons, such as security, accounting, capacity planning, or
 change management.

The following definitions help you manage the subscriptions:

- **Consumer** The consumer is the person or organizational unit that uses a service.
- **Provider** The provider is the user or organizational unit responsible for contracts associated with the artifact that the consumer wants to use.
- **Contract Request** When a consumer finds an artifact that they want to use, they create a contract request which is submitted to the provider.
- Contract When a request is approved, a contract is formed between the consumer and provider artifacts.
- Service Level Objectives (SLO) Each provider artifact can be associated with a set of offerings that the provider sets out as performance levels for the service. When a consumer makes a request they can select an SLO as part of the terms of the contract.

The following are the two SLO artifact types:

- Service Level Offering artifact this artifact is created by provider and added in the provider artifact.
- Service Level Objectives artifact this artifact is a copy of Service Level Offering artifact that will be created when a consumer creates a contract and adds an SLO artifact for contract.

Subscription Management Workflow

For a provided service to be consumed, there are typically, several steps required by the provider and a discovery process for the consumer. Having found a service that meets their requirements the consumer and provider can establish a contract. The "Workflow" diagram displays the typical tasks that should be performed:



An overview of each step is given below:

- 1. After you create a service, you can offer a number of service-level objectives describing the terms of use for the service. You can create an SLO independently, or as part of a service.
- 2. You can also attach documentation to the SLO.
- 3. You can attach the SLO to the Service.
- 4. Make the Service available by marking it as consumable.

- 5. The consumer browses Systinet to see which services are available and whether they meet their requirements.
- 6. After the consumer finds the service, they can request it.
- 7. When a consumer requests consumption of a service, you must either approve or reject the request.

Subscription Reports

You can access details of subscription from the homepage. You can request for subscription contract, view provider wise contracts of APIs, and view consumer wise contracts details of APIs. You can also view your subscriptions from **Reports > All Reports > Artifacts Reports > Show More** and click **My Subscriptions**. The My Subscription report provides you the status of the contract, the date of issuing the contract, the name of the provider and the consumer, domain details, and type of consumer.

Sys	stinet CAT		REPORTS	NAVIGATOR	ADMINISTRATION			Q Search	Show data in: All Non-Reference 🔻	Administrator Documentation	
	All Reports 🗸								'D Re	ecent Documents	
Му	My Subscriptions										
AND	×										
0.	Name		Status 🔺	Date of Issui	Provider Name	Provider Type	Provider Domain	Consumer Name	Consumer Type		
	AgentApplication uses	AGS_SM	Accepted	5/13/2015	AGS_SM_TESTRESULT_API	SOAP Service	Demo Domain	AgentApplication	Application		
0	AgentApplication uses	DBMS_F	🗞 Pending	5/13/2015	Customer list	File Transfer	Demo Domain	AgentApplication	Application		

You can perform the following in Subscription Management:

- How to Set the Provider
- How to Create Contract
- How to Process Contract Requests

Systinet provides a default set of artifact types that can be consumer or provider artifacts. The administrator can customize these settings. For details, see *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.

Default Provider / Consumer Artifact Types

The following table lists the artifact types defined as providers and consumers:

Provider Artifact Types	Consumer Artifact Types
Application Interfaces	Application Components

Provider Artifact Types	Consumer Artifact Types
REST Services	Applications
XML Services	Components
SOAP Services	
File Transfers	
Endpoints	Contracts
HTTP Endpoints	Contracts
SOAP Endpoints	Organizational Units
File Endpoints	
Operations	-
HTTP Requests	
HTTP Responses	
SOAP Operations	

How to Set Provider

Each consumable artifact should have a user or organizational unit, known as the provider, responsible for managing the contracts associated with the artifact.

Note: If no specific provider is set for an artifact, the artifact owner is set as the default provider.

To set the provider to an artifact, follow these steps:

- 1. For the artifact you want to set the provider, open the **Overview** tab in the Artifact View page.
- 2. Locate the Provided by Application/Organization property.

You can set the provider to an Application, a Component or an Organization Unit. You add a new provider or link to the existing one.

- 3. If you click Link New, follow the steps below. Else if you click Link existing, go to Step 4.
 - a. Select **Application** or **Component** or **Organization Unit**. The respective create new page is displayed.
 - b. Enter the details, such as, Name, Description and so on. Attach documents, if any.
 - c. Click Save to set the provider to the new application or component or organization unit.
- 4. If you click Link existing, follow these steps:

- a. Select **Application** or **Component** or **Organization Unit**. The respective select dialog box is displayed.
- b. In the dialog box, select the Application or Component or Organization Unit from the list.
- c. Click Link Selected to set to an existing provider.

How to Create Contract

A contract when created has a dedicated lifecycle and when saved will be in a *Pending* status. This contract needs to be certified by approving a lifecycle stage of the contract by marking its status as *Accepted*. The consumer and the provider need to settle the terms of usage of this contracted artifact. Hence you can attach additional documents, apply policies and provide services with the contract.

Note: Before you create contract, ensure that the artifact is consumable. If not, edit the artifact and select the Consumable check box to make the artifact consumable.

To create a contract, follow these steps:

- 1. Perform one of the following:
 - a. In the **Overview** tab of the artifact, click **Request Subscription** context action.

Overview	s × 0	{lhy
Documentation	No description entered	Attach Document
	Edit	💬 Request Subscription
Tree View	No specification entere	🕝 Export
Lifecycle	Edit	
Access Dishts	Revision: Domain:	
	Owner:	Atom Feed
History	Consumable:	Artifact Comments Feed
Show More	Versions	XML View
	Version	🔇 Change Domain
	1.0	Generate Document
	Version Tree Show Au	

b. In the **Overview** tab, **Subscription & Capacity Management** of the artifact, click **Create New Subscription** link.

Subscriptions & Capacity Management		
SL-Offering	SL-Offering Throughput	Number of approve
Production Usage (Gat	250	0
UAT usage (Gateway)	3000	0
Totals		0.0

c. In the homepage, click Request Subscription Contract in Subscriptions.



The Create Subscription window is displayed.

Create Subscription		
Name: •	HP Systinet Administrator uses Unspecified provider	
Description:	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	
Consumer Identification:		
Using: •	III HP Systinet Administrator	
	Change Consuming Artifact	
Attachments		
1 %		
Save Cancel		

- 2. Enter Name, Description (optional), and Consumer Identification (optional).
- Click Change Consuming Artifact to change the consuming artifact. The Select Consuming Artifact window is displayed. Select the artifact from the list and click Select. By default the user logged in to Systinet will be the consuming artifact.

You can also click Select sub-artifact to select a sub artifact for the consuming artifact.

4. Click **Select Consumed Artifact** to select the consumed artifact. The **Select Contract Provider** window is displayed. Select the provider from the list and click **Select**.

You can also click **Select sub-artifact** to select a sub artifact for the consumed artifact.

- 5. Optionally, you can upload a local file, web resource, and link an existing artifact.
- Click Save. The newly created contracted will be available in the All Contracts list with Pending status. Click Browse & Search from homepage or navigate to Reports > Artifact Reports > All Contracts to access the All Contract list.

HPE Systinet notifies the provider of your request and adds it to your Pending Requests list.

The provider of the service either approves or rejects your request. The result of their decision is sent as a notification email and updates in the **Lifecycle** tab. The status of the contract is changed from *Pending* to *Approved*. See How to Process Contract Request.

How to Process Contract Request

The contract approver can access the pending request list from My Tasks or Events tab.

To process the contract request, follow these steps:

1. Click on the contract which you want to approve.

In the **Overview** tab of the artifact to be approved, the **Contract State** will be *Pending* and **Stage** will be *Requested*.

2. Click **Lifecycle** tab. The lifecycle tab displays the list of approvers, tasks and policies associated with the artifact, and the status of the vote of each approver.
| Default Contract Lifecycle Requested Voting | ve> Revoked |
|---|---|
| Voting (Requested by System, 2:28 PM) | |
| Administrator
Administrator
jarchitect | Vote Pending Vote Pending Vote Pending |
| Tasks
No items defined.
Policies
No items defined.
Approvers | |
| Administrator jarchitect jdeveloper | Vote Required Vote Required Vote Required |

3. Click **Approve** to process the contract. The **Approve Requested Stage** dialog box is displayed. Enter your comments, if any, and click **Approve**.

In the Default Contract Lifecycle, the status is changed to Approved as shown in the below image:



In the **Overview** tab of the artifact, the **Contract State** will be *Accepted* and **Stage** will be *Active* (*Approved*).

Chapter 6: Authoring Overview

Authoring is the process of adding content to the Catalog for the purposes of governance and management.

Authoring consists of the following overlapping areas of functionality:

- Manually creating artifacts to represent entities that you want to develop, govern, and publish.
- Manually enhancing these artifacts with additional properties that represent important information about these entities.
- Manually organizing the content by creating relationships between artifacts.
- Publishing data artifacts with attached content. The publishing process may automate some of the manual authoring steps.

Authoring is described in the following topics:

- Application Modeling
- Environment
- Publishing
- Service Provisioning

For references on create and edit artifact pages, "Reference to Authoring UI" on page 82.

Application Modeling

Different organizations model their application infrastructure in different ways. The open architectural model of Systinet enables you to choose how you create, govern, and provide your application infrastructure in a way that matches your needs.

There are a number of different definitions for service artifacts that recognize the various ways that different organizations describe their service infrastructure. Systinet provides the following artifact types with suggestions of how you may want to use them:

Service

A service is a set of functionality that you can provide or use as a single entity. The purpose of the service artifact is to provide an abstraction in Systinet that you can use as a central point of governance, provision, and use that describes the functionality and the users, groups, and contacts responsible for its maintenance and support.

Service Artifacts

Artifacts in Systinet represent an abstraction of your services enabling you to visualize and manage your service development, governance, and provision.

The service artifact is usually the central element of a set of artifacts representing a particular set of functionality that you provide or use.

In practice, a service cannot be represented by a single artifact and consists of a set of the following related artifacts:

- Service The key artifact representing the concept of the service. This artifact contains properties identifying the owners, contacts, and details about the set of functionality that it represents. Other details are represented in related artifacts.
- Implementation Services typically have at least one implementation. Each implementation
 represents functional elements of the service. There are a number of different kinds of
 implementation and they relate to sets of technical artifacts representing the operations the
 implementation performs, the endpoints representing the servers or environments where the
 implementation is available, and definition documents such as WSDLs and XSDs that describe the
 service and its implementation. Systinet supports the following implementation artifact types:
 - Application Interfaces SOAP Service, XML Service, REST Service, and File Transfer
 - Process Implementations BPEL Process and XPDL Process

Implementations are typically associated with the following artifact types:

- Endpoints Endpoints represent URLs used to access a service or process implementation. Throughout the lifecycle of a service or process, there are likely to be a number of different environments hosting the service or process, for example, development, testing, and production servers. Use a different endpoint to represent each of these environment implementations.
- **Operations** Operations represent a method defined in an implementation.
- WSDLs, XML Schemas, BPELs, and XPDLs Services, processes and their implementations are often described by definition documents such as WSDLs or BPELs. Systinet provides publishing functionality which decomposes definition documents, analyzes

the service infrastructure it defines, and then creates or updates the relevant artifacts in the Catalog.

- Documentation Services are often described by different documents such as specifications and user guides.
- Service Level Objectives Providers of services can offer sets of terms to service consumers describing the service levels that they expect to meet. When a consumer requests the use of a service, the service level objective defines the terms of the contract between the provider and the consumer.

Business Process

Systinet represents an abstraction of your processes enabling you to visualize and manage your process deployment and governance.

The Business Process Artifact is usually the central point of a process infrastructure representing a particular set of functionality that you provide or use.

In practice, a business process cannot be represented by a single artifact and consists of a set of the following related artifacts:

- **Business Process** The key artifact representing the concept of the process. This artifact contains properties identifying the owners, contacts, and details about the set of functionality that it represents.
- Process Implementation The entity representing the process implementation. A Business
 Process typically has one BPEL Process Implementation, which refers to related (consumed and
 provided) services and their implementations using an aggregation of WSDL documents. BPEL
 Process implementation is typically accessible and controlled by one service implementation, so a
 process implementation is also visible as a service implementation, and can be reused by another
 service or process.
- **Documentation** Processes are often described by different documents such as specifications and user guides.

Application

An application typically provides a set of services and processes. The application artifact enables you to collect a set of services and processes together to govern and provide them as a single entity. Use the generic add relationship functionality to add artifacts to an application.

Project

A project typically contains a set of artifacts with a shared development lifecycle. The project artifact enables you to collect these artifacts together and govern them as a single entity. Use the generic add relationship functionality to add content to a project or use specific project functionality.

Using these artifact types and the relationships between them provides a platform to manage, govern, and provide your content at the most appropriate level for your organization.

Provision and Use

For the purpose of forming contracts, the model contains an Service Level Objectives artifact type to represent the terms that you offer for a piece of functionality. The default functionality of Systinet enables an SLO to be associated with Applications, Services, Implementations, Endpoints, and Operations.

Lifecycle Governance

For the purpose of governing a lifecycle, Systinet provides default lifecycle processes for Applications, Services, Implementations, Projects, Processes, and Process Implementations.

Versioning

During their lifetime services and processes evolve, so there may be different versions that require management. Systinet supports various versioning strategies enabling you to introduce new versions in a controlled way, which you can then manage, govern, and provide separately.

Environment

Most organizations use several environments to clearly separate production from testing and development. This means that when a service moves through its lifecycle, it is likely to be deployed multiple times in a number of different environments. Systinet makes use of an Environment categorization to represent these environments. Each environment is represented by an environment

category value which can be applied to endpoints and also to server artifacts. The following environment categories are defined in Systinet:

- Development A service is likely to be defined by publishing a WSDL before it reaches the development stage. When it reaches the development stage it requires an endpoint representing a development server. Instead of amending and republishing the WSDL, Systinet enables you to add an endpoint and categorize it as Development.
- **Testing** During the testing stage, the service may require an additional endpoint representing test deployment of the service and this is also achieved by adding a new endpoint categorized as Testing.
- **Staging** A staging environment is intended to duplicate the production environment as closely as possible. Staging environments are often used for final pre-production testing, or for demonstration and training purposes. A service in a staging environment requires an additional endpoint representing the staging deployment categorized as Staging.
- **Production** The service requires an additional endpoint representing the production deployment of the service and this is also achieved by adding a new endpoint categorized as Production.

Publishing

Files can be uploaded to Systinet with the Import File wizard accessible from the **Import** menu in the **Catalog** tab, or as **Upload** actions in Artifact view page.

Systinet does not change uploaded files, they are stored and available as they were uploaded. You can upload local files or remote files exposed at a URL. Moreover, you can upload a ZIP archive containing multiple files. As well as the file to upload, you can select the server folder and set additional options.

Import File functionality offers the following options:

• Server Folder

The server folder determines the path in the repository workspace where Systinet stores uploaded files.

The correct use of server folders is crucial for definition data management. As mentioned above, definition data files usually refer to each other via relative links and hence it is important to set server folders so that relative links work.

Authentication

This option applies when you upload remote documents and the remote server requires credentials. Import provides the option to input credentials and to store them for future use.

Synchronization

This option applies when you upload remote documents. Systinet provides the option to synchronize the content of the repository with remote files. This feature is important when Systinet is not the master store for definition files. The administrator can schedule a synchronization task that synchronizes all documents in Systinet with remote master files. The administrator can schedule an automatic synchronization , or a manual synchronization or disable the synchronization.

Process Archive Content

This option applies when you upload a ZIP archive. If selected (default), Systinet extracts the archive and uploads all the content. Otherwise, Systinet uploads the archive as documentation content attached to a documentation artifact. ZIP, JAR, WAR, EAR, and BPR archives are supported by default, but you can extend the predefined set of supported archives.

BPEL Decomposition

This option applies when you upload BPEL or SCA documents. It is similar to WSDL decomposition. You can select whether to create only data content artifacts, such as SCA or BPEL artifacts (None option) or whether to create a Business Process for each BPEL artifact.

WSDL Decomposition

This option applies when you upload a WSDL. You can select None, Implementation or Service to enable the publishing process to create the artifacts defined by the WSDL.

Service Type

This option applies if you upload a WSDL document and create services when WSDL decomposition is set to Services. You can specify the service type (infrastructure, business, or application service) for the created service.

For details on how to publish content, see "Publish Content" on page 43.

Service Provisioning

Systinet uses a set of authoring processes, enabling you to add services to the Catalog and make them available to consumers.

Note: This workflow considers the steps required for Service Provision separately from Lifecycle

Management. In practice, these steps are associated with particular lifecycle stages with relevant verification and approval processes.

The diagram describes a typical service provision process and the steps required to achieve it. The workflow is split into the user roles that would typically perform the actions in an organization.

Business Expert	Architect	Developer
1 Publish Service Document		
	2 Create New Business Service	
	3 Attach Document	
	4 Publish WSDL/WADL/Swagger	
		5 Develop Implementation
	F	6 Create SOAP/REST services
	7 Make Service Available	

Try Out with DHC

Systinet enables you to use Try Out HTTP Request with the DHC Restlet in Chrome browser.

DHC (Dev HTTP Client) Restlet is a full featured tool for manual HTTP/REST API testing and discovery. It is designed and developed to discover, manipulate, and test HTTP REST services.

To use Try Out from HTTP Request page, follow these steps:

- 1. Go to https://chrome.google.com/webstore/category/apps from Google Chrome browser. Install and enable the DHC Restlet application.
- 2. Click **Try Out** context option from HTTP Request details page.

Add Floating IP			Located in HP Cloud no votes 🖈 🖈 🖈 🖈
Overview			Try Out
Documentation	No description entered yet Edit	Description (2000 characters max)	Add to Favorites
Tree View	No specification entered yet	Specification	No tasks defined.
Lifecycle	Edit		Last Edit HP Systinet Administrator
	Revision:	1	Kevwords
Access Rights	Domain:	HP Cloud	HPCloud, Compute
	Owner:	HP Cloud Application Provider	🖋 Edit
History	Consumable:	No	
	Relationships		
Show More	HTTP Headers:	Link new, Link existing	
	REST Services:	Cloud Compute Service	

3. You can also use the Try Out option from HTTP Requests table from REST service artifact.

Versions				
Version	Lifecycle Stage	Remarks	Date	
2	Production	Created by wadlImport.xml	05/10/2015 05:01 AM	
Version Tree Show Audit Log New Version				
Subscriptions & Capacity Managem	lent			
There are no subscriptions available yet				
Create New Subscription				
HTTP Requests				
HTTP Met URL Pattern		Name		Try
[1] [tenant_id]backups//v2		listBackups		
FOST {tenant_id}backups//v2		createBackup		
{tenant_id}backupsdetail//v2		listBackupsDetails		
DELETE {tenant_id}backups{backup_id}//v2		deleteBackup		
{tenant_id}backups{backup_id}//v2		showBackup		
POST {tenant_id}backups{backup_id}restore//v2		restoreBackup		
Environments				

Reference to Authoring UI

This chapter provides a reference to artifact creation and edit pages that are accessible from the Catalog Browser.

- Services:
 - SOAP Services page
 - XML Services page
 - REST Services page
 - File Transfer Services page
- Operations:

- SOAP Operations page
- HTTP Request page
- HTTP Response page
- Endpoints:
 - SOAP Endpoints page
 - File Endpoints page
 - HTTP Endpoints page
- Contacts:
 - Organizational Unit page
 - Users and Contact page
- Business Process page
- Projects page
- Process Implementation
 - BPEL Processes page
 - XPDL Processes page
- SLO
 - Service Lever Offering/Objective page

SOAP Services Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit SOAP services pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new SOAP service.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Consumable	Select to make the SOAP service available to consumers.

Parameter	Description
Transport	Select the transport type from the drop-down list. Systinet supports CIFS, FTP, HTTP, HTTPS, JMS, MFT, MQ, SCP, SFTP, SMTP and WebDAV transport methods.
JMS provider	Set the JMS provider, if applicable.
Keywords	A set of custom tags to help users identify the artifact.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

XML Services Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit XML services pages:

Parameters	Description
Name	The name of the new XML service.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Consumable	Select to make the XML service available to consumers.
Transport	Select the transport type from the drop-down list. Systinet supports CIFS, FTP, HTTP, HTTPS, JMS, MFT, MQ, SCP, SFTP, SMTP and WebDAV transport methods.
Keywords	A set of custom tags to help users identify the artifact.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

REST Services Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit REST services pages:

Parameters	Description
Name	The name of the new REST service.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Consumable	Select to make the REST service available to consumers.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

FileTransfer Services Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit File Transfer services pages:

Parameters	Description
Name	The name of the new File Transfer service.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Consumable	Select to make the File Transfer service available to consumers.
Format	Format in which the file is transferred, for example: Binary, CSV, Text, XML.
Transport	Select the transport type from the drop-down list. Systinet supports CIFS, FTP, HTTP, HTTPS, JMS, MFT, MQ, SCP, SFTP, SMTP and WebDAV transport methods.
Confidentiality	Select the levels of confidentiality from the drop-down list.
Availability	Select the availability depending on the priority.
Integity	Select the integrity for the file.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.

SOAP Operations Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit SOAP operations pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new SOAP operation.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Consumable	Select to make the SOAP service available to consumers.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Operation name	Operation name defined by the associated WSDL.
Port type	Port type defined by the associated WSDL.
Target Namespace	Namespace defined by the associated WSDL.
Input types	XSD input types defined for the operation.
Output types	XSD output types defined for the operation.
Fault types	XSD fault types defined for the operation.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

HTTP Request Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit HTTP request pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new HTTP request operation.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited

Parameter	Description
	by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Consumable	Select to make the HTTP request operation available to consumers.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
HTTP Method	A set of common methods for HTTP request. Example: CONNECT, GET, PUT, DELETE and so on.
URL Pattern	URL pattern used for depending on the HTTP request. Example: For Create user, the URL pattern is /user.
Resource	Use the HTTP request resource to send the HTTP request.
Media Type	Indicates the type of data the artifact contains.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

For information on HTTP Status Codes and HTTP Headers, see Apendix A and Appendix B, respectively.

HTTP Response Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit HTTP response pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new HTTP response operation.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Media Type	Indicates the type of data the artifact contains.
HTTP Method	A set of common methods for HTTP response. Example: CONNECT, GET, PUT, DELETE and so on.
URL Pattern	URL pattern used for depending on the HTTP response. Example: For Create user, the URL pattern is /user.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.

Parameter	Description
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

For information on HTTP Status Codes and HTTP Headers, see Apendix A and Appendix B, respectively.

SOAP Endpoint Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit SOAP endpoint pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new SOAP endpoint.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Transport	Select the transport type from the drop-down list. Systinet supports CIFS, FTP, HTTP, HTTPS, JMS, MFT, MQ, SCP, SFTP, SMTP and WebDAV transport methods.
Consumable	Select to make the SOAP endpoint available to consumers.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
WSDL Port name	Port name defined by an associated WSDL.
Туре	Select the endpoint type from the drop-down list.
Environment	Categorize the endpoint by selecting an environment from the drop-down list.
Endpoint URL	URL for the actual implementation of the service.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

File Endpoint Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit File endpoint pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new File endpoint.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Consumable	Select to make the File endpoint available to consumers.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Туре	Select the endpoint type from the drop-down list.
Environment	Categorize the endpoint by selecting an environment from the drop-down list.
Endpoint URL	URL for the actual implementation of the service.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

HTTP Endpoint Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit HTTP endpoint pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new HTTP endpoint.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Consumable	Select to make the HTTP endpoint available to consumers.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.

Parameter	Description
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Туре	Select the endpoint type from the drop-down list.
Environment	Categorize the endpoint by selecting an environment from the drop-down list.
Endpoint URL	URL for the actual implementation of the service.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

For information on HTTP Status Codes and HTTP Headers, see Apendix A and Appendix B, respectively.

Organization Unit Page

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new organization unit.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Contact Roles	The contact roles for the organization unit. The contact roles can be one of the following: Administrator, Architect, Business Expert, Developer, or Operations Manager.
Contact Classification	Select the contact classification for the organization unit from the drop down list. Contact can be classified as Contact or User.
Geographical Location	The geographical location for the organization unit.
Language Code	Select the language code for the organization unit from the drop down list.
Login Name	The login name associated with the organization unit.
Address	Add contact address for the organizational unit.
Email	Add e-mails for the organizational unit.
Phone	Add phone numbers for the organizational unit.

The following are the parameters of the create and edit Organization Unit pages:

Parameter	Description
Instant Messenger	Add IM contacts for the organizational unit.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

Users and Contact Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit user and contact pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new user and contact.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Account State	Select the account state for the user or contact. The state can be classified as Active, Disabled or Retired.
Contact Roles	The contact roles for the user or contact. The contact roles can be one of the following: Administrator, Architect, Business Expert, Developer, or Operations Manager.
Contact Classification	Select the contact classification for the user or contact from the drop down list. Contact can be classified as Contact or User.
Geographical Location	The geographical location for the user or contact.
Language Code	Select the language code for the user or contact from the drop down list.
Login Name	The login name associated with the user or contact.
Address	Add contact address for the user or contact.
Email	Add e-mails for the user or contact.
Phone	Add phone numbers for the user or contact.
Instant Messenger	Add IM contacts for the user or contact.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

Business Process Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit Business Process pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new business process.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

Projects Page

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new project.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Completion [%]	The current progress of the project.
Start Date	Use the calendar icon to set a start date for the new project.
Planned End Date	Use the calendar icon to set a projected completion date for the new project.

The following are the parameters of the create and edit Projects pages:

Parameter	Description
Keywords	A set of custom tags to help users identify the artifact.
Provider	Select the user, group, or role responsible for provision of the artifact.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

BPEL Processes Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit BPEL Process pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new BPEL process.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Target Namespace	The target namespace.
Query Language	The name of the query language.
Expression Langauge	The expression for the language.
Supress Join Failure	Select or clear the check box for supress join failure option.
Exit on Standard Fault	Select or clear the check box for exit on standard fault option.
Partner Links	Add name and other values for the partner.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

XPDL Processes Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit XPDL process pages:

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new XPDL process.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Stakeholder Emails	Email ID of the stake holders.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
ID	The ID for the XPDL process.
XPDL Package Name	The name of the XPDL package.
XPDL Version	The version of the XPDL.
Vendor	Name of the vendor.
XPDL Created	The date on which the XPDL is created.
Modification Date	The date on which the XPDL is modified.
Location of XPDL Documentation	Mention the location of the XPDL documentation.
Priority Unit	The name of the priority unit.
Cost Unit	The name of the cost unit.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

Service Level Offering/Objectives Page

The following are the parameters of the create and edit SLO pages:

Parameter	Description
Туре	Select SLO, Service Level Offering, or Service Level Objectives from the list.

Parameter	Description
Name	The name of the new SLO.
Description	A description including rich text and HTML support. This description is displayed in the properties area of Overview tab of Artifact view page. This description is limited by the display length available in the Overview tab.
Version	The version number of the artifact.
Version Remark	The remark for the version number.
Proxy Layout	Select per-proxy or shared from the drop down list.
Frontend URL Template	The front end URL for the template.
Propagate Changes	Select or clear the propagate change option.
Reuse Proxies	Select or clear the reuse proxies option.
Frontend Protocol Filter	The front end protocol for the filter.
Policy processing order	Mention the policy processing order.
Allow use of functional endpoints	To use the functional endpoints, click Add and select category from Development, Production, Staging, or Testing, and click OK .
Business Impact	Select the business impact as high, low or medium from the drop down list.
Hours of Provider Operation	Select an option and then enter start and end times if required.
Hours of Service Operation	Select an option and then enter start and end times if required.
Expected Messages Per Day	Estimated messages per day.
Maximum Messages Per Day	Maximum messages per day.

Parameter	Description
Daily Peak Period	Select an option and then enter start and end times if required.
Peak	Expected messaging activity.
Service Availability	Expected time of service delivery.
Service Termination	Expected time of service termination.
Throughput	Measured number of messages per minute.
Response Time	Measured time for the service to respond.
Availability	Measured availability of the service during it operating hours.
Performance	Measured performance of the service.
Categories	Apply a set of categorizations to help other users to identify the artifact.
Documentation	Attach documents to the artifact.

Chapter 7: Versioning Overview

Services and their associated artifacts sometimes need to be changed or modified to reflect changes in business processes, service dependencies, or other business criteria. Services are composed of metadata, documents, and implementation artifacts. Maintaining proper relationships between all these changing components can be challenging, so Systinet includes extended support for the versioning of services and artifacts. This support includes features such as automatic version resolution during file uploading, and easy version creation based on selected versioning strategies.

Systinet uses both revisions and versions and these different concepts are described in the following topics.

Revisions

Revisions are used to track changes to individual artifacts and content in the catalog. Systinet stores a complete history of each artifact instance as a revision. Whenever an artifact changes Systinet automatically creates a new revision. There is no versioning schema associated with the tracking of revisions.

You normally work with the latest revisions of artifacts in the UI, but Systinet provides the Artifact View page History tab, enabling you to view and compare different artifact revisions and see the history of all changes.

Versions

While revisions are used to track the history of changes to services and their underlying artifacts, Versioning is a different concept. All services and artifacts have version numbers assigned to them by Systinet when they are created, or imported to the Catalog. As users create new versions, the versioning process within Systinet implements automatic changes to version numbers for individual artifacts, groups of artifacts, or the entire service, based on the scope of the changes being made.

When a version is created in Systinet then a new branch (newly created artifact instance) is created. The properties of the new branch are automatically set according to the previous version. In other words, as a starting point, the new branch is essentially a clone of the previous version. HPE recommends creating a new branch only when it is necessary to have more than one active version (artifact instance) at the same time. The typical example of this would be the need to have multiple implementations of the same service in production.

You can use the Version context actions in artifact view pages for quick navigation between different versions (branches).

Lifecycle and Versioning

Versioning is a natural consequence of using Lifecycle Governance.

Lifecycle Trees and Versioning

Artifacts that progress through a governance lifecycle together are grouped together in Systinet in a structure called a Lifecycle Tree. Lifecycle trees are defined by the user when setting up a lifecycle and can vary in how they are defined across different lifecycles.

Lifecycle trees are built around the concept of a Root artifact and Sub-artifacts, where there is a single root artifact for any lifecycle tree, with one or more sub-artifacts associated with that root artifact. For example, in the following diagram, the root artifact in the lifecycle tree structure is an Implementation, with sub-artifacts Endpoint, Operation, WSDL, Documentation, and SLO. The WSDL has an additional sub-artifact, XSD.



Because versioning involves potential changes to multiple artifacts in a lifecycle tree, there is a complex relationship between versioning and lifecycle. When a lifecyclee tree (root and sub-artifacts) is assigned to a lifecycle process, versioning is only allowed at the root artifact level; you cannot version sub-artifacts independently of the root artifact, and they always follow root artifact versions. This relationship between root and sub-artifacts in the lifecycle tree is tracked and understood by Systinet, so that the versioning relationship between the root and sub-artifacts is automatically maintained. Users who make changes to the version of a root artifact do not have to manually update the version numbers of the sub-artifacts.

However, not all services and artifacts are placed under governance. In this case, there is no lifecycle tree defined, hence no formal relationship between the different service artifacts. You can version any ungoverned artifact at anytime, but the versioning behavior is different. Unlike the example above, making a change to the implementation version of an ungoverned artifact does not automatically result in an update to the versions of the Endpoints, Operations, WSDLs, etc. The user must apply these changes manually if they want versioning to propagate across other artifacts.

Lifecycle Processes and Versioning

Lifecycle processes drive the versioning process. It is advisable to put artifacts under governance before versioning them, so that the versioning relationships across different artifact types can be maintained automatically by Systinet. This significantly reduces the complexity of managing versioning relationships.

In addition, HPE recommends using appropriate lifecycle processes. For example, for the appropriate versioning of service implementations it is crucial to govern services and their implementations independently.

You can perform the following operations:

- How to Create Versions
- How to Upload Versioned Data Files
- How to Compare Versions

How to Create Versions

Artifacts that progress through a lifecycle together are grouped into a structure called a Lifecycle Tree. For example, the root artifact in this structure (the one which controls the lifecycle stage of the others) could be Implementation, with sub-artifacts Endpoint, Operation, WSDL, XSD, Documentation, and SLO. HPE recommends applying versioning to the root artifact and allowing Systinet to propagate the version information to the sub-artifacts as a top-down approach to versioning.

New version functionality is accessible as a context action in Overview tab of Artifact view page.

To create new versions, follow these steps:

1. In the Artifact view page **Overview** tab, click the **New Version** context action to open the **New Version** page.

New Version		
Artifact: Current Version: New Version: New Version Remark: Advanced Options		ATM Backend Gateway 2.0 3.0
Create Blank Artifact If this is selected no pu Lifecycle Process:	t: roperties or sub-artifacts ar Select a process	e copied to the new version.
Save Cancel		

- 2. Enter the new version in **New Version** as per the requirement. By default, new version would be mentioned based on the previous version of the artifact.
- 3. Enter the remark for the new version in New Version Remark.
- 4. *(Optional)* For governed artifacts containing sub-artifacts governed by the same lifecycle process, expand **Advanced Options** and select from the following options:

Parameter	Deacription
Create Blank Artifact	By default, Systinet copies the properties of the previous version to the new version, creates new versions of sub-artifacts in the lifecycle tree, and reuses sub-artifacts that are outside the lifecycle tree (in other words, copies relationships

Parameter	Deacription
	from previous versions). Select Create Blank Artifact to create an empty instance of the root artifact. For example, to create a new version of an implementation without copying properties or creating new versions of Endpoints, Operations, and WSDLs, check this option.
Lifecycle Process	Select a process from the list of applicable lifecycle processes for the artifact type, to manually select a lifecycle process to apply to the new version.

5. Click Save to create the specified new version of the artifact.

How to Upload Versioned Data Files

HPE recommends the top-down approach to versioning as it requires fewer manual changes to data content and is less error-prone. However, Systinet does offer a bottom-up approach to versioning.

Systinet enables users to upload the data files into the Catalog. When uploading, you can specify the files to be uploaded and the server folder (a location in repository workspace, where the document is available). Systinet parses the file, processes imports (referenced documents) and creates appropriate artifacts accordingly.

Managing versioning by uploading data files is useful when Systinet is not the master data storage. In such cases versioning is primarily handled outside Systinet and when data files are uploaded to the repository, Systinet automatically handles versions, and the setting of version and server folder attributes.

Systinet distinguishes versions and revisions of definition data files according to their file names. Revisions have the same location in the repository workspace whereas versions have different locations. When you publish a new revision of a data file to the same server folder, Systinet creates a new revision and updates the corresponding artifact. On the other hand, when you upload a new version then Systinet creates a new branch (artifact instance).

In the following example, WSDL document account1.0.wsdl with namespace http://acme.com/account/v1.0 already exists in the repository. You change the document (for example, add a documentation element) but do not change the file name. When you upload the WSDL document to the same server folder then the existing WSDL artifact is updated and a new revision is created. On the other hand, when you upload the WSDL document with a changed file name account2.0.wsdl (or to a different folder) and change the namespace to http://acme.com/account/v2.0 then Systinet creates a new WSDL artifact for a new branch. Systinet automatically sets the version attribute of artifacts set according to the version in the data file. Versions of definition data files are usually specified in the document target namespace. Systinet enables the administrator to define which part of the namespace to treat as the version.

When you upload a WSDL document you can decide whether to create service and implementation artifacts together with data artifacts (for example, WSDL and XSD artifacts). If so, then Systinet checks whether the implementation and service exist in the repository and, if they do not exist, creates them during upload. However, if they do exist, they are reused.

In other words, when you upload a new WSDL document with a new file name and a changed namespace but with the same service name, then Systinet automatically creates a new Implementation artifact and associates it with the existing service artifact.

How to Compare Versions

Systinet enables you to compare different versions of artifacts.

To compare versions, follow these steps:

1. In the Artifact view page, **Overview** tab, click the **Version Tree** context link to open the **Version History** dialog.

Fautre impac	
Version History	×
□ 1.0 → □ 20	
	Stage
	Compare
Version Tree	Show Audit Log New Version

- 2. Select the versions you want to compare and click **Compare** to open the version changes page showing the differences between the selected artifact versions.
- 3. Use the version changes page to view the differences in the properties and relationships between the versions. Select to view only the **Changed** properties and relationships or **AII** properties and relationships.

Chapter 8: Product Integration

Systinet integrates with other products to serve as a central point of governance and to view all the information about your content.

Product Integration covers the following main uses cases:

- Discover and import the content of the integrated products so that you can govern and provide that content within Systinet.
- Publish and share the content of the Catalog with integrated products so that you can apply the features of those products.
- Access the information provided by the integrated products within Systinet.

The administrator is responsible for managing product integration within Systinet.

The exact details for each product vary but server management is handled in a generic way. The administrator creates a server artifact using a URL and a set of default credentials. Depending on the product and the configuration of Systinet, other users can use these default credentials to access the server or store their own in their credentials store.

For information on Systinet components, see "Systinet Product Family" on page 1.

Systinet provides integration and support for the following products:

UDDI Registry

Use UDDI Registries as central storage for your service infrastructure or for specific environments such as development and production registries. Integration with UDDI Registries enables integration with other products (for example, SAP) through the registry.

You can import, export, and synchronize your service artifacts with entities in the registry. For more details, see "UDDI Registry Integration" on page 105.

HPE Business Service Management

Discover services stored in HPE Business Service Management (BSM) and Universal Configuration Management Database (UCMDB) and enter them into governance. These discovered services are then monitored for changes and you can synchronize any changes from UCMDB into Systinet. Use BSM to monitor the performance of your services and view information generated by BSM on shared services in service detail pages. For more details, see "Business Service Management" on page 113.

Note: HPE Business Availability Center (BAC) 8.02 is no longer supported.

HPE Application Lifecycle Manager

Use Application Lifecycle Manager to track your service testing and view information generated by ALM on shared services in Systinet. For more details, "Application Lifecycle Management" on page 120.

UDDI Registry Integration

Systinet enables you to use UDDI Registries as central storage for your service infrastructure or for specific environments such as development and production registries.

Systinet splits responsibility for registry integration between administrators and users with permissions to transfer content between the Catalog and an integrated registry server.

The administrator manages integrated registry servers and must create an integrated server artifact before UDDI integration functionality is available for use. For details, see the following topics described in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*:

- How to Add Integrated Products
- How to Synchronize Registry Taxonomies

Caution: If HTTPS is used for Systinet–HP SOA Registry Foundation communication, then it is necessary to import the registry certificates into the application server certificate store.

Users with appropriate permissions can perform the following content management actions involving an integrated registry server described in the *HPE Systinet User Guide*:

- "How to Import from Registry" on the next page
- "How to Synchronize with Registries" on page 108
- "How to Export to Registry" on page 109
- "How to Delete Data from Registry" on page 111

A UDDI registry is an implementation of the UDDI specification, for example HP SOA Registry Foundation. The UDDI specification has three major versions, commonly named v1, v2 and v3. Systinet is interoperable with UDDI v3 compliant registries.

The UDDI specification defines four major entities:

Business Entity

A business entity represents a business unit, company, department, and so on. It contains one or more company names, contacts, and provided services. A business entity in registry corresponds to an Organizational Unit in the Systinet SDM model.

Service

A service represents a logical service. Services cannot stand alone, they must always be part of a parent Business Entity. A service in registry corresponds to an Implementation in the Systinet SDM model.

Binding Template

A binding template represents technical services. It includes information needed to create and run client applications. A binding template in registry corresponds to an Endpoint in the Systinet SDM model.

tModel

A tModel represents an arbitrary resource, that cannot be described by the structures above. For example; specification, documentation, (part of) WSDL document, policy or taxonomy. Therefore there is not a common map of tModel to an SDM model artifact.

Tip: The mapping for certain types of tModel can be defined in Systinet Workbench.

The UDDI specification defines interoperable standards for the exchange of data about web services, their interfaces, implementations, deployments, and responsible contacts.

How to Import from Registry

Systinet enables you to import services and associated entities from a UDDI registry.

To Import Data from a UDDI Registry, follow these steps:

1. Got to **Catalog > Import**, place the cursor over UDDI to display the integrated UDDI servers and select the registry you want to import from. The Import UDDI page is displayed.

Optionally, you can click **Change** to modify the UDDI connection credentials. You can also add new credentials and preserve them in your credentials store.

2. Select either **My Entries** or **AII**. **My Entries** displays the credentials you use to connect to the registry. **AII** displays all the credentials associated with the UDDI server.



3. Use the entity type tabs to select the UDDI entities to import. Use the name filter to locate a particular entity.

Import UDDI		
Server: Authenticate as: Select what to import	HP SOA Registry at hoavuxuan <admin> 🖋 (Change)</admin>	Show: • My Entities • All
Business Entities Business Services WS-Policies Systinet S	Services	
A UDDI Node The Operational Business Entity represents this UDDI registry. BE2 Advanced Options		

Note: You can only select from one type of entity. Systinet imports all related entities dependent on your selection. If you are importing a business entity, all its services are imported as well, and if you are importing a service, all its binding templates are also be imported. If a single business entity is imported then input a service name and description for the new business service artifact to associate with the imported items.

 Optional Expand Advanced Options and select whether the imported entities are automatically synchronized.

Note: You can create a synchronization task to update Systinet with changes to registry data. For details, see How to Synchronize with Registries.

5. Click Import to start the UDDI Import task.



This process executes as a bulk operation. An information bar is displayed informing you that the operation is in progress with a progress bar with options to **Stop** the operation or to **Notify Me** when the operation is complete.

The operation executes asynchronously, so you can navigate away and perform other tasks while the operation completes.

Note: Systinet provides some OOTB HTTP Status Code artifacts and HTTP Header artifacts which can be used while publishing WADL or Swagger files. The new HTTP Status Code or HTTP Header artifact will be created only when its code number or header value is found in the existing

list. For information on HTTP Status Code and HTTP Header Artifact, see "Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes" on page 201 and "Appendix B: HTTP Headers" on page 207 respectively.

How to Synchronize with Registries

When Systinet integrates with a UDDI Registry, each artifact that corresponds to a UDDI entity contains a **Synchronization** component in its **Overview** tab of Artifact View page.



For each registry, the artifact synchronization status is shown and synchronization actions are available.

Synchronization Status	Description
Not Synchronized	Systinet artifact does not correspond to any UDDI entity. It is not exported to UDDI or imported from UDDI. This synchronization status corresponds to the NEW resource status.
Synchronized	Systinet artifact and corresponding UDDI entity are semantically the same, both are the same since the last synchronization. This synchronization status corresponds to the IDENTICAL resource status.
Local change	Systinet artifact has changed (while the corresponding UDDI entity has not) since the last synchronization. This synchronization status corresponds to the LOCAL CHANGE resource status.
Remote change	The corresponding UDDI entity has changed since the last synchronization. This synchronization status corresponds to the REMOTE CHANGE resource status.
Local+Remote change	Both the Systinet artifact and the corresponding UDDI entity have changed since the last synchronization. This synchronization status corresponds to the NEEDS MERGE resource status.
Remote Entity Not Found	The corresponding UDDI entity does not exist or has been deleted. This synchronization status corresponds to the UNREACHABLE resource status.
Offline	The UDDI registry is not available to check the synchronization status.

Use the following functions to synchronize Catalog and Registry data:
- Import Update the Catalog artifact with the data from Registry.
- Export Update the Registry data with the artifact from the Catalog.
- **Delete** Delete the data from the Registry.

The administrator can schedule an automatic synchronization task for each registry.

To Schedule an Automatic Registry Synchronization Task, follow these steps:

- 1. In the Artifact View page of the Registry Server, click the **Schedule Automatic Sync** context action to open the **Schedule Automatic Sync** dialog box.
- 2. Set the schedule details as described in *How to Schedule Tasks* in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.

By default, the task finds all artifacts imported from the registry that are marked for automatic synchronization and updates the existing Catalog content with any changes found in the registry.

How to Export to Registry

You can export artifacts to an integrated registry individually or in bulk.

To Export an Individual Artifact to a UDDI Registry, follow these steps:

1. Open the Artifact View page of the registry you want to export and click **Export** in Synchronization component. The **Export to UDDI** dialog box is displayed.

Note: Only organizational unit, service, implementation and WS-Policy artifacts can be exported.

Optionally, to use alternative credentials, click **Change** to open the **Select Authentication** dialog box and select alternative credentials.

Note: For a successful export, the credentials used for registry sign-on must have the appropriate write permissions for the registry entities being created or amended.

- 2. *Optionally*, to change the parent business entity, click **Change** to open the **Select Parent Business Entity** and select an alternative entity.
- 3. Click **Export** to start the export process.

This process executes as a bulk operation. An information bar is displayed informing you that the operation is in progress with a progress bar with options to **Stop** the operation or to **Notify Me** when the operation is complete.

The operation executes asynchronously, so you can navigate away and perform other tasks while the operation completes

Note: Systinet provides some OOTB HTTP Status Code artifacts and HTTP Header artifacts which can be used while publishing WADL or Swagger files. The new HTTP Status Code or HTTP Header artifact will be created only when its code number or header value is found in the existing list. For information on HTTP Status Code and HTTP Header Artifact, see "Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes" on page 201 and "Appendix B: HTTP Headers" on page 207 respectively.

To export set of artifacts to a UDDI Registry, follow these steps:

1. Open the artifact collection page, select the artifacts you want to export and click **Export to Registry**. The **Export to UDDI** dialog box is displayed.

Note: Artifacts associated with the selected artifacts are included in the export with the exception of endpoints. Only endpoints with the same environment category as the registry server artifact are exported.

- 2. Select the registry server to export to and optionally change the credentials to use. You can add new credentials and preserve them in your credentials store.
- 3. *Optionally*, for artifacts other than Organizational Units, select a Business Entity to associate the exported entity with in the registry.
- 4. Optionally, expand **Advanced Options** and select **Overwrite Business Entities** to change any previously specified business entities for the artifacts selected for export.
- 5. Click **Export** to start the export process.

This process executes as a bulk operation. An information bar is displayed informing you that the operation is in progress with a progress bar with options to **Stop** the operation or to **Notify Me** when the operation is complete.

The operation executes asynchronously, so you can navigate away and perform other tasks while the operation completes

Note: Systinet provides some OOTB HTTP Status Code artifacts and HTTP Header artifacts which can be used while publishing WADL or Swagger files. The new HTTP Status Code or HTTP Header artifact will be created only when its code number or header value is found in the existing list. For information on HTTP Status Code and HTTP Header Artifact, see "Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes" on page 201 and "Appendix B: HTTP Headers" on page 207 respectively.

The report shows the artifacts exported, their registry entity type and key, and the result of the export for that artifact.

For exported binding templates, the WSDL repository URL is used by default with the following exceptions:

- If the registry artifact is categorized for an environment then an environment specific WSDL URL is used.
- If the registry artifact is not categorized for an environment then the WSDL URL from the repository REST location space is used.

To disable the use of repository URLs for WSDLs and enforce the use of the originURL (where the WSDL was imported from) the administrator must set the following property:

platform.integration.uddi.useRepositoryUrlOnWsdlExport=false

Consider this option if the repository is not your primary artifact store.

How to Delete Data from Registry

Entities in a synchronized registry can be deleted from the registry directly from Systinet.

To Delete an Entity from UDDI Registries, follow these steps:

1. Open the Artifact View page of the registry you want to export and click **Delete** in Synchronization component. The **Delete from UDDI** dialog box is displayed.

Note: The delete functionality is also available from the detail view of artifacts already deleted from the Catalog.

Optionally, to use alternative credentials, click **Change** to open the **Select Authentication** dialog box and select alternative credentials.

Note: For a successful deletion, the credentials used for registry sign-on must have the appropriate write permissions for the registry entities being deleted.

2. Click **Delete** to start the deletion process.

This process executes as a bulk operation. An information bar is displayed informing you that the operation is in progress with a progress bar with options to **Stop** the operation or to **Notify Me** when the operation is complete.

Note: Systinet provides some OOTB HTTP Status Code artifacts and HTTP Header

artifacts which can be used while publishing WADL or Swagger files. The new HTTP Status Code or HTTP Header artifact will be created only when its code number or header value is found in the existing list. For information on HTTP Status Code and HTTP Header Artifact, see "Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes" on page 201 and "Appendix B: HTTP Headers" on page 207 respectively.

Business Service Management

HP Business Service Management (formerly Business Availability Center) (BSM) monitors run-time services and collects statistics on their performance. These statistics enable you to verify that a service meets its service level objectives. BSM uses the Universal Configuration Management Database (UCMDB) which provides visibility of the infrastructure and applications that support your business services.

Systinet splits responsibility for BSM / UCMDB integration between administrators and users with permissions to access UCMDB content and BSM performance statistics.

The administrator manages integrated BSM / UCMDB servers and must create an integrated server artifact before BSM / UCMDB integration functionality is available for use. For details, see the following topic in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*:

• How to Add Integrated Products

Note: Systinet can integrate with only one BSM/UCMDB server which is associated with the toplevel domain.

Caution: If the Catalog already contains services discovered from BSM/UCMDB, do not delete the BSM/UCMDB server artifact. You may lose access to service discovery functions and discovered artifacts. If your BSM/UCMDB connection settings change, modify the properties of the existing BSM/UCMDB server.

Users with appropriate permissions can perform the following content management actions involving an integrated BSM / UCMDB server:

- "How to Import BSM/UCMDB Artifacts" on the next page
- "How to Resolve Matching Conflicts" on page 117
- "How to Mark Discovered Content as Rogue" on page 117
- "How to Ignore Discovered Content" on page 118
- "How to Synchronize Discovered Content" on page 118
- "How to Monitor BSM Performance Statistisc" on page 118

Systinet artifacts correspond to UCMDB entities as follows:

Systinet Artifact	UCMDB Entity
Organizational unit	Business Unit
Service	Business Service for Catalog
SOAP Service	Web Service

Tip: BSM can access services in Systinet directly if the connection to Systinet is set in BSM for Systinet Settings. This enables you to view SOAP Services in the Health Report page. For details, see the HP Business Service Management documentation.

How to Import BSM/UCMDB Artifacts

Systinet enables you to import services from the Universal Configuration Management Database (UCMDB) used by Business Service Management (BSM).

Note: To perform UCMDB discovery, a BSM/UCMDB server must be integrated with Systinet. For details, see *How to Add Integrated Products in HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.

Tip: To take full advantage of this feature, HP recommends integrating UCMDB with HP Discovery and Dependency Mapping Inventory (DDMI). DDMI can identify your physical and virtual IT assets, collect hardware information, and identify installed and used software. When integrated with UCMDB, DDMI can automatically populate UCMDB with this information.

To import artifacts from BSM/UCMDB, follow these steps:

1. Go to Catalog > Import, click UCMDB. The UCMDB Import page is displayed.

UCMDB Import				
00				Start Import
🔲 Name 🔺	Artifact Type	Related Artifacts	Matching Conflicts	 View Rogue View Ignored
				Processing Imported Artifacts

2. Click Start Import.

A task progress information bar opens with a link to the discovery process report. The task consists of the following stages:

a. Read the data from the BSM/UCMDB server.

- b. Store the discovered data in the Catalog.
- c. Update relationships between artifacts in the Catalog.

Discovery executes asynchronously so you can continue with other work while the task finishes.

The discover content process checks the Catalog for matching artifacts and resolves potential conflicts. The default rules for a conflict are determined by a configuration file. The default behavior checks for artifacts with matching name properties. For SOAP Services, Systinet checks for matching serviceName and serviceNamespace properties before checking the name.

A matching Service, SOAP Service, or Organizational Unit in the Catalog is assumed to be the same entity discovered in BSM/UCMDB. The artifact properties in the Catalog version are overwritten by the properties of the discovered entity. These properties are defined by a mapping file.

Any existing relationships with the existing repository artifact are preserved with the exception of previously discovered entities. For example, a Service created in Systinet is implemented with a SOAP Service previously discovered in BSM/UCMDB. The same service in BSM/UCMDB has the SOAP service removed and is then discovered. Systinet removes the relationship to that SOAP Service.

In the event that there are two or more artifacts in Systinet that conflict with a discovered entity, you must resolve the conflict manually as described in How to Resolve Matching Conflicts.

After discovery, the UCMDB Import page is populated with a list of content from the BSM/UCMDB server that is not already in governance in Systinet, or has not been marked as rogue or ignored.

UCMDB Import				
Name 🔺	Artifact Type	Related Artifacts	Matching Conflicts	Start Import
Customers	Organizational Unit			Schedule Automatic Import
External Providers	Organizational Unit			View Rogue
IT Department	Organizational Unit			 Viewightied
Service Level Manager	Organizational Unit			Processing Imported Artifacts

Note: Any discovered endpoints are categorized with the same environment category applied to the BSM/UCMDB server artifact.

Note: Systinet automatically creates Service artifacts associated with SOAP Services imported from BSM / UCMDB. In 3.x, these Service artifacts are only created when the imported SOAP Service is entered into governance. If you have SOAP Service artifacts which were migrated from HP SOA Systinet, then create appropriate Service artifacts and relations to the imported SOAP Services before entering them into governance.

The imported ungoverned content is only visible to you and you are expected to process the imported artifacts. The following procedures help you to process the imported artifacts:

- "How to Resolve Matching Conflicts" on the next page When the discovery process discovers
 multiple instances of matching artifacts already in the Catalog, you must resolve the conflict
 manually.
- "How to Mark Discovered Content as Rogue" on the next page Mark discovered content as requiring special attention for review later.
- "How to Ignore Discovered Content" on page 118 Mark discovered content as not required and ignore them in subsequent discoveries.
- Systinet does not govern discovered content automatically. To apply a lifecycle process to discovered content, use the Governance menu in the UCMDB Import page.

Note: These functions are not available if there is a discovery task in progress.

After discovery, services are monitored for changes and can be synchronized. For details, see "How to Synchronize Discovered Content" on page 118.

Note: It is recommended to update the Oracle Database schema statistics after importing large amounts of data. Old statistics may impact the performance of some data queries. Consult your database administrator.

To update Oracle schema statistics, perform the following step:

1. Execute the following command:

```
EXEC DBMS_STATS.GATHER_SCHEMA_STATS (ownname => '&1',no_invalidate =>
FALSE,options => 'GATHER');
```

This command does not require database admin privileges and can be run by the schema owner (ownname).

You can schedule UCMDB Import to execute at a set time or on periodic basis. In the UCMDB Import page, click **Schedule Automatic Import** and set the execution details.

If a task already exists, the **Schedule Automatic Import** link is replaced by **Edit Schedule** and **Cancel Schedule** links.

To stop a running UCMDB import task, perform the following step:

1. In the UCMDB Import page, while the import task is in progress click the Stop context action.

The task does not stop immediately. The import of data stops, but Systinet ensures that the data imported is consistent by updating the relationships between stored artifacts. If you execute discovery again, the data not imported the first time is re-discovered and then imported.

How to Resolve Matching Conflicts

When UCMDB Import runs, Systinet checks the imported content to see if it matches any existing content in the Catalog. In the event that there is more than one matching artifact, these artifacts are indicated as a conflict in the UCMDB page and you must resolve them manually.

To resolve matching conflicts, follow these steps:

- 1. In the UCMDB Import page, for the conflicted artifact, click Merge Duplicates to open the Merge Duplicates dialog box.
- 2. Use the **Detail** or **Comparison** links for each matching artifact to view their details or a detailed comparison with the imported artifact.
- 3. Do one of the following:
 - a. Select **Do not Merge Artifact** to leave the imported artifact as a separate entity.
 - b. Select a matching artifact to merge the imported artifact with it.
- 4. Click **OK** to perform the selected action.

If you selected to merge the artifact with a governed artifact, then it is removed from the **UCMDB Import** page.

How to Mark Discovered Content as Rogue

Some of the discovered artifacts may require special attention. Marking them as rogue adds them to a list of rogue artifacts which you can review at a later date. Systinet ignores them in subsequent discovery processes.

To mark discovered artifacts as rogue, follow these steps:

- 1. Go to Catalog > Import, click UCMDB. The UCMDB Import page is displayed.
- 2. Select the artifacts to mark as rogue, click Mark as Rogue, and confirm your decision.

The UCMDB Import page re-opens and the rogue artifacts are removed from the list of discovered artifacts.

Note: To review the list of rogue artifacts, in the **UCMDB Import** page, click **View Rogue**. In the list of rogue artifacts, you can revert the artifact to its originally imported state or mark it as ignored.

How to Ignore Discovered Content

Some discovered artifacts may be internal parts of third party products or low level infrastructure. Marking them as ignored makes them invisible in the Systinet UI and ignores them in subsequent discovery processes.

To mark discovered artifacts as ignored, follow these steps:

- 1. Go to **Catalog > Import**, click **UCMDB**. The **UCMDB Import** page is displayed.
- 2. Select the artifacts to mark as infrastructure, click Ignore, and confirm your decision.

The UCMDB Import page refreshes and the ignored artifacts are removed from the list of discovered artifacts.

Note: To review the list of ignored artifacts, in the **UCMDB Import** page, click **View Ignored**. In the list of ignored artifacts, you can revert the artifact to its originally imported state or mark it as rogue.

How to Synchronize Discovered Content

Artifacts discovered in BSM/UCMDB and entered into governance in Systinet are monitored for changes.

The **Synchronization** section of the **Artifact View > Overview** tab of a discovered artifacts displays a BSM Server section and its synchronization status:



Click Detail to view more information about the status and source of the discovered content.

Click Synchronize to update the Systinet artifact with the latest changes from BSM/UCMDB.

How to Monitor BSM Performance Statistisc

Any SOAP Service artifact monitored by BSM has an extra section in its Artifact Details page Metrics tab.

The Performance and Availability section displays statistics generated by BSM for the default time period. Select **Data Source** to refresh the information for the selected time period. Select **Real Data** to show metrics generated by actual users or **Synthetic Data** to show metrics generated automatically by SiteScope, an application monitoring product which you can integrate with BSM. Click **View Report in BSM** to display the BSM report for the selected time period.

Application Lifecycle Management

Systinet enables to register the SOAP services in ALM 11 for testing or imports Requirements from ALM 12, and then monitors the testing statistics in Systinet.

To customize Systinet to work with later ALM versions:

- 1. Access the page Administration > Configuration > System Settings.
- 2. Download the property file: platform.integration.alm.configuration
- 3. Modify this file by adding a new almServiceFetcher for the new version of ALM.
- 4. Upload this file again to Systinet.

Systinet splits responsibility for ALM integration between administrators and users with permissions to register services in ALM and access ALM quality statistics.

The administrator manages integrated ALM servers and must create an integrated server artifact before ALM integration functionality is available for use. For details, see the following topic in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*:

• How to Add Integrated Products

Note: In order to make Systinet artifacts visible in ALM, you must set the Sharing Principal role to use the system#everyone group, share the artifacts you want to make visible in ALM, and set sharing for the appropriate stages of lifecycle processes that govern the artifacts.

Users with appropriate permissions can perform the following content management actions involving an integrated ALM server:

- "How to Register Services in ALM" on page 125
- "Monitor ALM Quality Statistics" on page 133

Systinet artifacts correspond to ALM entities as follows:

Systinet Artifact	ALM Entity
SOAP Service	Web Service

Tip: ALM enables you to import services directly from Systinet . For details, see the HP Application Lifecycle Manager documentation.

Tip: Systinet provides a set of default technical policies which you can use if you want to make ALM integration and the statistics it provides part of your validation process.

ALM Server Customizations

You can customize the way that you view data collected from your ALM server by HP Systinet. The HP Systinet server provides three functions to get the service status from the ALM server.

The following procedures list the steps to add and customize your ALM server.

To add the ALM Server:

- 1. Click Administration > Servers > ALM Servers > Add ALM Server. The Add ALM Server page opens.
 - Namename of serverBase URLbase URL of serverUsernameqcadminPasswordqcadmin password
I Note: Check the Save Credentials checkbox.ALM DomainALM domain nameALM ProjectALM project nameEnvironmentservers environment
- 2. Fill in the following fields:

3. You can click Test Connection to test. After the test completes successfully, click Save.

To Customize the ALM Server:

- 1. Click **Customization > Customize** in the left navigation area.
- Click Recent Documents > GoogleSearchService (the SOAP service). The selected SOAP service page is displayed.
- Click More > Metrics. Initially, you will see a warning that no endpoints are defined for the Testing environment type.
- 4. Select the Details tab, and then under Environments, select Edit. The GoogleSearchPort_

Endpoint page is displayed.

- 5. In the Environment dropdown menu, select **Testing**, and then click **Save**.
- 6. Click **More > Metrics** and you will now see the ALM server quality presented graphically by default. However, you can customize this page to display different kinds of information.
- 7. 7.Click Customize to view the Artifact Detail Page that you will use to embed your customizations.
- 8. You can choose to customize with any of the following scripts:
 - a. Gets all ALM servers as JSON array by getAlmServers() function:

```
<customization xmlns="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"</pre>
xmlns:cust="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"
xmlns:xsi="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"
xsi:schemaLocation="cust artifactDetail.xsd">
<content>
<server id="alm_integration_server">
<import location="/scripts/almServerAPI.js"/>
</server>
<html id="alm_integration_client">
<include>
<script>
Ext.onReady(function () {
getAlmServers(almServersListener);
function almServersListener(result){
alert(result);
}
});
</script>
</include>
</html>
</content>
</customization>
```

b. Gets all ALM beans from ALM server as JSON objects by getAImBeans(serverUUID,

beanProps, runtimeContext) function. Includes:

Name	Description
serverUUID	The ALM server UUID.
beanProps	The name and view name (config in property file of 'platform.integration.alm.configuration' above) of ALM bean as JSON array. For example, var beanProps = [{name:almReq, href:viewRequirement}, {name:almDefect, href:viewDefect}]
runtimeContext	The runtime context to get ALM bean, must include serviceUUID. For example, var runtimeContext = {serviceUUID:alm_integration_ client.uuid}

```
<customization xmlns="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"
xmlns:cust="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"
xmlns:xsi="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"
xsi:schemaLocation="cust artifactDetail.xsd">
```

<content>

<server id="alm_integration_server">

<import location="/scripts/almServerAPI.js"/>

</server>

```
<html id="alm_integration_client">
```

<parameter name="uuid">\${artifact._uuid}</parameter>

<include>

<script>

Ext.onReady(function () {

```
var serverUUID = "xxx";
```

```
var beanProps = "[{name:almReq, href:viewRequirement}, {name:almDefect,
href:viewDefect}, {name:almTest, href:viewTest}]";
```

```
var runtimeContext = {serviceUUID:alm_integration_client.uuid};
```

getAlmBeans(serverUUID, beanProps, runtimeContext, almBeansListener);

function almBeansListener(result){

alert(result);

}

});

</script>

- </include> </html> </content> </customization>
- c. Gets all ALM beans from all ALM server as JSON object by getServiceStatus(beanProps, runtimeContext) function. Includes:

Name	Description
beanProps	The name and view name (config in property file of 'platform.integration.alm.configuration' above) of ALM bean as JSON array. For example, var beanProps = [{name:almReq, href:viewRequirement}, {name:almDefect, href:viewDefect}]
runtimeContext	The runtime context to get ALM bean, must include serviceUUID. For example, var runtimeContext = {serviceUUID:alm_integration_ client.uuid}

```
<customization xmlns="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"
xmlns:cust="http://systinet.hp.com/2009/02/ui/customization"
xmlns:xsi="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema-instance"
xsi:schemaLocation="cust artifactDetail.xsd">
```

<content>

```
<server id="alm_integration_server">
```

```
<import location="/scripts/almServerAPI.js"/>
```

</server>

```
<html id="alm_integration_client">
```

```
<parameter name="uuid">${artifact._uuid}</parameter>
```

<include>

<script>

```
Ext.onReady(function () {
```

```
var beanProps = "[{name:almReq, href:viewRequirement}, {name:almDefect,
href:viewDefect}, {name:almTest, href:viewTest}]";
```

```
var runtimeContext = {serviceUUID:alm_integration_client.uuid};
```

```
getServiceStatus(beanProps, runtimeContext, serviceStatusListener);
```

```
function serviceStatusListener(result){
```

alert(result);

User Guide

}
}
;
</script>
</include>
</html>
</content>
</customization>

How to Register Services in ALM

Integrate the ALM server with HPE Systinet and register SOAP services in ALM 11.5x.

Select the ALM 11.5x option, open the ALM services page, and register the services manually. For more information, see the ALM documentation.

An extra **Quality** section is available in the **Metrics > Artifact View** page of SOAP services. You can log on to ALM and register services.

E.

1. In the Artifact View page > Metrics > Quality section of SOAP service, click Register in ALM.

Systinet	CATALOG	REPORTS	NAVIGATOR	ADMINISTRATION
Artifacts ~	Create ~ In	nport ~		
GoogleSearch	Service, v	ersion 1.0		
Overview		Quality		
Documentation		No details available. Register in ALM on /	Register service in Se	rvice Test Management first.
Tree View				
Lifecycle				
Access Rights				
History				
Metrics				
Show More				

The ALM log in page is displayed.

2. Log on to ALM using the credentials. Go to **Application Components > Components > Generate Components**.

Application Lifecycle Management	And the second
< Back Forward > Tools * Help *	
Dashboard ¥	Components Edit View Analysis
C Management *	New Fill Send By E-mail
Requirements ¥	© Update Component
🖧 Lab Resources 😵	Restore Component
a Testing *	🖼 Generate Components
Chi Performance Center *	Discover Components
Defects	Generate Requirements/Tests_ Ctrl+E
Application Components	GoogleSearchService_1
C Application Model	Garage Advised Service Garage Advised Service Service
Development *	counter
	Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Binding Genclove_Main Genclove_Main Genclove_Main Genclove_Signer(Service_sp_AgentService_1) Genclove_Binding GaseManagement_Dev

The Generate Component - Select Source window is displayed.

E	Generate Components - Select Source
Service Test Management • Select Source • Add Components • Set Required Fields	Select Source Import WSDL from: C File C URL Systinet C UDDI Connection Settings
 View Summary Show Log 	This wizard only supports Webervice-type application components Cancel Next > Help

- 3. Select **Systinet** as source and click **Next**.
- 4. In the **Generate Component Add Component** window, enter the **Systinet address**, select the required services from the **Available Services** list, and click **Next**.
- 5. Click **Next** and then click **Finish**. The selected service(s) is added to the **Application Components** folder in ALM.

Components Edit View Analysis						
📫 🤤 • X 🖸 V • 😣	Details	Interaction	Testing Status	Attachments	Changes	Modeling
Application Components Obsolete AcmeATMT reneationIface SendSMS/Vorld SendSMS/Vorld SendSMS/Vorld GenericNAICS RgifAdapter SviddateEmail CarSalesService GoogleSearchService, 1 A/VSECommerceService GoogleSearchService, 1 A/VSECommerceService GoogleSearchService, 1 A/VSECommerceService SondStard_sol_iProcess_sp_Service_sp_AgentService Employee_Binding Employee_Binding Gas_SM_TESTRESULT_API BarkAccountService AGS_SM_TESTDATA_API Employee_Main CaseManagement Sol_Shared_sol_iProcess_sp_Service_sp_AgentService_1 CaseManagement GaseManagement GaseManagement GaseManagement GoogleSearchService_2 GoogleSearchService_2 SongleSearchService_2 GoogleSearchService_2 GoogleSearchService_2 GoogleSearchService_2 GoogleSearchService	* Com Assig Camp Creat Keep Upda	ponent name ined to QA: content type ni ion date: up to date: te time: ption Comm I U A	ents Contract	Description	vice_2	C III *

6. Click **Testing Status > Requirements**. Add the requirements to the service.

Q · X O 7 · 8	Details Interaction Testing Status Attachments Changes Modeling
Image: Composition Image: Composition Image: Composition <td>Dashboard Requirements Operations Tests Defects No linked requirements. Link requirements in one of the following ways: 1. Use the Requirements of Tests accentationalized 2. Click Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements free and the splets to open the Requirements free and the splets to open the Requirements</td>	Dashboard Requirements Operations Tests Defects No linked requirements. Link requirements in one of the following ways: 1. Use the Requirements of Tests accentationalized 2. Click Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements 0 yespinot20 Image: Splets to open the Requirements free and drag an item into the Requirements free and the splets to open the Requirements free and the splets to open the Requirements
Goodset G	Requirements Coverage:

7. Click **Test** and then click the refresh icon. The test status is displayed.

nponents Edit View Analysis							-		
Q . X Q V . M	Details	Interaction	Testing Status	Attachments	Changes	Modeling			
Comparing the second seco	Dashboa	d Rules	Aspects R	equirements	Operations A	Tests	Run	Not Completed	Passed
counter	(F) Sele	a ur a	/ ^						
- G Employee_Binding	Tests Cov	erage:							
EmployeeDB makeyayment Massayment AGS_SM_TESTRESULT_API AGS_SM_TESTRESULT_API AGS_SM_TESTRATA_API CaseManagement CaseManagement GozeStanagement_Dev GozeStanagement_Dev GozeStanagement_Dev	4	Is	estPlan01	test	Passed		MANUAL		

You can also click **Defects** to check the defects linked to this requirement.

The status of this requirement is also reflected in Systinet. You can check the status from the **Quality** section of the service in Systinet. For more information, see "Monitor ALM Quality Statistics" on page 133.

Note: To enable the STM plugin in ALM 11.5x, get the shared artifacts from Systinet. If the Systinet server is installed with LDAP then make sure that **stmintegrator/changeit** user is added in LDAP.

Caution: The SOAP service you want to register must be created in Systinet by uploading a WSDL that defines it. For details, see "Publish Content" on page 43.

The service is registered in ALM using a URL pointing to an environment specific WSDL containing only endpoints (wsdl:port elements) for the specified ALM Server environment. If the ALM server is not categorized for an environment then the original WSDL content is used.

For more information, see ALM documentation.

You can log on to ALM and generate a new module from the registered service of Systinet.

Caution: To be able to register services in ALM you must install HP Application Lifecycle Manager plug-in on the client:

- Microsoft Internet Explorer must be the default browser when accessing ALM.
- Access ALM and allow the client code to install (ActiveX) to the browser.

How to Import Requirements from ALM 12

To import the requirements, follow these steps:

- 1. Add new ALM server page. For details, see *Add ALM 12 Server Page* in *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.
- Go to Catalog > Import > Requirements in the left panel. The Requirement Import page displays.
- 3. Select the ALM Server, Domain and Project from the drop-down list. Click Next.
- 4. Select the checkbox for the requirements and click **Import**. The selected requirements are imported to Systinet.

Following are the Synchronization Status of the requirements:

Synchronization Status	Description
SYNCHRONIZED	Requirement details in repository are the same as in ALM Server.
NEW	Requirement has not been synchronized to the repository.
CHANGED	Requirement is synchronized from ALM Server and it is modified in ALM Server and Systinet.
REMOTE CHANGED	Requirement is synchronized from ALM Server and it is modified in ALM Server.
LOCAL CHANGED	Requirement is synchronized from ALM Server and it is modified in Systinet.

How to Synchronize Imported Requirements from ALM 12

If Systinet is synchronized with ALM 12 server then you can update the imported requirements from that ALM 12 server with the latest version of corresponding requirements.

To synchronize a single imported requirement, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the details page of requirement artifact that is imported from an ALM 12 server.
- 2. Click **Synchronize** from Synchronization section in the right.

Synchronization Test Status: Synchronized Cynchronize

To synchronize a group imported requirements, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the requirements collection page.
- 2. Select all the Requirements artifact that you want to synchronize. Click **Synchronize** bulk operation.

Systinet CATALOG REPORTS NAVIGATO	OR ADMINISTRATION				
Artifacts V Create V Import V					
Requirements All					
+ t- & ×					
Synchronize all selected Requirement	ALM Project	ALM Domain	Realized By	ALM Last Modified	Rating
ABCD	SYSTINET	KOCHI		May 4	☆☆☆☆☆
🗹 🏠 Requirements	SYSTINET	КОСНІ		11:09 AM	
Test requirement	SYSTINET	КОСНІ		May 23	
✓ ☆ Test1234546	SYSTINET	КОСНІ		May 17	
☑ ☆ Test>NG	SYSTINET	КОСНІ		May 23	
This is to test ALM 12 integration. This s to test changed synchronolization.					
	SYSTINET	KOCHI		May 4	
🗹 🏠 req	SYSTINET	KOCHI		May 5	
This is req1					
fggh	SYSTINET	KOCHI		TI:08 AM	<u> </u>

A Synchronize dialog box appears.

Synchronize ×		
A Synchronize selected items?		
Local Changes: • Keep • Overwrite		
Synchronize Cancel		

3. Select Keep or Overwrite local changes and click Synchronize.

To schedule synchronized imported requirements from an ALM server, follow these steps:

The task to synchronize imported requirements from an ALM server is created automatically when an ALM server is integrated. You can use this task to schedule synchronized imported requirements.

1. Go to **Administration > Tasks > Artifact view** page of ALM server Synchronization Task.

Sys	tinet	CATALOG	REPORTS	NAVIGATOR	ADMINISTRATION	
Â	User Manage	ement∨ Config	juration 🗸 🛛 Gov	vernance 🗸 RGIF	Run-time 🗸 Customization 🗸	
ALM Task	ALM - TEST7 ALM Server Synchronization Task					
Þ						
Synchronize requirements which were imported into the repository. Edit						
Execution History						
Star	ted at 🔻			Result		Run Time

2. Click the edit schedule icon to edit the task.

Monitor ALM Quality Statistics

You can monitor the ALM quality statics for registered services.

Registered Services

A registered SOAP service displays testing statistics in the Quality section of the Metrics tab in Artifact View page.

Quality (ALM 11) Requirements Coverage (1)	Defects (3)
• Passed(1)	• 5-Urgent(1) • 2-Medium(2)
View in ALM	View in ALM
Tests (1) View in ALM	

Use the requirement, test and defect links to open the relevant pages in ALM.

Chapter 9: Runtime Gateway Interoperability Framework (RGIF) Overview

Every corporation has information about IT assets dispersed in two different forms:

- 1. Operations running the applications in run-time.
- 2. Applications in design-time governance.

RGIF provides enforcement of both run-time and design-time policies and is based on Systinet contract management with contracts being identified during run-time as well as detecting rogue services. Service proxies are auto-deployed to run-time integration as managed endpoints and service capacities are monitored on a per contract basis.

RGIF features multi-device support (such as Layer 7 and IBM Datapower).

The following image shows how a typical communication scenario appears with runtime policy enforcement and without the HPE Systinet Repository:



Clients send messages to the policy enforcement RGIF device (also known as policy enforcement point, PEP) and onto a managed endpoint that has been created by the PEP administrator in order for the forward messages to be sent to the functional (application) endpoint. During the forwarding process runtime policies are applied on the messages being forwarded. These are configured by the PEP administrator as well.

The image below represents the same process with the Systinet repository:



When the Systinet repository comes into play, the messages between the service client and the service flows in the same way as it did in the scenario without Systinet repository. However, the configuration of the PEP device is now handled by Systinet Repository based on the service / policy metadata configured within. Note that Systinet is able to configure multiple devices from different vendors at the same time. When a service consumer/client is using a service, it is captured within the Systinet repository as a contract. Support for different PEP vendors is handled by independent PEP devices and these can be created by implementing an API.

Each device configuration is partitioned into proxy objects with each representing a single managed endpoint and is intended to be created for each functional service endpoint. Each proxy object has a persistent counterpart in Systinet repository represented by a single proxy artifact.

Proxy objects configured on PEPs that do not have the proxy artifact counterpart are referred to as rogue proxies/services.

Proxy objects are created either manually using a dedicated wizard or by an automatic action of a lifecycle process as a side effect of contract deployment. In other words, contract deployment is an action when a proxy object is created or updated to allow message exchange between a service consumer and a service provider.

RGIF in HPE Systinet:

- Remote implementation (adapter) Integration between Systinet and PEP (Policy Enforcement Point) is now communicated through a RGIF interface. Systinet contains RGIF implementations for Layer7 (7.1, 8.1) and Datapower (v6, v7) OOTB.
- RGIF discovery HPE Systinet 10 RGIF provides ability to discover REST and Web services from PEPs.

From runtime devices, Web services are discovered and synchronized to HPE Systinet as SOA artifacts, while REST services are synchronized as API artifacts. Discovered artifacts could then be governed within HPE Systinet or deployed to different runtime devices or environments.

Policies from runtime devices are also discovered, decomposed and synchronized into HPE Systinet as RGIF artifacts (proxy, universal policy and policy parameter artifacts).

- Discovery UI Discovery UI is introduced for manual discovery by administrator (or domain administrator).
- **Discovery Task** Discovery task is introduced for automatic discovery.

Administrator first specifies whether to decompose WSDL of runtime services and synchronization mode by using platform.rgifdiscovery.wsdls.decomposition and platform.rgifdiscovery.synchronization.mode system properties or by the configuration.

Then set schedule for RGIF Discovery Task to run at a regular interval.

• **RGIF deployment** - REST service deployment - Repository users could deploy REST services from Systinet to PEP.

Feature summary

Contract development process

- User defined workflow with approval process
- Custom policies and control over manual tasks
- Per contract service monitoring and QoS enforcement
- Tracking of the full history from design time to runtime (included)
- Discovering service utilization trends

- Identification of capacity issues
- Capacity planning

Environment management

- Separate environments, for example, testing/staging/production
- User/role based access control to service information (endpoints, WSDLs etc.)
- Policy management
- Assured information reliability and consistency using policies and lifecycle identification of rogue contracts and service endpoints
- Automatic distribution of policies to integration devices
- Policy versioning

Devices for automatic configuration of runtime governance integration devices

- Vendor neutral (Layer 7, IBM Datapower)
- Open architecture

You can perform the following operations:

- Runtime Contracts
- Manual Proxy Creation and Contract Deployment
- Lifecycle Based Contract Development
- Composite Application Development Lifecycle
- Propagating Service Changes to Proxies

Runtime Contracts

Because proxy objects are created on behalf of a contract, you can apply contract enforcement. This means that only messages sent by negotiated service consumers that are configured in the repository are allowed to send messages to the application endpoints. This is the default behavior of the proxy objects created by Systinet.

RGIF devices need to perform contract identification to ensure contract enforcement. In proxy objects, it is encoded which contracts are allowed to send messages to the proxy object. The identification itself

is performed based on message properties such as an HTTP header holding the contract ID sent within each message. There are some other means to perform contract identification; HTTP basic credentials, XPATH expression evaluated over the message and others.

Proxy objects created by Systinet also allow per contract service monitoring, which means that statistics such as the number of messages sent per day by an individual contract may be monitored.

Manual Proxy Creation and Contract Deployment

Proxy objects can be created on demand directly from the repository user interface using a dedicated UI wizard. This means of proxy creation/contract deployment is meant to be used primarily by administrators to fix exceptional states when an automated proxy creation within a lifecycle fails. In some situations where full lifecycle process is not required, it might be used by regular users to create proxies. This feature must be explicitly enabled in the general contract deployment settings.

Lifecycle Based Contract Development

Proxy objects can also be created during an contract artifact lifecycle by assigning Create/Remove PEP proxy automatic action assigned to a lifecycle stage. The most simple lifecycle process looks like the following:



Note that the *Requested* state is represented by a contract request artifact and the contract lifecycle starts in the *Accepted-Undeployed* state. It is useful to configure the lifecycle process to be automatically assigned to contracts.

The above lifecycle might be too simple to be used in a typical IT environment where there are different (separated) environments/landscapes for service development/testing/production. Systinet supports this scenario as well and all that is required is to associate RGIF devices with environments and define the contract lifecycle in a similar fashion as likely done for the service lifecycle process – there will be stages matching the environments defined in the lifecycle.



The contract lifecycle has stages matching the service lifecycle and it means the following – when a contract is in the development environment lifecycle stage, it is accessing managed endpoints created for the service hosted in the development environment. In the image above the contract AA is in the Development environment lifecycle stage.

The process is as follows:

- 1. The client creates a WSDL request on the Systinet Repository passing his contract ID.
- 2. Repository returns WSDL with the service URL pointing to the RGIF device assigned to the Development environment.
- 3. Based on the information in the WSDL the client sends a message to the proper proxy object hosted on the RGIF device and the response is returned.

When the contract lifecycle is promoted to the next lifecycle state the client acts in the very same way but will receive a different URL within the WSDL.



The important and valuable aspect about this is that contracts are moved between environments just by changing the information in the repository; client reconfiguration is not required. This becomes useful when the client is deployed multiple times on different computers as in the example of a desktop application being used by multiple users.

Also note that you can have a single contract deployed across multiple environments; in this case the client must pass the contract ID and also the environment which is intended to be accessed.

Composite Application Development Lifecycle

Composite applications are those that are formed from multiple services, are captured within the Systinet repository and have contracts created between them. Composite applications may have their own dedicated lifecycle process and if this is correctly defined it can be used to move composite application contracts and proxies created in these lifecycle processes from one environment to another – Systinet automatically creates these proxies in the new environment.

Propagating Service Changes to Proxies

When a service is changed (such as the change of a functional endpoint), propagating these changes into the RGIF devices is required. This is not done automatically, and you will need to trigger this operation from a lifecycle associated with the modified service (this can be done for implementations and endpoints as well).

Note: This procedure only updates proxies that were previously created for contracts where the service is the under the role of provider. If you are creating proxies for artifacts other than contracts you need to use the Create/Remove proxy procedure and check both the deploy and undeploy check boxes for the affected environment(s) – when executed the proxy will be recreated.

When the procedure Update proxies is executed, it drops all the related proxy objects and recreates them based on the latest information in the SLO and the related endpoint/WSDL information.

The following topics help you propagate the service changes to proxies:

- Quick Start
- Working with Policies
- Managing Proxies

Quick Start

The following sections help you set up Systinet and RGIF devices for use with policy enforcement automation:

- Deploy Remote Layer 7 Adapter
- Deploy Remote Datapower Adapter
- Additional Artifact Properties to Layer 7
- Edit Adapter Configuration
- Adding RGIF Servers
- Creating Contract Management Artifacts
- Defining Default RGIF System Settings
- Setting Contract Development Lifecycle Process
- Publishing a Service

- Defining Service SLO
- Creating Contracts
- Accessing Service Through Proxy

You can monitor performance of the individual contract, see Contract SLO Monitoring.

Deploy Remote Layer 7 Adapter

Systinet introduces the concept of RGIF adapters. Systinet RGIF Adapter is designed to place between Systinet and the proxy management devices. For Systinet server, the RGIF adapter provides management of runtime proxies on the device.

RGIF adapter is a standalone software component deployable to the application server. The adapter exposes WSDL for Systinet. Systinet connects to the adapter as a web service client.

- Layer 7 adapter package information is provided in: %SYSTINET_HOME%/deploy/rgif-adapterlayer7.war.
- Deploy Layer 7 adapter to jboss by copying rgif-adapter-layer7.war to %JBOSS_HOME%/ [node_name]/deployments.
- 3. Add Layer 7 certificate to %SYSTINET_HOME%/conf/client.truststore.
- 4. Add Layer 7 certificate to %SYSTINET_HOME%/bin/serverstart.bat(.sh) using:

+ SET JAVA_OPTS=%JAVA_OPTS% -Djavax.net.ssl.trustStore=%SYSTINET_ HOME%\conf\client.truststore

- 5. Restart Systinet.
- Start the Layer 7 adapter WSDL: http://[host]:[port]/rgif-adapterlayer7/17adapter?wsdl.

Deploy Remote Datapower Adapter

Administrators can configure a remote datapower adapter that allows creation of IBM DataPower XI52.6.0.1.0 devices in Systinet.

- 1. Datapower adapter package information is provided in: %SYSTINET_HOME%/deploy/rgifadapter-dp.war.
- 2. Deploy datapower adapter to jboss by copying rgif-adapter-dp.war to %JBOSS_HOME%/[node_
name]/deployments.

- 3. Add datapower certificate to %SYSTINET_HOME%/conf/client.truststore.
- 4. Add datapower certificate to %SYSTINET_HOME%/bin/serverstart.bat(.sh) using:

+ SET JAVA_OPTS=%JAVA_OPTS% -Djavax.net.ssl.trustStore=%SYSTINET_ HOME%\conf\client.truststore

- 5. Restart Systinet.
- Start the datapower adapter WSDL: http://[host]:[port]/rgif-adapterdp/dpadapter?wsdl

How to Provide Additional Artifact Properties to Layer 7 Server

In order to provide additional artifact properties, following are the steps:

1. Modify the script artifact iPepAPI.js.

The script artifact can to be modified in order to add additional artifact properties into result variable.

a. Use the line of code below to get information of an artifact:

```
var art = repositoryService.getArtifact(UUID.toUuid(uuid),
ArtifactPartSelector.ALL_PROPERTIES)
```

b. To get string property, artifact property is defined by the following:

art.getProperty(property Name).toString()

c. Additional artifact properties into result variable is defined by:

For example, property A1 of consumer and new artifact is added:

```
var A1= art.getProperty(A1).toString();
```

var newUuid=....

var newArtifactName=...

var result = {device:{uuid:deviceUUID,name:deviceName},

contract:{uuid:contractUUID,name:contractName},

```
slo:{uuid:sloUUID,name:sloName},
```

```
consumer:{uuid:consumerUUID,name:consumerName, propertyA1:A1},
provider:{uuid:providerUUID,name:providerName},
identity:{uuid:contractIDManagementUUID,name:idManagementName},
script:{uuid:scriptUUID,name:scriptLocation},
newArtifact {uuid:newUuid,name:newArtifactName }
};
result['policies']=policies;
```

d. To add the new properties of runtime policy artifact, the following line of code needs to be modified:

```
temp += '{"uuid":"' + policy.get_uuid() + '","name":"' + policy.getName() +
'"}';
```

- 2. Modify the template file Layer 7 template file.
 - a. Extract the OOTB default template file from the following:

```
ipep-adapter-layer7.war\WEB-
INF\classes\com\hp\systinet\proxy\mgmt\impl\l7\policy\templates\default.ft
```

- b. Add your custom template file in Jboss7 AS in standalone mode.
- c. Open standalone.bat then add following file:

```
SET JAVA_OPTS=%JAVA_OPTS% -Drgif.adapter.17.policy.template.file=custom-
config-path/custom-template.ftl
```

d. In custom-template.ftl, use the syntax of FreeMarker to access to java objects.

Note: Systinet is using FreeMarker version 2.3.14.

Examples

Example Code	Description
\${context['consumer'] ['name']	to get the artifact name of consumer artifact
\${context['contract'] ['name']	to get the contract name
\${context['policies'] [0].name	to get the name of the first policy which is added into SLO artifact of the contract

Note: Policies are stored in an array.

How to Edit the Adapter Configuration

To edit the adapter configuration, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to Systinet as Administrator.
- 2. Go to Administration > Default Domain > Integrations.
- 3. Click Add Integrations under RGIF Devices. The Add RGIF Device window is displayed.
- 4. Enter the URL for the adapter in the Adapter URL.
- 5. Click Edit Configuration in Adapter Configuration.
- 6. Modify the content of adapter configuration based on below schema:
 - a. Layer 7 adapter

<xs:schema xmlns:tns="http://adapter.rgif.hp.com/"</pre> elementFormDefault="qualified" targetNamespace="http://adapter.rgif.hp.com/" xmlns:xs="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema"> <xs:simpleType name="NonEmptyString"> <xs:restriction base="xs:string"> <xs:minLength value="3"></xs:minLength> </xs:restriction> </xs:simpleType> <xs:element name="adapter"> <xs:complexType> <xs:sequence> <xs:element type="tns:NonEmptyString" name="name"</pre> maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1" nillable="false" /> <xs:element name="device" maxOccurs="unbounded"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Device adapter name is filled here </xs:documentation>

</xs:annotation> <xs:complexType> <xs:sequence> <xs:element type="tns:NonEmptyString" name="deviceId"</pre> maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1"> </xs:element> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="location"</pre> maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Device adapter ID is filled here. ID must be unique.... </xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="externalUrl"</pre> maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="0"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Mangement URL for device</xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="name" maxOccurs="1"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Mangement Console URL for device </xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element name="snmp" maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Device name is filled here</xs:documentation> </xs:annotation>

<xs:complexType> <xs:sequence> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="address" /> <xs:element type="xs:anyURI" name="aggregator" /> <xs:element type="xs:short" name="port" /> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType> </xs:element> <xs:element name="interface" maxOccurs="unbounded"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:complexType> <xs:sequence> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="name" /> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="url" /> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType> </xs:element> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType> </xs:element> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType> <xs:key name="deviceId"> <xs:selector xpath="tns:device/tns:deviceId" /> <xs:field xpath="." /> </xs:key> </xs:element> </xs:schema>

b. IBM Datapower adapter

```
<xs:schema xmlns:tns="http://adapter.rgif.hp.com/"</pre>
```

User Guide

```
elementFormDefault="qualified" targetNamespace="http://adapter.rgif.hp.com/"
```

```
xmlns:xs="http://www.w3.org/2001/XMLSchema">
```

<xs:simpleType name="NonEmptyString">

<xs:restriction base="xs:string">

<xs:minLength value="3"></xs:minLength>

</xs:restriction>

</xs:simpleType>

<xs:element name="adapter">

<xs:complexType>

<xs:sequence>

<xs:element type="tns:NonEmptyString" name="name"</pre>

maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1" nillable="false" />

<xs:element name="device" maxOccurs="unbounded"</pre>

minOccurs="1">

<xs:annotation>

<xs:documentation>Device adapter name is filled here

</xs:documentation>

</xs:annotation>

<xs:complexType>

<xs:sequence>

<xs:element type="tns:NonEmptyString" name="deviceId"</pre>

```
maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1">
```

</xs:element>

<xs:element type="xs:string" name="location"</pre>

maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="1">

<xs:annotation>

<xs:documentation>Device adapter ID is filled here. ID must be

unique....

</xs:documentation>

</xs:annotation>

</xs:element>

<xs:element type="xs:string" name="externalUrl"</pre> maxOccurs="1" minOccurs="0"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Mangement URL for device</xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="name" maxOccurs="1"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Mangement Console URL for device </xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="domain" maxOccurs="1"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:annotation> <xs:documentation>Device name is filled here</xs:documentation> </xs:annotation> </xs:element> <xs:element name="interface" maxOccurs="unbounded"</pre> minOccurs="1"> <xs:complexType> <xs:sequence> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="name" /> <xs:element type="xs:string" name="url" /> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType> </xs:element> </xs:sequence> </xs:complexType>

</xs:element>

```
<xs:element type="xs:string" name="restEnforcement" maxOccurs="1"
minOccurs="1"/>
</xs:sequence>
</xs:complexType>
<xs:complexType>
<xs:key name="deviceId">
<xs:selector xpath="tns:device/tns:deviceId" />
<xs:field xpath="." />
</xs:field xpath="." />
</xs:element>
</xs:element></xs:schema>
```

Adding RGIF Servers

To add RGIF servers, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to Systinet as Administrator.
- 2. Go to Administration > Default Domain > Integrations.

Default Domain	
Overview	• Note: BSM / UCMDB can only be created in the top-level domain. Click here to go the top-level domain.
Roles	UDDI Registries
Members	Add Integration
RGIF Settings	ALM 11 Servers
Default Access Rights	Add ALM
Integrations	ALM 12 Servers
	Add Integration
	RGIF Devices
	Add Integration

3. Click Add Integrations under RGIF Devices. The Add RGIF Device window is displayed.

Add RGIF Device	
Adapter URL: *	http://iwfvm01381.hpswlabs.adapps.hp.com:8080/rgif-adapter-layer7/l7adapter
Next Cancel	

- 4. Enter the URL for the adapter in the Adapter URL and click Next.
- 5. Enter information in the rest of the fields and click **Test Connection**.

Add RGIF Device	
Adapter URL:	http://iwfvm01381.hpswlabs.adapps.hp.com:8080/rgif-adapter-layer7/l7adapter
Adapter Configuration:	Edit Configuration S Reset Configuration
Device ID:	L7.host.systinet
Name: •	
Description:	
Discoverable:	0
Authentication	
Username: *	
Password: •	
Catalog Specific	
Environment:	< No Value > V
Test Connection Save Cancel	

- 6. Once the test connection is successful, click **Save** to add the RGIF server.
- 7. Optionally, you can also edit the configuration or reset the configuration.
 - a. To Edit the configuration, click **Edit Configuration** in **Adapter Configuration**. The **Edit Configuration** window is displayed.

Edit	Configuration	53 ×
1 * 2 3 * 4 5 6 7 7 8 * 9 10 11 12 13 * 14 15 16 17 * 18 19 20 21	<pre><adapter xmlns="http://adapter.rgif.hp.com/"></adapter></pre>	re. ID must be unique. 2> Console URL for device
23	Validate	Save Cancel

- b. Modify the configuration and click **Validate**. Once validation is successful click **Save**.
- c. To reset the configuration, click **Reset Configuration** in **Adapter Configuration**. A confirmation window is displayed.



d. Click **OK** to reset configuration.

Creating Contract Management Artifacts

To create a contract management artifact, follow these steps:

- 1. Click Catalog tab.
- 2. Click Create > Show More to open the catalog browser.
- 3. Click Contract ID Management. The Contract ID Management window is displayed.

Systinet «CATALOG REF	PORTS NAVIGATOR >	Q Search	Create new in Default Domain 🔻	Administrator
Artifacts Y Create Y Import Y		☆ Favorites ଅR	ecent Documents	n My Tasks 🗎
Contract ID Management				Located i Default Domai
Name • Description:	▶• B I U Ø Metric • ▲ I III III• III• ● - S Ø	?		
ID message location: Identity retrieval method: Device managed:	Client certificate			
Caregories Caregory Documentation Swe Cancel				

4. Enter the details and click Save to create the contract ID management artifact.

Defining Default RGIF System Settings

Contract Deployment

The Contract Deployment consists of the following sections:

1. SLM Retrieval Configuration

These settings are used to configure the repository contacts proxy devices in order to gather information on contract Service Level Metrics (SLM).

2. Deployment Settings

a. Automatic proxy reuse

Repository is capable in configuring multiple contracts to use the same proxy object if these apply the same set of policies. If you want to have a different proxy object (endpoint at the end) for each contract, then uncheck this setting.

b. Destroy orphan proxies

Repository deletes unused proxy objects.

Note: When a service WSDL/endpoint is changed proxy objects are automatically updated without any further action. By default this update is performed by an automatic action defined within the service lifecycle.

c. Hide functional endpoints if managed are available

This setting affects the user interface only; if a functional endpoint has it's managed counterpart available then the functional one might be hidden; this is useful when you don't want regular users to access the functional endpoint directly but through PEP only. This setting affects the main display of endpoints/implementations only, users will be still able to access the functional endpoint via relationships (navigator, rest, ui relationship browser)

d. Allow manual / non-governed deployment actions for non-admin users

Uncheck this if you don't want users to use the manual deployment wizard and force them to follow the defined contract lifecycle process.

3. New Proxy Parameters

a. Protocol handler

By default the automatic publishing process makes the proxy object available through all the protocol handler the proxy device has available. Here you can define regexp filter for the protocol handler name that will define which protocols new proxies will be available to.

b. Path Template

This settings shows how managed endpoint urls are constructed. You can specify your own default path which can contain following place holders:

\${environment}	name of the environment where functional endpoint resides.
\${contractID}	contract ID which is the managed endpoint. To utilize this functionality you should uncheck the Automatic proxy reuse checkbox.
\${path}	path of the original functional endpoint
\${date}	current date in \$(YYYYMMDD) format

c. Proxy layout

The contract to be deployed might be used to consume multiple different services. Some devices allow to create a single proxy object to handle multiple services per a proxy object. In that case the layout might be:

- **shared** there will be created a proxy object per single contract.
- per service there will be create new proxy object per service available under the contract.
- d. Identity retrieval

Defines the method of association of messages by the proxy object with contracts.

To define a default RGIF system settings, follows these steps:

- 1. Log on to HPE Systinet as Administrator.
- 2. Click Administrator and select your working domain.
- Click RGIF Settings tab to define default RGIF system settings and scroll down to New Proxy Parameters.

New proxy par	ameters
Define a regexp	filter for the device protocol handlers associated with newly created proxies. First matching handler will be used for the new proxy.
5 1	
Protocol	•
handler:	
Define a templa	te for the path part of the url of new proxies, use \$(path),\$(environment),\$(contractID) parameters:
Path Template:	/S/environment//S/nath}
When the deplo	and contract is bound to multiple convices you need to choose whether to create a promy for each convice or a common prove for both convices will be created
when the depic	yea contract is bound to manuface envices you need to choose whether to cleare a proxy for each service of a contributing row for bound services will be cleared.
	C Pel service proxy rayour
Select default c	onfract identification method:
Identity	
Retrieval:	
	Sa

4. Enter the Identity Retrieval field and click Save.

Publish a Service

For demo purposes there is demo service available under PLATFORM/demo/proxy_mgmt/hello_ service and start it.

Check the service WSDL under http://localhost:6060/demo/basic/HelloService/wsdl.

To publish a service, follow these steps:

1. Go to Catalog > Import > File. The File Import window is displayed.

You can create Artifacts by up	oading data files such as WSDL, WADL, Swagger, XML Schemas, SCA, BPEL or XPDL proc	ess definitior
URL V		
Server Folder:	/defaultDomain	Select
Location after Upload:	http://puevmsysdemo02.hpeswlab.net:8080/systinet/platform/rest/location $\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$	
Advanced Options		

2. Enter the required details and click Import to publish the service.

Defining Service SLO

Open the Hello service and create a Default SLO artifact for it under SLO.

To open the service and create a default SLO, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the Hello service detail, in the Overview tab click 🗹 . The **Create Proxy** window is displayed.
- 2. Enter name as *Default SLO* and use the default values for the rest of the options.

Using the SLO you can override the settings and you can associate policies with a contract.

Creating Contract

To create a contract request for the hello service, follow these steps:

1. Make the service consumable.

Ensure to associate proper SLO with the contract.

2. Request approval in the "Stage" lifecycle stage.

The approval will be automatically granted. On the background the proxy object for the hello service will be created.

Accessing Service Through Proxy

Start the SOAP UI tool available from http://www.soapui.org/.

Create new project and as initial WSDL/WADL, use the wsdl url property from the contract page view in the Systinet repository.

Notice that there is a ContractID associated with the contract. As we have chosen the ContractID HTTP header style of identification of contract on the proxy object, we will have to pass this string in the "ContractID" HTTP header to the proxy.

Working with Policies

SLO objects might be associated with runtime policies. Runtime policy is an artifact that is created by importing and synchronizing it with a policy from an RGIF device. Policies are handled differently by different devices. You need to check the particular device manual to be aware of it's specifications and limitations.

Policies that can be downloaded from the device into a repository must follow the following naming convention, that is, the policy name must end with the "_policy" string. Otherwise, the device ignores them.

The following are the topics that help you work with policies:

- Creating Policies
- Using Policies
- Policy Versioning

Creating Policies

To import a policy from the device into repository, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to HPE Systinet as Administrator.
- Go to Administrator > RGIF Run-time > Runtime Policies. The Runtime Policy Synchronization Status window is displayed.

Runtime Policy Synchronization Status				
Here you can see only runtime policies on the	Device that are recognize	ed by Systinet (i.e having "_policy	'[_version_x]" suffix).	
Legend:				
UNSYNCHRONIZEDPolicy has been found on the device but it is not known to the repository.SYNCHRONIZEDPolicy has been imported into the repository and it contents is the same as on the device.CHANGEDPolicy has been imported into the repository but it's contents is different than on the device.OBSOLETEPolicy has been imported into the repository but it can't be found on any device.				
You can delete individual policies but only the	repository representatio	n is removed. The policy on the a	'evice remains unfouched.	
Name 🚬	Version	Device Native ID	Synchronization S	
Device: I7 bangalore v8		1	II	
🕀 Itkien	1	ltkien	Unsynchronized	
	Not versioned	POST_OrderTrackingEnq	Unsynchronized	
POST_ServiceAssuranceEnqueue	Not versioned	POST_ServiceAssuranceE	Unsynchronized	
	Not versioned	PRE_OrderTrackingEnqu	Unsynchronized	
PRE_ServiceAssuranceEnqueue	Not versioned	PRE_ServiceAssuranceEn	Unsynchronized	
RESTLogging	Not versioned	RESTLogging	Unsynchronized	
Sustinut				
About Current Date: Jan 10, 2017 5:49:20 AM, CET Last Login: Jan 10, 2017 5:44:48 AM, CET © Copyright 2003-2016 Hewlett Packard Enterprise Development Company, L.P.				

You will get a list of all policies available on all devices known to Systinet. Those marked as **SYNCHRONIZED/CHANGED/OBSOLETE** are already imported into Systinet and the ones that are marked as **UNSYNCHRONIZED** are not imported into the HPE Systinet repository.

3. To import those policies from Device to Repository, you can select them and click **Synchronize** Into Repository.

The whole definition of the policy is uploaded into repository and can be later uploaded into a different device (this is done automatically by Systinet if it is needed).

Using Policies

You can associate runtime policies with SLO artifacts that are linked to contracts. Once the contract is deployed it's associated policies are configured into the proxy object created for the contract.

Note that policies linked to a SLO are also divided into groups by environment. Each link has a property called useType (it is available using DQL) which is equal to the value from the environment taxonomy. By default Systinet includes a preconfigured user interface where only Stage and Production environments are available for association with policies on the SLO overview page.

You can customize Systinet to support policies for other environments as well. All you need to do is to switch to UI customization mode and duplicate the setup of the production environment policy links, and change the environment labels and taxonomy key.

Policy Versioning

SystinetRepository integration with RGIF devices supports policy versioning – you will need to use the following naming convention:

- Policy objects on the devices that have names ending with _policy are thought to be non versioned.
- Policy objects that have names ending with policy_version_{version number} (like policy_version_ 1, policy_version_22) are thought to be versioned.

Non versioned policies are expected to be the same across all the devices and changing it in one place means that it should be changed in all other places where it is used. It is the responsibility of the administrator to assure this. When a contract using such policy is deployed, the policy already available on the device is automatically used. If it is not available the last synchronized revision of the policy artifact is used to reconstruct to policy object on the device.

Using versioned policies on the other hand gives you the possibility to use different version of the same policy across multiple contracts. Also you will be able to track those versions using the UI.

Manage Proxies

As an Administrator, you can review the proxies and their status using the **Administration** tab. To manage the proxies and their status, go to **Administration > RGIF Run-time > Proxy Management**. A report of synchronized and unsynchronized proxies are displayed.

Proxy Category

The following categories of proxies are available:

Category	Description
Synchronized	Proxies marked as Synchronized are both correctly registered in the repository and in the devices.
Unsynchronized	Proxies marked as Unsynchronized indicate that there is a mismatch between the information in the repository and in the device.

The best way to resolve such a state is by deleting the proxy and rebuilding it manually.

Note: Rogue services can be detected using the dialog described in the previous section; these are those marked as unsynchronized and available on the device but not in repository.

The following topics help you manage the proxies:

- Creating Manual Proxies
- Working with Proxies
- Enabling X150 Remote Configuration
- Enabling L7 Remote Configuration
- L7 SLM Handling

Creating Manual Proxies

You can create proxies manually using a wizard.

To create a proxy manually, follow these steps:

- 1. Perform one of the following:
 - a. Go to Administration > RGIF Run-time > Creat Proxy.
 - b. Go to Contract Deployment Status page, click on the + to expand the contract, and click **Deploy**.

The Create New Proxy window is displayed. By default, Contract is selected as artifact type.

- 2. Specify the following parameters for the new proxy:
 - a. Specify the frontend protocol used by the proxy. It must be preconfigured on the device first. The newly created endpoint will use this protocol. To create a frontend protocol on a device

you need to follow the proper device documentation.

- b. Provide a unique name for the new proxy object. You can find the proxy object by this name in both the repository and the RGIF device.
- c. Choose a preconfigured contract id retrieval methods. For more details, see "Defining Default RGIF System Settings" on page 155
- 3. Confirm all the settings before the proxy is finally created. You can also customize the URL of the new managed endpoint.

Working with Proxies

SLO objects might be associated with runtime policies. Runtime policy is an artifact that is created by importing it / synchronizing it with a policy from a proxy device. Policies are handled differently by different proxy adapters. You need to check the particular device manual to be aware of it's specifics and limitations.

It is common that the policies that can be downloaded form the device into repository need to follow some naming conventions, typically their name must end with the "_policy" string., otherwise the adapter ignores them.

Enabling XI50 Remote Configuration

You will need to explicitly enable remote management of the XI50 device.

To enable X150, follow these steps:

- 1. Log on to the default domain as admin.
- 2. Open the **Objects** menu on the left.
- 3. Scroll down to Device management and click XML management interface.
- 4. Fill in the required information in the window that is displayed and click **Apply**.

Enabling L7 Remote Configuration

You will need to explicitly enable remote management of the L7 device.

In the left bottom corner click on the device name and open the popup menu. Click **Create internal service** and click **Finish**.

Environment limitations and setup

- 1. The Layer 7 device requires that you run Systinet with Java version 1.6 or later.
- 2. Systinet can be run on JBoss versions 6.2 or 7.1.

L7 SLM Handling

Layer 7 device doesn't support per contract SLM monitoring directly, however Systinet provides functionality to get over this obstacle. The following image describes the functionality:



The L7 device generates SNMP traps for the messages passing through the device, these traps are aggregated in a separate SNMP aggregation server which is part of Systinet installation. Systinet then regularly fetches the aggregated information about contracts from the SNMP aggregation server. The format of the SNMP trap message which the aggregator understands is as follows:

{contractID= 6441d6c0-9705-473e-89fa-ce23946be003;deviceId= 8441d6c0-9705-473e-09fa-ce2e946be0ee;type=OK}

The 'contractID' is the contract UUID in Systinet repository, 'deviceId' is the device UUID in the repository and type is one of the following fixed strings: OK/ERROR/THROTTLED.

To start the aggregator, go to PLATFORM_HOME/bin and execute the following:

snmp_aggregator.sh -capture

This starts the server with the default settings – listening on the port 1620 for SNMP traffic, listening on port 6080 for communication with Systinet. You can override these defaults with extra command line parameters. For more details on the parameters, check the help using snmp_aggregator.sh -help.

Tip: When you use the aggregator for the first time ensure to use the –debug parameter that logs all the incoming SNMP traffic.

You also need to make Systinet aware of the aggregator; view the SLM setting in the RGIF Settings tab.

Top-level Domain		Located Top-level Dom:
Overview	Discovery	
Roles	Synchronization Mode :	✓ All
Members		Remove Obsolete Inductor
RGIF Settings	Import WSDLs	
Default Access Rights	WSDL Decomposition	
Integrations		Inspectruments None
	Service Type :	Business Service V
	Local changes :	⊙ Keep O Overwrite
	Contract Deployment	
	SLM Retrieval Configur	ation
	Service level metrics are downloaded from RGIF devices on the background. You can customize the interval between individual SLM retrievals (specified in minutes). These setting are defined for top level domain only and are inherited by other domains.	
	Sampling 30	SLM data retrieval
	Interval:	
	Deployment settings	
	Automatically reuse proxies during contract deployment if possible (recommended)	
	Reuse	proxies

The SNMP Host and SNMP Port is used to configure L7 devices where the SNMP traps will be sent to. The aggregator is the address of the aggregator web service interface where information about contract performance can be obtained. All the SLM settings are defined in the context of the top level domain –

when changed within a sub domain configuration the top level domain will be updated as well. This is true, not only for Layer 7 but also for all the other adapters.

Chapter 10: Surveys

This section covers the following topics :

- "Understanding Survey Definition" below
- "Starting New Survey" on the next page
- "Undertaking the Survey" on page 170
- "Keeping Track of Survey" on page 172
- "Reviewing Answers" on page 173
- "Monitoring and Managing Survey" on page 174

Understanding Survey Definition

A Survey Definition in Systinet consists of the questions in a survey. This Survey Definition provides an overview of the survey framework capabilities. The Survey Example is an example of survey definition that demonstrates the survey framework capabilities.

Note: Only Administrator role can create or edit survey definitions. Survey Definitions can be accessed both from **Survey Definition** in Catalog UI and **Manage Scripts** in Administration UI.



Starting New Survey

Once a survey is defined (i.e. Survey Definition artifact is created and previewed), a Survey Manager or Administrator can invite the owner or contacts of the artifacts to fill out the survey (Survey artifact).

A survey comprises of a list of artifacts, respondents and their responses.

Note: Only Survey Manager or Administrator can start a survey.

To start a survey, login as a user with Survey Manager role/credentials and follow the steps below:

1. Open Catalog Browser and click Survey Definitions under Content tab.



- 2. Select a survey definition to start the survey. If you are the Administrator, you may click **Edit** to change the following fields in the survey definition:
 - a. Applicable to Artifacts: artifact types this survey applies to.
 - b. Target Contact Roles: contacts under the survey artifacts who will be invited to take the survey. By default, all contacts of survey artifacts are invited.

Note: Survey Manager is not allowed to access **Edit** function.

3. Click **Start Survey** and fill in the required information to begin with survey.

Survey Example						Located in Top-level Domain no votes * * * * *
Overview	🕨 Start Survey 🔗 Edit					
Preview	Demonstration of the survey framework capabilities					
Assessment Portfolio	Show more information					
Access Rights	Applicable to Artifacts: Ap Target Contact Roles: Ad	plication Interface				
	Executed/Running Surveys	siem				
	You can manage individual ongoing surveys. Surveys an	nswered by all the responden	ts or marked complete ar	e displayed in green and surveys th	hat are incomplete are displayed in yellow or red depending on whether they ha	ve reached the timeline.
	Right now you see all survey instances. Show only su	urveys started using the 'Sta	art Survey' wizard.			
	Mark Completed Cancel Survey				Sea	rch 💿 Q. 🗾
	Acme Consesus		Date Started	Expected Completion Date 03/21/2017	Progress	Status
			03/20/2017	03/21/2017	0.0	Displaying 1-1 of 1
Start survey 'Survey Ex You must enter some basic information a norfied over email. Click Preview on the Show more information Name of the survey: Expected Completion date: OX/20/2017	xample ¹ and salect the artifacts you wish the survey to be proc right to review the survey questions	essed for. List of responden	Its is calculated and can	be optionally	survey Example Preview	
Send Email Norfications Owner as respondent if no other cont Cancel Ness	raets available	e			Demonstration of the survey framework capabilities This survey have here may succeed by <u>admin</u> Please (iii in this survey by the end of March 20, 2017	

4. Enter the name and click **Next**. Select the artifacts to be included in this survey.

	rtifacts you want to be surveyed. You can see all t	he artifacts that have not been surveyed yet. Y	'ou can switch the tab	le to display all and further filter th	e list. If you are missing some artifacts, import	them from external sources.	
ll that I	have not been surveyed yet 🗸 🗡 Filter	•					
0.	Name 🔺	Version	Rating	Lifecycle Stage	Artifact Type	Domain	
			T -	T -		T -	
5	🔶 AmazonEC2	2013.02		Initial	SOAP Service	Amazon Web Services	
tp://eci	2.amazonaws.com/doc/2013-02-01/ - AmazonEC2 (g	enerated from WSDL)					
2	🚰 AmazonEC2	2009.11		Retired	SOAP Service	Amazon Web Services	
tp://eci	2.amazonaws.com/doc/2009-11-30/ - AmazonEC2 (g	enerated from WSDL)					
	AmazonEC2	2012.12		Deprecated	SOAP Service	Amazon Web Services	
p://eci	2.amazonaws.com/doc/2012-12-01/ - AmazonEC2 (ge	enerated from WSDL)					
2	☆ BTO Application Change Lifecycle API	1.0		Production	SOAP Service	HP Software Products	
ange l	Lifecycle API http://www.mercury.com/itg/btointeg/a	cl - BTOApplicationChangeLifecycleService (gen	erated from WSDL)				
	🐈 Backups	2		Production	REST Service	OpenStack	
m, or 1	p is a full copy of a volume stored in an external serv to a new volume. backup and restore operations can	ice. The service can be configured. The only sup only be carried out on volumes which are in an u	ported service for now inattached and availab	is Object Storage. A backup can sul le state.	sequently be restored from the external service t	o either the same volume that the backup was originally taken	
	🐈 CCUE - Tag Management	1.0		Production	REST Service	HP Software Products	
is is a	proposal of the specification for CCUE - Tag Manage	ement API. The API provides CRUD operations at	nd API design follows F	REST architectural style principles w	ith including custom media types and HATEOAS.		
	CRM Backend Service	1.0		Initial	XML Service	Demo Domain	
	☆ CSA Swagger	1.0		Production	REST Service	HP Software Products	
lude A	APIs of HP Cloud Service Automation						
	CTd Services API	1.0		Production	SOAP Service	HP Software Products	
API provides CTd Services http://mercury.com/quality.center/services/versions/10.5/ - CTdServices/Service (generated from WSDL)							
	CarSalesService	1.0		Retired	SOAP Service	Demo Domain	
		(from 10 CD1)					

Note: The filter All that haven't been surveyed yet is selected by default. You can select

All to view artifacts that have been surveyed earlier.

- 5. Verify the counts of artifacts and respondents and if they are as expected. You can do the following, if required:
 - Remove unwanted artifacts from the survey
 - Add or remove respondents
- 6. Click the Finish button visible at the bottom of the list.

Start	survey 'Survey Example'				
You are a	about to start a survey 'Survey Example' that:				
Surveys information about 3 artifact(s)					
Affects	2 people				
Each su	urvey wizard contains 21 questions				
Email no	tifications to fill in the survey are sent out right after you click 'Finish'.				
Surv	eved Artifacts				
Juiv	cycu / «Iniders				
You can	see the list of artifacts to be surveyed below. You can also review the respondents, gener	rated base	d on artifact contacts and ownership.		
>	Remove from Survey			Search	© Q.
	Name †	Version	Respondents		
	Backups	2	HP Software Developer		
	CCUE - Tag Management	1.0	HP Systinet Administrator		
	CSA Swagger	1.0	C HP Software Developer		
				Displayin	g 1 - 3 of 3
Previou	is Finish				

Undertaking the Survey

You can respond to the survey in the following ways:

- Via Notification Email: respond to an invite for survey through email by Survey Manager as given below:
 - a. Open your Inbox and look out for an email with the subject title "Survey Invitation: ..." sent by Systinet.

Survey Invitation: C	Survey Invitation: Collect Application Component Hardware Requirements					
Survey						
Click the following link(s) to start the	e survey:					
Name		Description				
AppComponent_DT1						
Please respond by the end of:	E Jul 4, 2016 12:00:00 AM ICT					
Started by:	Administrator, at Jul 4, 2016 4:15:42 PM ICT					
Powers by HPE Enterprise Maps © Copyright 2003-2016 Hewlet Packad Enterprise Dewlopment Company, L.P.						

b. Open the link corresponding to the artifact name (for example : Agresso). The survey opens in a new window. You need to login to Systinet in order to fill in the survey.

Survey Example Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the survey for sensence of a generic sense. Construction of the sensence of the	ccount structure Transfer				
	Survey Example Demonstration of the survey framework capabilities The survey has been requested by <u>addrain</u> Please 16 in this survey has ded of Heach 30, 3001 Image 16 in this survey has med of Heach 30, 3001	Please fill In the next fee Name Version Domain Description	in a survey for the 'Account structure steps you will be asked about some details for the artif Account structure 10 Demo Domain Reads a file from a source directory and creates a c	e' File Transfer act described below.	Open in Catalog.

Note: Your account must at least have the READ permission for the survey artifact, else you will just see an error message in the open window. If this happens contact your administrator.

- c. Answer the survey questions, then click **Finish** to complete the survey for that artifact.
- d. Repeat steps 1-3 to complete survey for other artifacts.
- Via a Survey Instance: respond to a survey directly on Systinet UI as given below:
 - a. Open the survey artifact you wish to undertake. Look for the surveyed artifacts you would like to respond to. Click your name in the respondents list to start filling out the survey.

Migrate Applications ir	to Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016, version 1.0		Located in Default Domain no votes 🗙 ★ ★ ★		
Overview	Mark Completed 🗙 Cancel Survey 🔂 Edit				
	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016				
Access Rights	Status: Not Completed				
	Survey Definition: Cloud Business Assessment				
	Survey in Progress: 11/6				
	Start Date: May 28, 2015 3:56:11 AM				
	Expected Completion Date: Dec 30, 2016 5:00 PM				
	Surveyed Artifacts				
	The list of the artifacts to be surveyed follows. You may cancel the survey of the selecte 'Completed' if all the respondents answer, 'Not Completed' when at least one respondent.	artifacts if you are no longer interested in filling the survey wizard for them. toes not answer and 'Not Started' when no respondents answer.	The status of an artifact in the survey is		
	Remove from Survey		Search 💿 Q		
	Name †	Version Respondents	Status		
	ASAC	1 O Administrator. O Andy Miller. O Dave Olson	Not Completed		
	ASCENT	1 Open in Catalog	Not Completed		
	ASE Instance	1 CRemove Respondent	Not Started		
	Agresso	3.1 C Take Survey	Not Started		
	Billing Services	5.2 Sack Foster, Olave Olson, Bev Bailey	Not Completed		
	CAD System	2 O Nicole Smith	Not Started		

b. A Survey Manager or a user with 'write' permission for the current survey can also undertake the survey on behalf of other respondents. Click the particular respondent's name and select

Migrate Applications ir	nto Cloud - Business Assess	sment - 2016, version 1.0			Lo	ocated in Default Domai votes 🔺 🔺 🔺 🔺
Overview	Mark Completed X Cancel Sur	rvey 🖸 Edit				
	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Business Asse	ssment - 2016				
Access Rights	Status:	Not Completed				
	Survey Definition:	Cloud Business Assessment				
	Survey in Progress:	11/60				
	Start Date:	May 28, 2015 3:56:11 AM				
	Expected Completion Date:	Dec 30, 2016 5:00 PM				
	Surveyed Artifacts					
	The list of the artifacts to be surveyed follows.	You may cancel the survey of the selected	l artifacts if you are n	o longer interested in filling the survey wizard	for them. The status of an artifact	in the survey is
	'Completed' if all the respondents answer, 'Not C	Completed' when at least one respondent	does not answer and	'Not Started' when no respondents answer.		
	X Remove from Survey				Search.	. 0 0
	Name †		Version Re	sp Open in Catalog		Status
	ASAC		1	Remove Respondent	on	Not Completed
	ASCENT		1	Take Survey on behalf of Mary River		Not Completed
	ASE Instance		1	Mary River. O Nicole Smith		Not Started
	Agresso		3.1	Nicole Smith		Not Started
	Billing Services		5.2	🗢 Jack Foster, 🗢 Dave Olson, 🛛 🛛 Bev Balley		Not Completed
	CAD System		2	Nicole Smith		Not Started

the option Take Survey on behalf of [respondent name].

Keeping Track of Survey

As a survey respondent and user you can keep track of the surveys that require your response via Survey Tasks. These tasks are created for each respondent in a survey right after the survey is started, or when a user is added into that survey as a respondent. The task is removed once a respondent finishes the survey or is removed from the survey.

Survey respondents can follow their tasks to complete the surveys. The survey tasks are available right on Catalog page and Task page.

Tasks page

Artifacts ~ Create ~ Import ~		☆ Favorites	්ට Recent Documents 📰 My Tasks 🛍
Tasks Survey Tasks	~		
Task	Artifact	Artifact Type	Created 🗸
		T -	T -
Migrate Applications into Cloud - Financial Assessment - 2016	Oracle HRMS	Application Component	8/12/2015
Migrate Applications into Cloud - Financial Assessment - 2016	Mason	Application Component	8/12/2015
Migrate Applications into Cloud - Financial Assessment - 2016	VOMS DB	Application Component	8/12/2015

Note: If a particular user does not have 'Read' permission to the survey artifact, the link to that artifact will not be available. See image below.

Tasks	Survey Tasks	~		
Task Migrate Applie	cations into Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016	Artifact F.A.Qs	Artifact Type Application Component	Created
Migrate Applie	cations into Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016	ITIM	Application Component	8/6/2015
Migrate Applie	cations into Cloud - Technical Assessment - 2015	F.A.Qs	Application Component	8/6/2015

Reviewing Answers

Once you complete a survey, you can review your answers and even redo the survey.

Review Survey:

- Open the survey instance
- Click the surveyed artifact you wish to review the answers for
- Select Review Answers

Migrate Applications in Survey	nto Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016, version 1.0		Located in Default Dom no votes 🔶 🚖 🚖 🚖		
Overview	🗹 Mark Completed 🗶 Cancel Survey 🔗 Edit				
	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Business Assessment - 2016				
Access Rights	Status: Not Completed				
	Survey Definition: Cloud Business Assessment				
	Survey in Progress: 11/68				
	Start Date: May 28, 2015 12:56:11 AM				
	Expected Completion Date: Dec 30, 2016 200 PM				
	Surveyed Artifacts				
	The list of the artifacts to be surveyed follows. You may cancel the survey of the select- Completed' if all the respondents answer, 'Not Completed' when at least one responder.	d artifiacts if you are no longer interested in filling the survey wizard for them. The status o t does not answer and 'Not Started' when no respondents answer.	f an artifact in the survey is		
	Remove from Survey		Search 💿 🔍		
	Name 1	Version Respondents	Status		
	Agresso	3.1 O Nicole Smith	Not Started		
	Open in Catalog	1 O Administrator, O Andy Miller, O Dave Olson	Not Completed		
	Add Respondent	1 O Andy Miller, O Jack Foster	Not Completed		
	Review Answers	1 O Mary River. O Nicole Smith	Not Started		
	Billing Services	5.2 G Jack Foster, C Dave Olson, S Bev Bailey	Not Completed		

Redo the Survey:

• As one of the respondents, it is possible for you to redo the entire survey (assuming you have responded before) in the review dialog. Click **Take Survey Again**.

	Question	Administrator	
- [2	Financial Profile		
1	What are the current annual hardware costs for hosting this application in your data cente	780000	
2	What are the current annual costs related to maintenance of this application? (This doesn'	650000	
3	Are there some other costs related to this application?		
4	Please enter an estimate of these costs.	360000	
- 1	3rd Party Associated Costs		
5	What are the current annual 3rd party software license costs related to this application?	25000	
6	What are the current annual costs related to maintenance of this application billed by 3rd	12500	
- 0	Transformation		
7	If the application depends on a 3rd party software (database, middleware or similar) which	No	
8	Can your organization accommodate the billing model offered by cloud providers?	Yes	
9	Is it feasible to get a budget and other resources needed for the transformation?	Don't know	
	Transformation Cost		
10	Can you put an rough estimate of the costs of the labour work/additional software costs n	Yes	
11	Please enter an estimate of these costs.	75000	

Monitoring and Managing Survey

To monitor or manage surveys :

1. Open Catalog Browser and click **Surveys** under Content tab.



2. Select a Survey to monitor or manage. The Survey view page opens as follows:

Migrate Applications ir	to Cloud - Business Asses	sment - 2016, version 1.0			Located in Default Domain no votes 🔺 🖈 🛧 🖈	
Overview	Mark Completed X Cancel Su	rvey 🖋 Edit				
A Dista	Migrate Applications into Cloud - Business Ass	essment - 2016				
Access Rights	Status:	Not Completed				
	Survey Definition: Cloud Business Assessment					
	Survey in Progress:	11/68				
	Start Date:	May 28, 2015 12:56:11 AM				
	Expected Completion Date:	Dec 30, 2016 2:00 PM				
	Surveyed Artifacts					
	The list of the artifacts to be surveyed follows.	You may cancel the survey of the selected	l artifacts if you a	are no longer interested in filling the survey wizard for them. The status of an a	artifact in the survey is	
	'Completed' if all the respondents answer, 'Not	Completed' when at least one respondent	does not answer	and 'Not Started' when no respondents answer.		
	K Remove from Survey Search.					
	□ Name ↑ Version Respondents					
	Agresso 3.1 O Nicole Smith					
	ASAC	Administrator, Andy Miller, Dave Olson	Not Completed			
	ASCENT		1	Andy Miller, Ø Jack Foster	Not Completed	

- 3. As per your role, you can execute all or some functions in the Survey view page. For instance :
 - Provider can only view the status and progress of the survey.
 - Survey Manager and Administrator can additionally :
 - Mark the survey as Completed.
 - Cancel the survey.
 - Remove artifacts from the survey if not completed.

- Edit survey information such as Description and Expected Completion Date.
- Add or Remove respondent to and from the survey.

Chapter 11: Collaboration

HPE Systinet is a collaborative platform enabling you to actively participate and provide information to other users throughout the service lifecycle.

HPE Systinet provides the following collaboration features:

Comments

The Artifact View page provides a Discussion area where you can start threads and respond to other comments. For details, see "How to Use Comments" on the next page.

Notifications

You can send e-mail notifications about an artifact to specified stakeholders. For details, see "How to Use Notifications" on page 179.

Events

Events keep you up-to-date with changes to artifacts that you are a stakeholder in and user actions that may impact you. For details, see "How to Use Events" on page 181.

Tasks

Tasks provide you with updates for lifecycle and contract tasks assigned to you. For details, see "How to Use Tasks" on page 183.

Ratings

You can apply an individual rating to an artifact, contributing to an overall rating that enables other users to select the best artifacts. For details, see "How to Use Ratings" on page 184.

Feeds

HPE Systinet provides artifact and search feeds that enable you to track changes and discussions about artifacts in your feed readers and in the Reports tab. For details, see "How to Use Feeds" on page 185.

Sharing

HPE Systinet provides a simple action to provide all users with read access to an artifact, making it visible across the whole user-base. For details, see "How to Share Artifacts" on page 188.

HPE Systinet is also a collaborative platform in combination with your development environments. HPE Software provides plug-ins for widely used Integrated Development Environment (IDE) that enables the developers to collaborate using the discovery and publishing features of HPE Systinet directly from their IDE.

How to Use Comments

HPE Systinet provides an artifact discussion forum where you can make comments about particular artifacts.

The Artifact Overview page includes a Discussion component right at the bottom showing the last few comments.



Click a thread title to enter that discussion or click *Enter Discussion* to open the **Documentation > Discussion** sub-tab to see all the comments.

You can browse all comments in the Artifact Details Discussion sub-tab.



You can organize the Artifact View Discussion sub-tab using **Show Thread** and **Show List** with an option to sort the list view by oldest or newest comment first.

Start a new discussion thread using Add Comment.



Click **Reply** to respond to a particular comment.

If these are no replies to your thread or comment, you can Edit or Delete your comments.

The Artifact Comments Feed context action provides a URL that you can use in feed readers or in the Reports Tab to keep up-to-date with any new comments about the artifact. For details, see "How to Use Feeds" on page 185.

How to Use Notifications

HPE Systinet enables you to send e-mail notifications to artifact stakeholders.

To Send Manual Notifications:

1. In the Overview tab of Artifact view page, click the **Send Message** context action for the artifact you want to send the notification for, to open the Send a Message page.



2. Select the recipients to notify.

Recipient	Description
Owner	The user, group, or role that owns the artifact.
Maintainers	Users, groups, and roles groups with write permission for the artifact.
Contacts	Users and organizational units associated with the artifact by the contact relationship or listed in the artifact stakeholder property. The Contacts recipient group can be refined into selectable contact roles.
Other Recipients	Click Add Other Recipients and use the user, group, and role search feature to add any other required recipients.
Previous Stakeholders	Expand Show Advanced Options and select Include Recipients from Previous Versions to notify stakeholders from previous versions of the artifact about changes to a newer version. The stakeholders notified by this option match those of the current artifact version. For example, if Consumers is selected, then the consumers of previous versions are notified.

Notification Recipients

Note: The recipient options vary depending on the status of the artifact.

- 3. *Optional*: Change the subject for the mail if required.
- 4. *Optional*: Check **Lifecycle Status** to include a section containing current lifecycle status in the mail.
- 5. Enter the message text for the mail.
- 6. Click **Preview** to view a draft of the mail message.
- 7. Click **Send** to send the notification to the selected recipients.

The administrator can set up automatic notifications as part of the lifecycle process. For details, see *How to Define Automatic Actions* in the *HPE Systinet Administration Guide*.
How to Use Events

HPE Systinet keeps you up-to-date with all actions on artifacts that are relevant to you. Actions may appear in the Events lists because you have performed an operation on the artifact or because you are the owner of the affected artifact.

Events checker is disabled by default to keep up the server speed. However, the administrator can enable this checker by changing the value of platform.ui.userevent.notificationsEnabled system property to TRUE.

Caution: Enabling platform.ui.userevent.notificationsEnabled system property can result in slow performance.

After enabling the event checker, events information appears in the following places in the UI:

• New Events notification in the Profile Status section of all pages.

in Administrator
Show Event 59 New
System Administration
User Settings
Sign Out

• Actions on individual artifacts displayed in the Artifact view page, Events tab.

The Events components in the Overview tab of Artifact view page, displays the latest actions performed in HPE Systinet that are relevant to the user.

Overview									
Documentation	Actor: Me Others (Select All Clear)	🛛 Me 🔽 Others (Select All I Clear)							
Cloud Transformation	Event		Actor	Date 🔻	Туре				
	New comment reply on thread 'Artifact' has been added on Application Component 'Agr	New	Administrator	12:28 PM	Comments				
Financial Profile	O New comment thread 'Artifact' has been created on Application Component 'Agresso'.	New	Administrator	12:25 PM	Comments				
Tree View	O New comment thread 'Comments for Artifact' has been created on Application Compone	New	Administrator	12:15 PM	Comments				
Lifecycle									
Compliance									
Access Rights									
History									
Events									

• Here, events component displays actions performed on the artifact with a **More...** link to the latest events under main menu Reports tab.

Events	🚔 🛙 ×
Latest Events 🔊	
	Sec. 1
One or more artifacts were permanently deleted.	
by Administrator, Mar 1/, New	
by Administrator, Mar 17, New	
Obmain was changed for one or more artifacts. by Administrator, Mar 10, New	
The owner was changed for one or more artifacts.	
by Administrator, Mar 9, New	
Governance was ended for one or more artifacts.	
by Administrator, Mar 9, New	
More	

You can customize the information the Events component displays.

To Customize the Events Component:

- 1. Click the tool icon in the Events component on the home page to open the Edit Configuration -Events dialog box.
- 2. Customize the following events parameters:

Edit Configuration -	Events ×
1 This configuration is shared	by the Events portlet and event notifications. You can define important events;
i.e. set event visibility.	
Number of Events:	5 ~
Domain:	O Current O All Domains
Event Notifications Enabled:	
Visibility	
Contracts:	○ Show All ⊙ Hide My Actions ○ Hide All
Lifecycle:	○ Show All
Artifact Changes:	○ Show All ⊙ Hide My Actions ○ Hide All
Task Reports:	• Show All O Hide My Actions O Hide All
Comments:	○ Show All ○ Hide My Actions
	Save Cancel

3. Click **Save** to apply your changes.

How to Use Tasks

As a user in HPE Systinet you may be required to perform actions related to contracts and the lifecycle of artifacts. Tasks may be assigned to you as an individual, a member of a group, as a user in a particular role, or because you are the owner of an artifact. The My Tasks component in the Catalog Homepage updates you with your latest tasks assignments.



Catalog Homepage My Tasks Component

Task assignments come from lifecycle or as a result of a contract request. Click the task name to open the relevant page to view the lifecycle.

To view all your outstanding tasks, click My Tasks to open the Tasks page.

Tasks	Pending (All)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-	Located in: All Non-Reference -		
Task	Pending (All)		E		Created 🗸	Source
	Lifecycle Tasks				T -	T -
Define unsum	Lifecycle Requests			2016 Standard	Mar 9	E Lifecycle Task
Define plan when	- Survey Tasks			2010 Ordinadra		
Define unsupp	ported plateau	Microsoft Windows Ser	rver	2016 Datacenter	Mar 9	📰 Lifecycle Task
Define plan when	n the software version will be unsupported					
Deploy applica	Central		9/28/2015	📰 Lifecycle Task		
Deploy applica	ASE Instance			9/28/2015	📑 Lifecycle Task	

The Tasks page shows more details about each tasks and enables you to sort them by type or filter to find a particular task or artifact.

In addition to viewing all tasks assigned to you, Artifact Details pages contains task information specific to the artifact in the My Tasks component.



The My Tasks component enables you to complete a lifecycle task to view its details.

For all the tasks displayed, click on the task to open the appropriate page to perform the required actions depending on the task type.

Lifecycle Tasks

Perform a task assigned to you, your group, or your role as part of a lifecycle process.

Lifecycle Requests

Process requests for approval of the completion of a lifecycle stage for artifacts.

How to Use Ratings

HPE Systinet enables you to apply a rating score to artifacts. You can rate each artifact and modify the existing rating.

The average rating is available in Artifact Detail pages and in tables of artifacts, enabling you to choose services based on their collective rating.



To Rate an Artifact:

- 1. Open the Artifact view page.
- 2. Move the cursor over the stars and click a star to set your rating. The status next to the rating stars indicates the current status and indicates if you have previously rated the service.

Average ratings are available to filter and sort tables of artifacts. For details, see "Tables in the User Interface".

Servi	ces	All	✓ Located All Nor	a in: n-Reference ▼ Filter ▼						
+	+ 🗇 🛪 …									
		Name	Version	Domain	Rating 🔫	Package	Lifecycle Stage			
				T -	T -	T -	T -			
	☆	FinPlanner from Internet	1.0	Demo Example Domain			Candidate			
	☆	Financial Review Service	1.0	Demo Example Domain	0 ***	k*	Candidate			
	☆	Project planning	1.0	Demo Example Domain	0 ***	ksk -	Candidate			
This serv	☆ vice is	Product modeling consisting from all calculation of product calculating in FinPlanner1) Deposit product2	1.0) Loan products3) Pension calculator	Demo Example Domain	0 ***	kx kx	Candidate			
For indiv	☆ viduals	Create New Proposal actor change of product parameters (loan product) for RECALCULATION delete proc	1.0 duct from simulation (saving product) f	Demo Example Domain for RESIMULATION add product to the simulationfo	OK r SME actor cha	Cancel nge of product paramete	Candidate rs (loan product) for REC			

How to Use Feeds

HPE Systinet provides Atom feed support to enable you to track changes either with your own feed reader or using the Content Feed feature of the Reports Tab.

You can access the following feeds:

Artifact Feeds

Track changes to a specific artifact. Use the **Atom Feed** context action from the Overview tab of Artifact view page to obtain the URL for the feed.



Artifact Comment Feeds

Track the discussion about a particular artifact. Use the **Artifact Comments Feed** context action from the Overview tab of Artifact view page or the **Artifact Comments Feed** context action from the Artifact view page, Discussion section of the Documentation tab to obtain the URL for the feed.



Search Result Feeds

Use the Search URL provided with saved searches to create a custom search feed. For example, a search feed for all the services that would notify when a new service(s) is created.

How to Share Artifacts

By default, because of default security settings and the catalog is separated into domains, the artifacts are visible only to the required users. However, you can change this setting and make the artifact visible to all users by a share mechanism. In this mechanism, the administrator or the owner of an artifact gives read access to an artifact, making it visible to everyone. You can share artifacts in a bulk. However, there are situations where you want to make an artifact visible to all users, for example, when a service goes into Production.

Note: The default functionality of sharing uses the system#registered group which represents all users who access HPE Systinet. The administrator can change the users that can access shared artifacts. For details, see *How to Change the Sharing Principal* in the *Administration Guide*.

To Share an Artifact:

- 1. Open the Artifact view page for the artifact and select the Access Rights tab.
- 2. Click the Share context action to open the Share dialog box.
- 3. Optional: Expand Advanced Options and select Include Subartifacts to share sub-artifacts in the artifact aggregate.

Share	×								
A Grant Read Only access to every user?									
Include Subartifacts									
Share Cancel									

4. Click Share to make the artifact visible to all users.

To Share a Set of Artifacts:

1. From the artifacts table, select all the artifacts you want to share, click **Edit** icon and then click **Share**. The Share dialog box is displayed.

+	x							
	Properties		Version	Domain 🔺				
	Change Owner		1.0	Demo Example Domain				
FinPla Key ca	Change Access rights	g process. The solution will analyze actual portfolio of services used by client, evaluate ternal sales and partners to provide optimal set of products, improve and simplify the s						
inforn	Change Domain	about suitable						
D Buildi	Share	Reorganization g & Collection Management, D	1.0 evelop Resource Partne	Demo Example Domain ership Requirements, Manage Ca				
	Unshare	le Management	1.0	Demo Example Domain				
□ Havin	Partner Management g a Partner management syste	t em and partner training	1.0	Demo Example Domain				

- 2. *Optional*: Expand **Advanced Options** and select **Include Subartifacts** to share sub-artifacts in the artifact aggregates.
- 3. Click **Share** to make the selected artifacts visible to all users.

Chapter 12: Excel/CSV File Export and Import

HPE Systinet provides the capability to export and import data in spreadsheet formats. You can transfer spreadsheets or relational databases data from other systems to HPE Systinet. You can also edit multiple data sets efficiently in spreadsheet format in offline mode and upload the data back to Systinet.

The following operations are supported by Spreadsheet Import UI:

- Export an artifact collection to a CSV file.
- Export multiple artifact collections to a ZIP file. The ZIP file contains CSV files with collection of artifacts.
- Import an artifact collection from a CSV file.
- Import multiple artifact collections from an XLS or XLSX file.

Note: Some operations are not available for Spreadsheet Import Command Line. For more details, see *CSV Import and Export Tools* in HPE Systinet *Customization Guide*.

To populate a simple collection from a spreadsheet file, create an artifact in the HPE Systinet collection by using the Catalog. Open the collection list, select the required artifacts and save as CSV to save the collection into a CSV file. You can then access this CSV file using a spreadsheet, such as excel, add more data or edit the collection and then import the CSV back to HPE Systinet.

You can also store imported spreadsheet files as templates for future use. Following sections help you perform the following:

- "Exporting CSV Files" below
- "Importing Spreadsheet Files" on page 193
- "Managing Template" on page 196
- "Spreadsheet Template Options" on page 199

Exporting CSV Files

To export CSV data from HPE Systinet:

- 1. Open the Catalog in a browser.
- 2. If the collection you are interested in is empty, create the first artifact so that the exported CSV file contains an example data row.
- 3. Open the collection you are interested in either by searching for it in the Search box or by opening the collection from the Catalog panel. For example, to open the Business Function collection, select *Capabilities & Functions* from the Catalog panel list and perform your search by clicking the Filter menu to open the Search page. Then you can use the Business Function value from the Artifact Type selector and click Search.
 - a. Using the Menu Bar Search Field

Systinet	< CATALOG	REPORTS	NAVIGATOR >	Q Business Partner X	Create new in Default Domain 🔻
Artifacts 🗸	Create ∽ Impo	ort ~		Contract: HP SOA Business Partner uses ATM Backend Gateway Subscription	Recent Documents 🛛 🗮
Survey Examp Survey Definition	ple			Contract: HP SOA Business Partner uses Email Gateway	Located i no votes

b. Using the Catalog Search Page

Search									
business function									
Artifact Type:	< Any > ~			Keywords:			~		
Last Modified:	Any Time 🗸			Domain:		< All D	Domains > v		
Add Criteria Save Load Clear									
× •••									
Name 🔺		Artifact Type	Version	Owner	Domain	Rating	Package	Last Modified	

4. After you have located and opened the collection you are interested in exporting, click the three dots (more actions button) and click Save as CSV. This will start the download of data in CSV format from the table to your local computer.

Business Functions All		✓ Located in: All Non-Reference ▼ Filter ▼			
+ 🖄 🗙 🚥					
Nan C Export	Version	Domain	Rating	Package	Lifecycle Stage
Governance		T -	T -	T -	T -
□ ☆ <no< th=""><th>1.0</th><th>Demo Example Domain</th><th></th><th></th><th>Candidate</th></no<>	1.0	Demo Example Domain			Candidate
Access Control	1.0	Demo Example Domain			Supported

5. Open the downloaded CSV file in a spreadsheet editor, such as Excel. The first row is a header that specifies the mapping of data in HPE Systinet. It helps you to learn how to map the data in

Fi	File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View											
Pas	Lopy	▼ at Painter	Calibri BB Z U	• 11 [•]	▲ ▼ A A A	•	= <mark>=</mark> ≫· ≣ ∃ ∰ ∰	📑 Wrap	o Text je & Center ≁	General \$ ≁ % ,	₹.0 .00	
	Clipboard	Es.		Font	G.		Alignm	ent	5	Number	G.	
	A1	-	• (=	<i>f</i> ∗ busi	nessFunction	Statu	5					
	А	В	С	D	E		F		G			
1	businessFi	revision	domainId	owner	description		keyword revisio		revisionCr	nCrname		
2		2	defaultDo	admin	Manage all fi	nanc	cial and policy aspects of t admin		admin	ASSETS MANAGEMENT		
3												
4												
5												
6												
7												
8												
9												

specific columns to properties, relationships, etc.

6. Edit the data in the spreadsheet and save the file as CSV only. For example, you can delete few columns or modify the existing values and so on. You can now import this CSV into HPE Systinet.

File Home Insert Page Layout Formulas Data Review View	X	📙 🌖 🗸 (?	4 ∝ ↓										businessFu	nctionArtif	act -	Microsoft
A Calibri Image: Time inter Clipboard Condition in Clipboard Condition in Condition in Condition in Clipboard Condition in Condition in Clipboard Condition in Condition in Clipboard Condition in Condition in Condition in Condition in Clipboard Condition in Condition in Condition in Condition in Clipboard Condition in Co	F	ile Hor	ne Inse	ert Page	Layout	t i	Formulas D	ata	Review	v Viev	v					
Paste Format Painter B I		K Cut		Calibri		* 11	· A A	=	= =	≫	📑 Wrap	Text	General		¥	≤ ₹
Clipboard G Font G Alignment Number Number H14 - fx Analyze Usage Records A B C D E F G H 1 businessF revision domainId owner description keyword revisionC name 2 2 2 defaultDo admin Manage all financial and policy aspects of t admin ASSETS MANAGEMENT 3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management (admin) AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E) admin Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E) admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin An	Pas	ste 🛷 Form	iat Painter	BI	ī	•	<u>⊘</u> - <u>A</u> -	≣	≣≣		•a• Merg	e & Center 🕤	\$ - %	, <u></u> €.0	.00 	Conditio Formattir
H14 fx Analyze Usage Records A B C D E F G H 1 businessF revision domainId owner description keyword revisionCr name 2 2 defaultDo admin Manage all financial and policy aspects of t admin ASSETS MANAGEMENT 3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management admin AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E) admin Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E) admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & Mangy E Customer Risk Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Ana		Clipboard	E.		Fo	nt	Es.			Alignm	ent	Г	s Nu	mber	- Fa	
A B C D E F G H 1 businessF revision domainId owner description keyword revisionCrame 2 2 2 defaultDo admin Manage all financial and policy aspects of t admin ASSETS MANAGEMENT 3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management (admin) AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. Explain Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. Explain Acquire Customer Data 6 3 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate Specific Service Paramet 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyze & Amage Customer Risk Analyze & Report S/P Interaction prc Admin <td></td> <td>H14</td> <td></td> <td>• (=</td> <td>f_{x}</td> <td>Anal</td> <td>yze Usage Re</td> <td>cords</td> <td>;</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		H14		• (=	f_{x}	Anal	yze Usage Re	cords	;							
1 businessF revision domainId owner description keyword revisionC name 2 2 2 defaultDo admin Manage all financial and policy aspects of t admin ASSETS MANAGEMENT 3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management admin AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. Ex admin Accuss Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. Ex admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate Specific Service Paramet 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & Manage SP PI Interactions prc admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo		Α	В	С	(D	E			F		G				н
2 2 defaultDo admin Manage all financial and policy aspects of t admin ASSETS MANAGEMENT 3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management (admin AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin admin Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E admin Acquire Customer Data 6 3 defaultDo admin Identify admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate Specific Service Paramet 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & Ampy Report S/P Interactions prc admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and Analyze & Report on C	1	businessF	revision	domainId	own	er	description		keywo	rd		revisionCr	name			
3 2 defaultDo admin Provide assurance to senior management admin AUDIT MANAGEMENT 4 4 defaultDo admin admin Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E admin Access Control 6 3 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E admin Acquire Customer Data 6 3 defaultDo admin Identify admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & Ampy Report S/P Interactions prc admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and Analyze for the second of the	2		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Manage all f	inanc	ial and p	oolicy as	pects of t	admin	ASSETS MA	NAGEME	NT	
4 4 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E admin Access Control 5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. E admin Acquire Customer Data 6 3 defaultDo admin Identify admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Install Resource 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & Amp; Report S/P Interactions prc admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze & Report on Customer 2 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze & Report on Customer	3		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Provide assu	irance	e to seni	ior mana	gement a	admin	AUDIT MAI	NAGEMEN	T	
5 2 defaultDo admin Record all pertinent customer data. Ex admin Acquire Customer Data 6 3 defaultDo admin admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Specific Service Paramet 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions pro admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Neport on Customer	4		4	defaultDo	adm	in						admin	Access Cor	trol		
6 3 defaultDo admin admin Advisory Engine 7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Install Resource 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions pro admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	5		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Record all pe	ertine	nt custo	omer dat	ta. Ex	admin	Acquire Cu	stomer D	ata	
7 2 defaultDo admin Identify admin Allocate & Install Resource 8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate & Install Resource 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions providement Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	6		3	defaultDo	adm	in						admin	Advisory E	ngine		
8 2 defaultDo admin Issue identifiers for new services and to m admin Allocate Specific Service Paramet 9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions pro admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	7		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Identify					admin	Allocate &	Install Re	sour	ce
9 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that a consistent customer risk asse admin Analyze & Manage Customer Risk 10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions pro admin Analyze & Report S/P Interactions 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	8		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Issue identif	iers f	ornew	services	and to m	admin	Allocate Sp	ecific Se	rvice	Paramet
10 2 defaultDo admin Analyse & amp; Report S/P Interactions pro admin Analyze & Report S/P Interaction 11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	9		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Ensure that a	a cons	sistent o	ustomer	r risk asse	admin	Analyze &	Manage (Custo	mer Risk
11 2 defaultDo admin Perform all necessary analysis on closed re admin Analyze & Report on Customer 12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	10		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Analyse &an	np; Re	eport S/	P Interac	tions pro	admin	Analyze &	Report S/	'P Int	eraction
12 2 defaultDo admin Analyse and admin Analyze Resource Performance	11		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Perform all r	neces	sary ana	alysis on	closed re	admin	Analyze &	Report or	n Cus	tomer
	12		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Analyse and					admin	Analyze Re	source P	erfor	mance
13 2 defaultDo admin Assess the effectiveness of the service by admin Analyze Service Quality	13		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Assess the e	ffecti	veness	of the se	ervice by	admin	Analyze Se	rvice Qua	ality	
14 2 defaultDo admin Generate reports on usage records based c admin Analyze Usage Records	14		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Generate re	ports	on usag	e record	ls based c	admin	Analyze Us	age Reco	rds	
15 2 defaultDo admin Ensure that the customer receives an invoi admin Apply Pricing Discounting & Reba	15		2	defaultDo	adm	in	Ensure that t	the cu	stomer	receive	s an invoi	admin	Apply Prici	ng Discou	untin	g & Reba
16 2 defaultDo admin admin Approve Product Business Case	16		2	defaultDo	adm	in						admin	Approve P	roduct Bu	isine	ss Case

Importing Spreadsheet Files

To import spreadsheet files, decide on the type of information and relationship data you want to import and how you view the results of the imported data mapped into HPE Systinet repository.

Preparing Spreadsheet Files

To import the spreadsheet files successfully, you must follow the HPE Systinet spreadsheet syntax. Do one of the following to obtain a valid spreadsheet file and then start adding data into it:

- Use *Download Template to Get Started* to download from a spreadsheet artifact. For more details, see the section *To download Excel/CSV Import Template* in "Managing Template" on page 196.
- Use Save as CSV. For more details see, "Exporting CSV Files" on page 190.
- See SYSTINET_HOME/client/demo/import folder to refer to examples of CSV and XLS/XLSX files. For example, for XLS/XLSX spreadsheet syntax, follow the path SYSTINET_ HOME/client/demo/import/excel/from-ui/*.xlsx.

Using UI

To directly import the Excel/CSV file from the catalog UI, follow these streps:

1. Go to the Catalog home page. Click the Import menu and select **Spreadsheet**.



2. In the Spreadsheet Import page select the CSV/XLS/XLSX file to drag and drop from your local folder. Alternatively, click anywhere in the box to manually upload.

Spreadsheet Import	
() You can prepare data in XLS/XLSX spreadsheet files and import them into HPE EM later on. You can also export/generate data from other systems and import them into EM in CSV format.	
Download Template to Get Started	
Upload Data	Select File(s) Settings
Drop file(s) to upload or click to pick manually	
Start Import	

3. Click Settings to view more options and Show More Information button to view their usage.

Download Template to Get	t started	
Upload Data	Select File(s)	Settings
You can override the default behavio	or of the import so that you can overcome problems with different input formats and redefine the behavior of overwriting data that already exists in HPE EM.	
Artifact Type:	<autodetect> v</autodetect>	
Column Separator:		
Value Separator:	1	
Date Format:	yyyy-MM-dd HH-mmss	
Artifact Processing Mode:	• Create new and update existing • Create new only	
Relationship Processing Mode:	Additive O Force CSV given values	
Property Processing Mode:	Ignore empty values in the import file O Force data removal according to the import file	
Start Import		

- 4. Select the Artifact Type from the drop down list. If artifact type is <Autodetect>, the artifact type will be determined by CSV file names or Excel sheet names as follows:
 - a. Matches artifact type in SDM. For example: applicationComponentArtifact
 - b. Starts with artifact type in SDM and a dash (-). For example: *applicationComponentArtifact-sample*
- 5. Click Start Import. The Import Spreadsheet report is displayed.

Enterprise Maps CATA	OG REPORTS	NAVIGATOR	ADMINISTRATION				Q Search	Create new in Default Domain
Artifacts ~ Create ~ Import ~							ර Favorites ් ව Rec	ent Documents 📰 My Tasks 📋
Import Spreadsheet								
Finished (started by 📥 Administrator, 6:29:01 PM)								
5 successful.								
# × •••								
Name		Ту	pe	Domain	Owner	Origin	Status 🔻	Processed At
Artifact 'Tomcat' import.		Sys	stem Software	Default Domain	Administrator	ApplicationDeploymentMod	✓ Created	6:29 PM
Artifact 'Tomcat' has been imported. Performed action	ns 'CREATE'.							
 Artifact 'Java' import. 		Sys	stem Software	Default Domain	🚨 Administrator	ApplicationDeploymentMod	🗸 Created	6:29 PM
Artifact 'Java' has been imported. Performed actions	CREATE'.							
 Artifact 'MySQL' import. 		Sys	stem Software	Default Domain	🚨 Administrator	ApplicationDeploymentMod	🗸 Created	6:29 PM
Artifact 'MySQL' has been imported. Performed action	ns 'CREATE'.							
 Artifact 'serv1_app' import. 		Ser	ver	Default Domain	🚨 Administrator	ApplicationDeploymentMod	✓ Created	6:29 PM
Artifact 'serv1_app' has been imported. Performed as	tions 'CREATE'.							
 Artifact 'serv2_db' import. 		Ser	ver	Default Domain	Administrator	ApplicationDeploymentMod	 Created 	6:29 PM
Artifact 'serv2_db' has been imported. Performed act	ons 'CREATE'.							

Using Command Line

If you are an administrator or have administrator role privileges you will find the CSV Importer command line tool in the SYSTINET_HOME\client directory. If you are not an administrator, you can ask your administrator to archive the tool and share it with you so that you can access it.

To get the CSV Importer command line tool and be able to run it:

- 1. Unzip the archive and open a command-line shell and change to the client/bin directory. The tool depends on java 1.8, so make sure you have access to the java command at the PATH variable.
- 2. Call csvimport.bat or csvimport.sh to get help messages displaying the command-line options.
- Type the command with at least host, user, password, sdmName and file parameters to your environment. For example: "csvimport -host http://hpedemo/em -user admin -password changeit -file businessFunctions.csv -sdmName businessFunctionArtifact"
- 4. The CSV import of Business Functions from CSV file starts. The tool will log all events related to the progress and status of the import.
- 5. When you refresh your browser, you can view the results imported into the HPE Systinet collection.

Note: Importing a huge spreadsheet file may fail because of Out Of Memory error. To overcome this problem, increase the heap memory as below:

- 2MB excel file 100MB heap
- 10MB excel file 1.5GB heap

For more details, see CSV Import Tool in the HPE Systinet Administration Guide.

Managing Template

The Spreadsheet Templates provide the initial structure for data to be imported using Import Excel/CSV function. As a Catalog user, you can create such templates for your own usage or share with others. Administrator can change access rights for Excel/CSV Import Templates as with other artifacts.

To create a new Excel/CSV Import Template:

1. Open the Catalog Browser and then click **Spreadsheet Templates**. In the next screen click **Open** create dialog for this artifact.



Spreadsheet Template	S
Open create dialog for this artifact	

2. Enter the name of the template and select the artifact types this template applies to in **Applicable to Artifacts** section and click **Save**.

Spreadsheet Template Create new	
Name: *	Business Function CSV Template
Description:	P • B I U Ø Metric • M • IIII •
Version: Applicable to Artifacts:	1.0 Add
Documentation Image: Save Cancel	

3. In the template view page, click **Click here to upload a file** link to add the Excel/CSV file for this template.

Business Function CSV Template, version 1.0 Spreadsheet Template							
Overview	A Warning: This art	lifact has no data content attached. Click here to upload a file.					
Tree View	Attach Data Cor	ntent	×				
	Source:	• File • URL	Browse				
Access Rights	Server Folder:	/defaultDomain	Select				
	Location after Upload:	http://16.154.113.26:80/em/platform/rest/location/defaultDomain					
Show More			Upload Cancel				

4. Click **Browse** and select the Excel or CSV template file and then click **Upload**.

Note:

- You can use 'Save as CSV' function in artifact collection or search pages to produce CSV files and use them as CSV templates. For details, see "Exporting CSV Files" on page 190.
- To create Excel/CSV template manually (for example, using Microsoft Excel), refer to CSV Import Tool in HPE Systinet Customization Guide to get help on syntax for Excel/CSV files.

Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
applicationComponentArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
applicationFunctionArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
applicationServiceArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
🔊 businessEventArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
businessFunctionArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
ataObjectArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB
🔊 plateauArtifact.csv	14/07/2015 20:17	Microsoft Excel Co	1 KB

5. To verify the template created, open 'Spreadsheet Templates' collection and the newly created template is available in the list.

Spreadsheet Templates	Located All Nor	l in: -Reference ▼ Filter ▼		
+ 🔁 🗙 🚥				0
Name 🔺	Version	Applicable to Artifact	Domain	Rating
CSV template for importing Application Components.	1.0	Application Component	Default Domain	
ightarrow Application Deployment Template XLSX template that let you create a single application deployment with its servers and installed system software.	1.0	Infrastructure Service	Default Domain	
	1.0	Application Component	Default Domain	
Improvement of the temperature of temper	1.0 Maps.	Application Component , Application Component Fi	Default Domain	
Business Function CSV Template	1.0		Default Domain	
□ ☆ Contacts Template ▲ XLSX template with user profiles so that users can be used as artifact's contacts before the users login.	1.0	Person	Default Domain	

The Spreadsheet Import UI provides a convenient way to download the template of a specific artifact type.

To download Excel/CSV Import Template:

1. Go to **Import** tab, click **Spreadsheet** and then click the **Settings** tab.

Spreadsheet Import		
O You can prepare data in XLS/XLSX spreadsheet files and import them into HPE EM later on. You can also export/generate data from other systems and import them into EM in CSV format.		
Lownload Template to Get Started		
Upload Data S	Select File(s)	Settings

2. Select an artifact type. The **Upload Data** is automatically changed to **Upload Data about...** to inform the selected artifact type for downloading template or uploading data.

Spreadsheet Import								
() You can prepare data in XLS/XLSX spreadsheet files and import them into HPE EM later on. You can also export/generate data from other systems and import them into EM in CSV format.								
Download Template to Get Started								
Upload Data about Business Function(s) Select File(s) Settings								
You can override the default behavior	of the import so that you can overcome problems with different input formats and redefine the behavior of overwriting data that already exists in HPE EM.							
Show more information								
Artifact Type:	Business Function							
Column Separator:								
Value Separator:	1							

3. Click **Download Template to Get Started**. You can then add data into the saved template and import the Excel/CSV file back to Systinet to publish data.

Note:

• If such a template is not available, the template of higher-level artifact type, if exists, is used instead. An example of template hierarchy is as below:

Artifact > Application Layer > Application Component > J2EE Application.

- If the template for J2EE Application does not exist, then template for Application Component is used and so on.
- In the case of no available templates, you are prompted to download a default template for Application Component (as in the image below).

Spreadsheet Import							
You can prepare data in XLS/XLSX spreadsheet files and import them into HPE EM later on. You can also export/generate data from other systems and import them into EM in CSV format.							
Download Template to Get Started Upload Data about Application Collaboration(s) Select File(s) Setting							
You can override the default behavior of the import so that you can overcome problems with different input formats and redefine the behavior of overwriting data that already exists in HPE EM. Image: Show more information Artifact Type: Application Collaboration							

Spreadsheet Template Options

While working with Excel templates, you may enter data which is non-importable. You can ignore such meta data by specifying instructions in the spreadsheet import function.

Add the following options at the beginning of the excel sheet:

Column 1		Option	Option	
Keyword	Option Name	Parameters	Parameters	Description

Option	ignore			Ignore this sheet
Option	sdmName	<artifact type in SDM></artifact 		Import data as this artifact type
Option	skipRowWhenEmptyFirstCell			Skip data row if first column is empty
Option	constantColumn	<property in="" sdm=""></property>	<property value></property 	Add this property for all imported artifacts

Ignored rows

- Rows before the header and the first column starting with capitalized text is ignored (except above 'Option' rows).
- Rows after the header and the first column that is empty are ignored if *Option skipRowWhenEmptyFirstCell* is set.

Ignored columns

• Columns with empty header are ignored.

	A	В	C	D
1	Option	sdmName	applicationComponentArtifact	
2	Option	constantColumn	description	Imported from spreadsheet
3	Option	skipRowWhenEmptyFirstCell		
4	Option	calculateFormula	auto	
5	Component Name	Version	Ignored	Subcomponents
6	name key=true	version		composedOf target=applicationComponentArtifact property=name
7	Demo Component 1	1		
8	Demo Component 2	3		
9		This line is ignored because of the skipRowWhenEmptyFirstCell Option		
10	Demo Composed Component	3		Demo Component 1 Demo Component 2
11				

Appendix A: HTTP Status Codes

The following is the list of OOTB HTTP Status code:

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
100	Continue	This means that the server has received the request headers, and that the client should proceed to send the request body.
101	Switching Protocols	This means the requester has asked the server to switch protocols and the server is acknowledging that it will do so.
102	Processing (WebDAV)	This code indicates that the server has received and is processing the request, but no response is available yet. This prevents the client from timing out and assuming the request was lost.
200	OK	Standard response for successful HTTP requests.
201	Created	The request has been fulfilled and resulted in a new resource being created.
202	Accepted	The request has been accepted for processing, but the processing has not been completed.
203	Non- Authoriatative Information	The server successfully processed the request, but is returning information that may be from another source.
204	No Content	The server successfully processed the request, but is not returning any content. Usually used as a response to a successful delete request.
205	Reset Content	The server successfully processed the request, but is not returning any content. Unlike a 204 response, this response requires that the requester reset the document view.
206	Partial Content	The server is delivering only part of the resource (byte serving) due to a range header sent by the client. The range header is used by tools like wget to enable resuming of interrupted downloads, or split a download into multiple simultaneous streams.
207	Multi-Status (WebDAV)	The message body that follows is an XML message and can contain a number of separate response codes, depending on how many sub-requests were made.
208	Already Reported (WebDAV)	The members of a DAV binding have already been enumerated in a previous reply to this request, and are not being included again.

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
226	IM Used	The server has fulfilled a request for the resource, and the response is a representation of the result of one or more instance-manipulations applied to the current instance.
300	Multiple Choices	Indicates multiple options for the resource that the client may follow.
301	Moved Permanently	This and all future requests should be directed to the given URI.
302	Found	This is an example of industry practice contradicting the standard.
303	See Other	The response to the request can be found under another URI using a GET method.
304	Not Modified	Indicates that the resource has not been modified since the version specified by the request headers If-Modified-Since or If-None-Match.
305	Use Proxy	The requested resource is only available through a proxy, whose address is provided in the response.
306	Switch Proxy	No longer used. Originally meant "Subsequent requests should use the specified proxy".
307	Temporary Redirect	In this case, the request should be repeated with another URI; however, future requests should still use the original URI.
308	Permanent Redirect	The request, and all future requests should be repeated using another URI.
400	Bad Request	The server cannot or will not process the request due to something that is perceived to be a client error.
401	Unauthorized	Similar to 403 Forbidden below, but specifically for use when authentication is required and has failed or has not yet been provided.
402	Payment Required	Reserved for future use. The original intention was that this code might be used as part of some form of digital cash or micropayment scheme, but that has not happened, and this code is not usually used.
403	Forbidden	The request was a valid request, but the server is refusing to respond to it. Unlike a "401 Unauthorized" above response, authenticating will make no difference.
404	Not Found	The requested resource could not be found but may be available again in the future. Subsequent requests by the client are permissible.
405	Method Not Allowed	A request was made of a resource using a request method not supported by that resource; for example, using GET on a form which requires data to

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
		be presented via POST, or using PUT on a read-only resource.
406	Not Acceptable	The requested resource is only capable of generating content not acceptable according to the Accept headers sent in the request.
407	Proxy Authentication Required	The client must first authenticate itself with the proxy.
408	Request Timeout	The server timed out waiting for the request.
409	Conflict	Indicates that the request could not be processed because of conflict in the request, such as an edit conflict in the case of multiple updates.
410	Gone	Indicates that the resource requested is no longer available and will not be available again.
411	Length Required	The request did not specify the length of its content, which is required by the requested resource.
412	Precondition Failed	The server does not meet one of the preconditions that the requester put on the request.
413	Request Entity Too Large	The request is larger than the server is willing or able to process.
414	Request-URI Too Long	The URI provided was too long for the server to process.
415	Unsupported Media Type	The request entity has a media type which the server or resource does not support.
416	Requested Range Not Satisfiable	The client has asked for a portion of the file (byte serving), but the server cannot supply that portion.
417	Exception Failed	The server cannot meet the requirements of the Expect request-header field.
418	I'm a Teapot	This code was defined in 1998 as one of the traditional and is not expected to be implemented by actual HTTP servers.
419	Authentication Timeout	Not a part of the HTTP standard, 419 Authentication Timeout denotes that previously valid authentication has expired.
420	Enhance Your Clam (Twitter)	Not part of the HTTP standard, but returned by version 1 of the Twitter Search and Trends API when the client is being rate limited.

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
422	Unprocessable Entity (WebDAV)	The request was well-formed but was unable to be followed due to semantic errors.
423	Locked (WebDAV)	The resource that is being accessed is locked.
424	Failed Dependency (WebDAV)	The request failed due to failure of a previous request.
426	Upgrade Required	The client should switch to a different protocol such as TLS/1.0, given in the Upgrade header field.
428	Precondition Required	The origin server requires the request to be conditional.
429	Too Many Request	The user has sent too many requests in a given amount of time.
431	Request Header Fields Too Large	The server is unwilling to process the request because either an individual header field, or all the header fields collectively, are too large.
440	Login Timeout (Microsoft)	A Microsoft extension. Indicates that your session has expired.
444	No Response (Nginx)	Used in Nginx logs to indicate that the server has returned no information to the client and closed the connection.
449	Retry With (Microsoft)	A Microsoft extension. The request should be retried after performing the appropriate action.
450	Blocked by Windows Parental Controls (Microsoft)	A Microsoft extension. This error is given when Windows Parental Controls are turned on and are blocking access to the given webpage.
451	Redirect (Microsoft)	Used in Exchange ActiveSync if there either is a more efficient server to use or the server cannot access the users' mailbox.
494	Request Header Too Large (Nginx)	Nginx internal code similar to 431 but it was introduced earlier in version 0.9.4 (on January 21, 2011).
495	Cert Error (Nginx)	Nginx internal code used when SSL client certificate error occurred to distinguish it from 4XX in a log and an error page redirection.

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
496	No Cert (Nginx)	Nginx internal code used when client didn't provide certificate to distinguish it from 4XX in a log and an error page redirection.
497	HTTP to HTTPS (Nginx)	Nginx internal code used for the plain HTTP requests that are sent to HTTPS port to distinguish it from 4XX in a log and an error page redirection.
498	Token expired/invalid (Esri)	Returned by ArcGIS for Server. A code of 498 indicates an expired or otherwise invalid token.
499	Client Closed Rrmquest (Nginx)	Used in Nginx logs to indicate when the connection has been closed by client while the server is still processing its request, making server unable to send a status code back.
499	Token Required (Esri)	Returned by ArcGIS for Server. A code of 499 indicates that a token is required (if no token was submitted).
500	Internal Server Error	A generic error message, given when an unexpected condition was encountered and no more specific message is suitable.
501	Not Implemented	The server either does not recognize the request method, or it lacks the ability to fulfill the request.
502	Bad Gateway	The server was acting as a gateway or proxy and received an invalid response from the upstream server.
503	Service Unavailable	The server is currently unavailable (because it is overloaded or down for maintenance). Generally, this is a temporary state.
504	Gateway Timeout	The server was acting as a gateway or proxy and did not receive a timely response from the upstream server.
505	HTTP Version Not Supported	The server does not support the HTTP protocol version used in the request.
506	Variant Also Negotiates	Transparent content negotiation for the request results in a circular reference.
507	Insufficient Storage (WebDAV)	The server is unable to store the representation needed to complete the request.
508	Loop Detected (WebDAV)	The server detected an infinite loop while processing the request.
509	Bandwidth Limit Exceeded	This status code lis not specified in any RFCs. Its use is unknown.

HTTP Status Code	Name	Description
510	Not Extended	Further extensions to the request are required for the server to fulfill it.
511	Network Authentication Required	The client needs to authenticate to gain network access. Intended for use by intercepting proxies used to control access to the network.
598	Network read timeout error	This status code is not specified in any RFCs, but is used by Microsoft HTTP proxies to signal a network read timeout behind the proxy to a client in front of the proxy.
599	Network connect timeout error	This status code is not specified in any RFCs, but is used by Microsoft HTTP proxies to signal a network connect timeout behind the proxy to a client in front of the proxy.

Appendix B: HTTP Headers

The following is the list of HTTP headers:

Header Name	Header Value
Accept	application/json, application/xml;q=0.1
Accept-Language	cz, en;q=0.8
Cache-Control	private, no-cache
Content-Language	en
Content-Type	application/xml
Content-Type	multipart/form-data
Content-Type	application/json
Content-Type	application/x-www-form-urlencoded
Content-Type	text/plain
Content-Type	*/*